SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD

David Y. Ige
Governor

Luis P. Salaveria
DBEDT Director I

Members I1.
Anthony Borge

Chairperson 1.

Oahu

Harris Nakamoto
Vice Chairperson
Oahu

Barbara Bennett
2M Vice Chairperson
Kauai

Kyoko Y. Kimura
Maui

Robert Cundiff
Oahu

Nancy Atmospera-Walch
Oahu

Phillip Kasper
Maui

Garth Yamanaka
Hawaii

Director, DBEDT
Voting Ex Officio

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)

No. 1 Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St. 5" FI., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804

Email Address: dbedt.sbrrb@hawaii.gov

Tel 808 586-2594

AGENDA
Wednesday, December 9, 2015 % 1:00 p.m.
No. 1 Capitol District Building
250 South Hotel Street - Conference Room 436

Call to Order
Approval of November 18, 2015 Meeting Minutes

Old Business
A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing
on the Proposed Amendments promulgated by the Board of Water Supply,
County of Kauali, as follows, and attached and incorporated as Exhibit 1
a. Section 3, Section VII, “Facilities Reserve Charge,” Part 4, Fixing Rates
for the Furnishing of Water Service in the County of Kauai;
b. Section 4, Part 5, Facilities Reserve Charge in the County of Kauai;

c. Section 5, Section 111, “Facilities Reserve Charge,” Part 3, Rules and
Regulations for Establishing Standards for Subdivision Water
Systems

New Business

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative
Rules (HAR), Title 16, Chapter 95, Pharmacists and Pharmacies,
promulgated by Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs — attached
and incorporated as Exhibit 2

B. Discussion and Action in Determining if the Current Airport Pick-up Fees at
Hawaii International Airport are consistent with HAR Title 19, Chapter 38.1,
On-Demand Taxi Service at Public Airports, HAR Chapter 20.1,
Commercial Services at Public Airports, and are in accordance with
Act 163, Session Laws of Hawaii 1994. And, Discussion of Improving
upon the Dispatching of Taxi Service for Passengers through Operational
and Enforcement of Rules and Procedures and to Upgrade the Level of
Customer Service — attached and incorporated as Exhibit 3

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 18,
Chapter 231, Income Tax Law, and Title 18, HAR Chapter 251, Rental
Motor Vehicle, Tour Vehicle, and Car-Sharing Vehicle Surcharge Tax,
promulgated by the Department of Taxation — attached and incorporated as
Exhibit 4

Administrative Matters
A. Discussion and Action on the following:
1. Draft 2015 Annual Report Summary to the Hawaii State Legislature,
pursuant to Section 201M-5(f), Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS)
2. Amendments to the Draft Small Business Impact Statement, Section
201M-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), and the Small Business
Statement After Public Hearing, Section 201M-3, HRS



Small Business Regulatory Review Board

December 9, 2015
Page 2

w

Draft Monthly e-Newsletter

4. Delegation of Authority to Board Member(s) and/or Staff to Submit
Testimony and/or Testify on behalf of the Board during the 2016
Hawaii State Legislative Session

VI.  Next Meeting: Wednesday, Janualfe/ 27,2016, at 1:00 p.m., Capitol District
Building, Conference Room 436, Honolulu, Hawaii

VIl. Adjournment

If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to participate in the
public hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or
parking designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2594 at least three (3)
business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made.



December 9, 2015 ~ SBRRB Meeting Checklist

Member Attendance Pre Meeting Checklist
Atine 1 from | Details | Atend | |Conference Room #436 (Confirm each month) X
Preference
{ i .
Anthony Bom) Parkin b(.é
Chair NA Oahu Passg X Make 12 - 15 copies of rule packages for board packets v
- “Pa r Poll Board Attendance
XD .| Parking . . , . \/\/
Kyoko Kimur; N HA Maui Pt X Prepare TAF's for Director's approyal - ASAP (Linda)
At ores (e pefrad - (,_{nk& .Gy v
. ' vy DN
Harris Nakamoto, o ' \
Vice Chair 4 NA Oahu NA Airline bo P-Lin M \-t r L (
Y : 4 T
& X P
Director's ex officio \'(f) ; ‘
, i NA Oahu NA Draft Agenda to Chair for approval
Mark Richey C@W X 9 oot 1|20 w4
Robert Cundi HJ i‘ NA Oahu | Parking Kl{f) Post approved agenda on 1) SBRRB wébéite, 2) Staté /
, un‘ ~i Pass % Calendar, 3) Lte. Governor's Office \/ )
Nancy Atmospera- Send Agendas to those people who requested it -
Waich P VA ol NA L | | iMPORTANT \/
) . ; P
- Parki J 2 / \/
Phillip Kasger Maui :'a;: N 4} Mail Board Packets to Boa[ [members, Deputy AG \/
N, 5 o
@ i S Include "discussion leader" names on the agendas to \/ j
Garth ﬁ%na a HA Bl - P;:‘;:g &) TR 01 Wi Ageaic
N ks ‘ Board members only. T4 Ford Buhgami- =
Add Dete Evams DON TSwe [/
W /‘(%Mmf
Include parking permits in Board members' agenda ‘ /
packets.
STAFF Post Meeting Checklist
Margaret Ahn (ﬁ) Yes
Dori Palcovich {/ Yes

JIPublic/SBRRE/Meeting/Pre-Meeting/Check List.xls




9T

ST

14"

€T

4"

1T

ot

.

WS¢~ e \@@\Q:v_\ﬁ\?‘g\ S d \ g: (49 @ “Z [&\ n\ﬁ\(\q\s\\.d. il H\ Z

o985y o TRy ) il [Camson ] W Pilrgl | i 98| ANz 7] | |

auoyd TEITE uoijeziuesiQ 3L aweN

ST0Z ‘6 19quIada( - pIeog MIIAIY A101e[N3IY ssaulsng [[ewWS - }199YS-UI-USIS S.I0JISIA



Exhibit 1



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWALI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY OF THE COUNTY OF
KAUA'l, STATE OF HAWAI'

SECTION 1. This amendment to the Rules and Regulations of the County of
Kauai Department of Water (hereafter “Rules”) is made pursuant to Section 17.03D of
the Kauai County Charter 2014, as amended, and Chapter 91, Haw. Rev. Stat. as
amended.

SECTION 2. Summary of Rule Amendment.

The amendment to the Rules modifies the Department’s facilities reserve charges.
These charges were found in Section VIl of Part 4, “FIXING RATES FOR THE
FURNISHING OF WATER SERVICE IN THE COUNTY OF KAUA'l"” AND in Section IlI
of Part 3 “ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR SUBDIVISION WATER SYSTEMS
WITHIN THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I" This new Part 5 will deal solely with Facilities
Reserve Charges.

SECTION 3. Section VII “FACILITIES RESERVE CHARGE” ONLY Part 4
“FIXING RATES FOR THE FURNISHING OF WATER SERVICE IN THE COUNTY OF
KAUA'I" of the Rules is hereby amended to delete Section VII and renumbers Part 4 to
ten (10) sections.

“PART 4

FIXING RATES FOR THE FURNISHING OF WATER SERVICE IN THE COUNTY OF
KAUA'l”

Department of Water, County of Kauai RO e

P i ility Reserve Charge - — 7‘4- ‘
s S ReiRRS T raoiy | _ BUSINESS ASSISTANGE BRANGH

et S T




AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

E
|

sran < A 600 00N
HC L7 rhA-A=TR=A=
3/ g 14 20000
Y3 Ly Ladddo
A @ 26 400 00
T W P =
4 1/7 g 52 200 00
72 P DT U
o @ QA 700 00
= o oog
q
i

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facllity Reserve Charge
Page 2 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

b-
&
SECTION VII[H - OTHER CHARGES
1. Restoration of Water Service. If a consumer’s water service is turned off for

failure to pay a bill, for violation of any of the provisions of these rules and
regulations, or for other reasons, all outstanding accounts against said consumer
plus the charge for reopening, reinstallation or reconnection must be paid before
water service be restored. Said charges shall be as established by the
Department.

2. Fire Hydrant and Other Temporary Meters. In addition to regular meter
service charge and water consumption charge, there shall be installation,
removal, testing and user charges for all Fire Hydrant and other temporary
meters as established by the Department.

3. Pass Through of Private Charges.
a) As used in this Paragraph 3:

“Private charge” or “private charges” means charges, fees, assessments,
exactions, and all other moneys a private water company may require the
Department to pay to permit the Department to purchase water from the
company. The terms include contribution-in-aid-of-construction charges that a
company may assess against the Department.

“Private water company” or “company” means any department or agency
of the federal government or the State of Hawaii, any private person, trust,
association, corporation, partnership, or business, and any water utility regulated
by the Hawaii Public Utilities Commission.

(b) Whenever the Department purchases water from a private water
company for end use by any of the Department’s consumers or prospective
consumers and the company imposes private charges in excess of any similar

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 3 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWALI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

charge or fee imposed under the Department’s administrative rules, the
Department shall require a consumer or prospective consumer to pay, in addition
to the Department’s charge or fee, the difference between the charge or fee
imposed under the Department’s rules and the similar private charge imposed by
the company. If the private charge imposed is less than the similar charge or fee
imposed under the Department's administrative rules, the consumer or
prospective consumer shall not be entitled to the difference between the private
charge imposed and the similar charge or fee imposed under the Department’s
rules.

Whenever the Department purchases water from a private water company
for end use by any of the Department’s consumers or prospective consumers
and the company imposes private charges that are dissimilar to any charge or
fee imposed under the Department’s administrative rules, the Department shall
require a consumer or prospective consumer to pay an amount equal to the
dissimilar private charge imposed by the company.”

SECTION [4] VIII- TEMPORARY GRANTS OF WATER

1 Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish standards for temporary
grants of water to support the initial development of county or state public
beautification projects or the initial or further development of county or state
public parks and public ways.

2 Temporary Grants of Water. The Board of Water Supply may, in its discretion,
authorize temporary grants of water to support the initial development of county
or state public beautification projects or the initial or further development of
county or state public parks and public ways.

Any county or state department, office, or agency wishing to receive such
temporary grants of water shall apply to the Board of Water Supply for such temporary
grants. The application shall explain or describe in detail the contemplated project, why
a temporary grant of water from the Department is necessary, what other efforts the
applicant has made to obtain water from other sources, for what specific purposes the
water will be used, and how the water provided will yield public benefits. The applicant
shall also certify that there were no other available sources which can be used to
support the project in question.

For each application, the Board shall determine and establish a maximum time
limit that water may be provided to an applicant and a quantity limit on the amount of
water that may be drawn.

The Board and the Manager and Chief Engineer may prescribe conditions under
which water may be drawn so that the provision of water to the applicant does not
adversely affect the Department’s ability to provide water to its other users.

SECTION [X - COST OF POWER ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

All water consumption (for general use, agriculture use and ships) shall be
subject to the imposition of a Cost of Power Adjustment as part of all water consumption

charges.

The Department will review the actual unit costs of power for each twelve month
period ending March 31% as part of the Department’s annual budget review process.
The power cost adjustment for the upcoming fiscal year will be calculated as the sum of
the following two components:

1) the difference (plus or minus) between budgeted unit power costs for the
upcoming fiscal year and the projected unit power costs, and

Department of Water, County of Kauai
PPart 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 4 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWALI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

2) the difference (plus or minus) between the actual unit power costs incurred
during the twelve-month period ending March 31% as previously described and
the projected unit power costs.

The sum of these two components, calculated on a dollar[s] per thousand gallons
basis, will be applied to all water consumption.

Any power cost adjustments will be implemented on July 1% of each year.

SECTION X[H — LATE CHARGES

A late payment charge may be applied to any delinquent balance payable to the
Department. The late payment charge shall be assessed at the rate of half a percent
(0.5%) for each month or fraction thereof against the delinquent balance, beginning 30
days after the date of the bill.

For the purposes of this section, 'delinquent balance' includes any loan, fee,
charge, or other liquidated sum which is 30 days past due to the Department,
regardless of whether there is an outstanding judgment for that sum, and whether the
sum has accrued through contract, subrogation, tort, operation of law, or administrative
order.

SECTION 4. Part 5 “FACILITIES RESERVE CHARGE IN THE COUNTY OF
KAUA'I" of the Rules is hereby created as follows:

“Part 5

SECTION | — GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Purpose and Authority

a. Capital water facilities expansion is needed in order to accommodate increased
demands on existing source, storage, and transmission pipeline capacity due to
new development and/or additional demand of existing users, New development
and/or additional demand shall be assessed a Facilities Reserve Charge in
proportion to its impact and demand on capital water facilities. The Facilities
Reserve Charge shall be expended for public capital water facilities projects.

These rules were enacted pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes (H.R.S.) §46-141 et
seg.and other applicable State law. -

2. Findings

In the review of the impact of growth relative to the existing and planned capital
water system facilities capacity available to the water system, the Board hereby
finds that the recent and anticipated population growth rates and corresponding
water demands would place additional burdens on the existing water system. The
Board further finds that such growth and increased demand would necessitate
increased expenditures of public funds in order to create adequate facilities and to
promote and protect the public health, safety, and welfare. The Board also finds
that it is fair and reasonable to impose additional fees to accommodate such
development. Finally, the Board finds that establishing benefit zones as identified

in Hawaii Revised Statutes (H.R.S.) §46-14* is not necessary as a reasonable
benefit can othernwise be derived.

[

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 50of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWALI'l,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

b. The following rules shall govern the assessment of impact fees for the Board of
Water Supply, County of Kauai capital water facilities expansion. New
development and/or additional demand shall be assessed impact fees in proportion
to its demand on capital water facilities and the impact fees assess shall be
expended for public capital water facilities projects. The Facilities Reserve Charge
(FRC) was adopted in accordance with the report prepared by an independent
consultant retained by the County of Kauai, Board of Water Supply (Board) to
assess and study water facilities. The report calculated the proportionate costs
associated with the water development needs as laid out in the Board approved

Department facilities needs assessment study entitled *Water Plan 2020”, as
amended.

SECTION Il = DEFINITIONS

“Affordable or Workforce Housing Project” shall mean any project confirmed or
sponsored by the County Housing Agency as a residential development where the
majority of housing lots, single family dwelling units, or multiple-family dwelling units
are affordable housing or workforce housing as defined in Chapter 7A of the Kauai
County Code 1987, as amended. :

“‘Applicant” means any person, individual, subdivider, corporation, partnership.
business, organization, association. or other entity whatsoever that applies for
water service from the Department.

“Consumer” has the meaning ascribed to it under Section | of Part 2 of the
Department's Rules and Regulations. -

“Facilities Reserve Charge” (FRC) means the fee to be paid by an Applicant as
their proportionate share in required improvements to capital water facilities.

“Grant Funds” shall mean a contribution, gift, or subsidy bestowed to the Board for
specific water facilities improvement associated with a specific project that
necessitates such water facilities improvements.

“Grantor” means the person or entity that makes a grant of funds.

“Offset’” means a reduction in Facilities Reserve Charge designed to fairly reflec

the value of non-site related capital water facilities improvements provided by an
Applicant pursuant to Department of Water requirements.

“Recoupment” shall be defined as in H.R.S. 46-141, as amended, and refers to the

proportionate share of the water facility capital improvement costs of excess
capacity in existing water capital facilities where excess capacity has been provided
in anticipation of the needs of development.

“Subdivider” has the meaning ascribed to it under section | of Part 3 of the
Department’s Rules and Regulations.

“Subdivision” has the meaning ascribed to it under section | of Part 3 of the
VDegartment’s Rules and Regulations.

“Water transmission main” or “main” means a main extension under Paragraph 2.d
[2.a.(4)] of Section [l of Part 2 of the Department’s Rules and Rggulations,

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 6 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'l,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

As used in this Section, the following rules of construction shall applv:

Number. Words in the singular or plural number signify both the singular and plural
number.

‘Or"_"and”. Each of the terms “or” and “and”, has the meaning of the other or of
both.

SECTION Il — APPLICABILITY

i The Facilities Reserve Charge shall be assessed against all new developments
and subdivisions requiring supply of water from the County of Kauai, Depariment of
Water, and existing developments requiring new or additional supply of water from
the Department's system. The Facilities Reserve Charge must be paid before water
services are made available to the new or existing development.

2. The Facilities Reserve Charge shall be paid by all Applicants for new or additional
water service, including but not limited to the following:

a. Allirrigation services and/or meters.

b. Additional buildings to be connected to existing services where additional demands
are indicated. The charges shall be based on the meter sizes required if the
buildings were metered separately.

Additional dwellings connected to existing services and meters under the
categories of single family and multi-family residential units. The charges will be
based on the established schedule of charges for the respective categories.

I

(o8

d. Changes in service that require an increase in meter size.

Where an FRC was paid but a water meter was never installed to serve the subject
property, the applicant shall pay the Facilities Reserve Charge in accordance with
Part 5, Section IV (4) of these Rules.

@

8 The Facilities Reserve Charge shall apply to all Applicants for water service as

follows:

a. For each parcel created by subdivision, including the first lot created: and for every
new single family residential dwelling unit not yet metered and a Facilities Reserve
Charge has not yet been paid, the applicable Facilities Reserve Charge shall be
$14,115.00.

b. The Facilities Reserve Charge for multi-family and/or resort development will be the

cost of the approved meter size or the cost of $9,880.00 per unit or hotel room,
whichever number is larger.

c. For all other uses. the Facilities Reserve Charge shall be determined by the size of

the meter, as shown below. Meter sizes shall be determined by the Department
and not by the Developer or Applicant.

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 7 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI',
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

Meter Size Amount
5/8” $ 14,115.00
7 5 21,170.00
1” $ 35.290.00
1% $ 70.580.00
27 $ 112,920.00
3 $ 225.840.00
4’ $ 352.,880.00
6" $ 705.750.00
g’ $ 1.129,200.00

Facilities Reserve Charges are periodically adjusted by the Department. These
adjustments may increase or decrease existing Facilities Reserve Charge amounts.
Where adjustments to Facilities Reserve Charges result in decreases of such
charges, no refund will be made of the difference between the higher, pre-existing
charges and the lower, adjusted charges.

SECTION IV— COLLECTION AND REFUND OF FRC

1. Upon collection of the Facilities Reserve Charge, the Facilities Reserve Charge

shall be deposited in a special trust fund or interest-bearing account. The portion
that constitutes recoupment may be transferred to any appropriate fund.

2. If the Facilities Reserve Charge is not expended or encumbered within six years
from the date of collection, it shall be refunded to the property owner or the property
owner's successor in title, together with accrued interest (if any).

a. An application for a refund shall be submitted to the Board within one year of the
date upon which the refund right arises:

Amounts unclaimed within one year of the date the right to refund arises shall be
retained in a special trust fund or interest bearing account and shall be expended
for capital facilities improvement projects.

3. If the Board terminates the Facilities Reserve Charge (or ana[ogous) requirement,
all unexpended or unencumbered funds shall be refunded to the property owner or
the property owner's successor in title, together with accrued interest (if any).

=8

a. Public notices of termination and availability of refunds shall be given by the Board
at least two times in a manner approved by the Board. All funds available for refund
shall be retained for a period of one year and at the end of said one géar period,

any remaining funds may be transferred to the Board's general fund and expended
for_any public purposes involving water supply or service as determined by the

Board.

4. No FRC refund shall be made for existing meters requiring a decrease in water

demand, decrease in meter size, or decrease in existing water supply fixture units;
or requests to change service categories. ; '

5, Recoupment shall be exempt from subsections (2) and (3).

6. Facilities Reserve Charge Paid Prior to Enactment of Part 5 Rules

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 8 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

a. This Section applies to those Applicants that have paid a Facilities Reserve Charge

prior to enactment of these Part 5 Rules and have failed to install a water meter on
the subject property for which the Facilities Reserve Charge was paid, hereinafter
referred to as “Prior Applicants”.

Prior Applicants shall have three (3) years from the date of enactment of these Part

5 Rules, hereinafter referred to as the “Grace Period”, to install a water meter, at no
additional Facilities Reserve Charge cost.

=3

i

After expiration of the Grace Period, Prior Applicants must pay the difference of the

original Facilities Reserve Charge paid and the Facilities Reserve Charge in effect
at the time the meter is installed.

O

d. The Manager may grant exceptions to item B¢ if the Manager finds all of the
following:

i.  Strict application of the rule would cause an absurd, unfair, or unreasonably

harsh result; and

The Prior Applicant's circumstance or condition is unique or exceptional and
the Manager would grant the same request if made by ever similarly situated
Prior Applicant; and

Such exception thereof is as reasonably necessary or expedient and not
contrary fo law or the intent and purposes of these rules.

7. Facilities Reserve Charge Paid After Enactment of Part 5 Rules

8.

a. The Department may issue conditional approval for water service requests.

b. A conditional approval shall be valid for a period of one year and shall expire unless
installation of the meter occurs within that period or an extension of the conditional
approval is granted.

i. Anextension of the conditional approval may be granted for a single
additional one-vear period.

Upon expiration, the conditional approval shall become null and void and the
Applicant will be required to re-apply to the Department of Water for water service.
Any request for water service will be dependent on the adequacy of the source,
storage, and transmission facilities existing at that time.

2

d. AWater Meter Application and FRC payment can only be made upon completing
the requirements set forth in the conditional approval.

o

Facilities Reserve Charges for Affordable and Work Force Facilities Housing

Projects

a. The Manager may defer collection of Facility Reserve Charges for Affordable or
Workforce Housing Projects. provided, however that applicable Reserve Charges

shall be collected before building permit approval or installation of applicable

meters. whichever occurs first.

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 9 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'I,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

b. Administrative fees related to the Facility Reserve Charge shall be waived for
Affordable or Workforce Housing Projects.

SECTION V - FRC OFFSETS

When an Applicant, is required to construct and dedicate water source or water
storage facilities, or water transmission mains, to the Department, the following
rules shall apply:

1. The applicable FRC liability of such Applicant, shall be offset by up to 22% where
water source improvements are constructed, up to 41% where water storage
improvements are constructed, and up to 37% where water transmission mains
are constructed; provided that the fotal amount of all offsets that an Applicant,
receives shall not exceed 100% of the Applicant's, FRC liability.

~a. An Applicant who provides 100% of the necessary source or storage or
transmission requirements shall be entitled to an offset for the entire amount per
category of source, storage, or transmission improvements as shown above,

2. The Department, and not the Applicant, shall calculate and determine the total
amount of an Applicant’'s, FRC offset in any given case. The Department may

require the Applicant to submit documentation verifvinag the actual cost of a source
or storage improvement or transmission main.

3. The offsets described in this Section V “FRC Offsets” shall not apply to water

transmission mains constructed by an Applicant which are within or adjacent {o a
subdivision or lands either 1) owned by the Applicant, or 2) developed by the
Applicant. Where water transmission mains are constructed within, adjacent to. or

outside of such subdivisions or lands, the offsets shall apply only to mains
constructed outside of and off-site from such subdivisions or lands.

4, Grant Funds. Grant funds, specifically allocated to projects by the Grantor, may be
used by the Manager to offset the FRC assessed to said projects on a dollar for
dollar basis as it relates to source development, storage development and/or
fransmission main development. :

a. Applicants shall be offset by up to 22% where water source improvements are
constructed: up to 41% where water storage improvements are constructed; and up
to 37% where water transmission mains are constructed; provided that the total

amount of all offsets that an Applicant receives shall not exceed 100% of the
Applicant’s FRC liability.

b. The Manager shall determine which improvements are eligible for FRC offsets.

FRC offsets shall be afforded only to those Applicants that are beneficiaries of the
Grantor and identified as such at the time the Grant fund is made.

(=

e

=

FRC offsets for Grant Funds shall be a one-time event.

Department of Water, County of Kauai
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 10 of 12



AMENDMENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWAI'l,
PRESCRIBED ON November 19, 2015

SECTION VI — APPEAL OF FACILITIES RESERVE CHARGE

1. Any person assessed a Facilities Reserve Charge under these rules may contest
the amount of the Facilities Reserve Charge assessed by following the
requirements in Part 1 of these Rules and Regqulations.

SECTION 5. Section IIl “FACILITIES RESERVE CHARGE” ONLY of Part 3
“ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR SUBDIVISION WATER SYSTEMS WITHIN THE
COUNTY OF KAUAI" of the Rules is hereby amended as follows:

J “Part 3
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR
SUBDIVISION WATER SYSTEMS

SECTION Il - FACILITIES RESERVE CHARGE

y The subdivider shall pay to the Department the facilities reserve charge
established in Part [4] 5 of the Rules and Regulations of the Department, for
each (additional) parcel created by the subdivision, including the first lot, except
(as provided below) when facilities reserve charges have already been paid by
the developer or subdivider.

2. No facilities reserve charge will be made for lots created by the subdivision which
will not be served by the Department's water system. In the event that the
Department determines that the subdivision will not be serviced by the
Department’s water system, but later water service is requested, full payment of the
then applicable facilities reserve charge must be paid. A statement to this effect
shall be clearly lettered on the subdivision map.

3. No facilities reserve charge will be made for any parcel which is already serviced by
an existing meter or which was serviced by a meter within 365 days prior to formal
submittal of the subdivision request to the Planning Department.

4, The subdivider shall pay the facilities reserve charge to the Department prior to
subdivision approval by the Department except that subdivision approval may be
given prior to construction of required improvements and the payment of the
facilities reserve charge by the posting of a bond, as described in Section Xll| of
this Part.

5. In the event the facilities reserve charge has been paid for a subdivision and
subsequently the subdivision is consolidated, the facilities reserve charge will be
returned provided the consolidation is completed within 365 days following the prior
subdivision approval.

SECTION 6. Administrative rule material to be repealed is bracketed. New
material is underscored. Deleted material is stricken through. In printing this rule
amendment, the brackets, bracketed material, underscoring, strikes need not be
included.

SECTION 7. If any provision of this rule amendment or the application thereof to
any person or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other
prdvisions or applications of the rule amendment, which can be given effect without the
invalid provision, or application, and to this end the provisions of this rule amendment
are severable. |

SECTION 8. This rule amendment shall be effective ten (10) days after it isfiled
with the County Clerk of the County of Kaua'i.

Department of Water, County of Kauali
Part 5, Rules & Regulations for Facility Reserve Charge
Page 11 of 12



AMEMDRHWENTS TO
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OF TEE COUNTY OF KAUAI, STATE OF HAWALY,
PRESCRIBED G pMovember 19, 2015

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY
; COUNTY OF KAUA'I

A I

Sherman Shiraishi, Chairperscn

APPRQOVED AS TO FORM DEPARTMENT OF WATER
AND LEGALITY: COUNTY OF KAUAI
,%p\ = ’&'
Suzuki Kirk Saiki, P.E.
Deputy nty Attorney Manager & Chief Engineer

Scm. Sato, Deputy County Clerk Receijved this _19th day of
i—i; § November 2015

for: \jde Fouhtdin-Tanigawa
County Clerk, County of Kaua'i

| hereby certify that the Board of Watar Supply, County of Kauai, adopted the foregoing
amendments to the Rules and Regulations of the County of Kauai Depariment of Water on
Thursday, November 19, 2015 under authority of Sec. 17.03D of the Kauai County Charter
2014, as amended, and that the provisions of Sec. 81-3, Haw. Rev. Stat., as amended, have
been satisfied, including the holding of (1) pubiic nearing on Tuesday.. Neverﬂber 10, 2015, and
the giving of proper notice for the public hearing, waich notice was zdvertised in The Garden
Island on Friday, October 9, 2014 & Tues<zv, November 10, 2015,

Dated at Lihue, Kauai this _19th_ day of N<vember_ 2015.

= Laurie Ho, Secretar’y
BCARD OF WATER SUPFLY

CERTIFICATION OF COUNTY CLERK

! hereby certify on Novmeber 19th . 2015, | accepied for filing from
the Kauai Board of Water Supply the Amenumsant to the Ru[es and Reguiaiions adopied on

Thursday, November 19, 2015.
:cott K..éato, Deputy County Clerk

for: %e FOL:WL " Tai":cdu-’* LI, U“ :_r Lfi rl\
County of Raug’

Duoartment of Water, Couvny of Kauaj
Part £ Ruies & Regulations jor Frality Recerve Cliargs
Pane 129f12



Exhibit 2



ORAFT >

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 16-95
Hawaii Administrative Rules

1. Chapter 16-95, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled Pharmacists and Pharmacies"
is amended and compiled to read as follows: ‘

MO0 ACDIOTAMPET DDAMDL
BUSINFSS ASSISTANGE BRANGH,




“HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES
TITLE 16
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS
CHAPTER 95

PHARMACISTS AND PHARMACIES

Subchapter 1 General Provisions

§16-95-1 Objective; scope

§16-95-2 Definitions

§16-95-3 Repealed

§16-95-4 Repealed

§16-95-5 Repealed

§16-95-6 Repealed

§16-95-7 Repealed

§16-95-8 Repealed

§16-95-9 Repealed

§16-95-10  Repealed

§16-95-11 Repealed

§16-95-12  Repealed

§16-95-13 Repealed

§16-95-14  Display of license or permit
§16-95-15  Repealed

§16-95-16  Repealed

§16-95-17 Repealed

§16-95-18  License or permit required
§16-95-19 License or permit nontransferable

Subchapter 2 Applications

§16-95-21 Forms, documentation, and notification

§16-95-22  Application and requirements for pharmacist license by
examination

§16-95-22.5 Application and requirements for pharmacist license by reciprocity

§16-95-23 Temporary license



§16-95-24
§16-95-25
§16-95-26
§16-95-27
§16-95-28
§16-95-29
§16-95-30
§16-95-31
§16-95-32

Pharmacy intern permit

Repealed

Pharmacy permit

Repealed
Repealed
Repealed

Wholesale prescription drug dis
Miscellaneous permit
Criminal conviction

tributor license requirements

§16-95-32.2 Denial or rejection of application

Subchapter 3 Education and Experience Documentation

§16-95-33

§16-95-33.2

- §16-95-34
§16-95-35
§16-95-36

Subchapter 4 Repealed

§16-95-39

§16-95-40

§16-95-41
§16-95-42
§16-95-43

Subchapter 5 Repealed

§16-95-44
§16-95-45
§16-95-46
§16-95-47
§16-95-48
§16-95-49
§16-95-50

Education documentation for a pharmacist license
Education documentation for a pharmacy intern permit
Experience verification for a pharmacist by examination

Repealed

Experience verification for a pharmacist [licensed] license by

reciprocity or temporary pharmacist license

Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed

Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed



Subchapter 6 Repealed

§16-95-51
§16-95-52
§16-95-53
§16-95-54

Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed

Subchapter 7 Repealed

§16-95-55
§16-95-56
§16-95-57
§16-95-58
§16-95-59
§16-95-60
§16-95-61
§16-95-62
§16-95-63
§16-95-64

Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed
Repealed

Subchapter 8 Repealed

§16-95-65

Repealed

Subchapter 9 Renewal

§16-95-70
§16-95-71
§16-95-72
§16-95-73
§16-95-74

Repealed

Date for filing

Automatic forfeiture for failing to renew

Restoration of forfeited license or permit

Board may refuse to renew or restore a license or permit

Subchapter 10 Scope of Practice

§16-95-79
§16-95-80
§16-95-81
§16-95-82
§16-95-83
§16-95-84

Supervision by a registered pharmacist
Physical presence of a registered pharmacist
Emergency kits

Valid prescriptions

Substitution; drug product selection
Transfer of prescriptions



§16-95-85  Scope of practice of a pharmacy intern
§16-95-86 Scope of practice of a pharmacy technician
§16-95-87  Return or exchange of drugs prohibited

Subchapter 11 Record Keeping Requirements .

§16-95-93 Records of dispensing

§16-95-94  Automated data processing systems

§16-95-95 Security of records

§16-95-96 Record keeping for wholesale prescription drug distributors
Subchapter 12 Advertising Practices

§16-95-101  Procedures to advertise prescription drugs

§16-95-102  Procedures to advertise related pharmacy services

§16-95-103  Advertising of controlled substances prohibited

Subchapter 13 Disciplinary Sanctions, Application Denial, Hearings,
Administrative Practice and Procedure

§16-95-110  Grounds for revocation, suspension, refusal to renew or restore,
denial, or conditioning of license or permit
§16-95-111 Denial
§16-95-112  Demand for hearing; proceedings upon demand for hearing
§16-95-113  Administrative practice and procedure
Subchapter 14 Oral Testimony
§16-95-118  Oral testimony
Subchapter 15 Fees
816-95-123  Fees established
§16-95-124 Form of fee
§16-95-125  Dishonored checks considered failure to meet requirements

Subchapter 16 Emergency Contraception Collaborative Agreement

§16-95-130  Emergency contraception written collaborative agreement



SUBCHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

§16-95-1 Obijective; scope. This chapter is intended to clarify and
implement chapter 461, Hawaii Revised Statutes, to the end that the provisions
thereunder may be best effectuated and the public interest and welfare most
effectively served and protected. Other requirements of state or federal law,
including the laws enforced by the state department of health and department of
public safety, which also may be applicable to the practice of pharmacy or to
licensees or permittees under chapter 461, [Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, are
not encompassed within the scope of this chapter. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-
05-1, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;
am and comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

§16-95-2 Definitions. As used in this chapter unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise:

"ACPE" means the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education,
formerly known as the American Council on Pharmaceutical Education, which is
the national agency for the accreditation of professional degree programs in
pharmacy and providers of continuing pharmacy education.

"Automated data processing system" or "ADP system" means a system
utilizing computer software and hardware for the purpose of record keeping.

"Board" means the board of pharmacy.

"BREG" means the business registration division of the department.

"Department” means the department of commerce and consumer affairs.

"Director” means the director of commerce and consumer affairs.

"Dispense” or "dispensing” means the furnishing of drugs pursuant to a
prescription in a suitable container, appropriately labeled for subsequent
administration to, or use by, a patient or other individual entitled to receive the
drug.

“HAR” means the Hawaii Administrative Rules.

"HRS" means the Hawaii Revised Statutes.

"Immediate supervision" means that a registered pharmacist is physically
present in the area or location where a pharmacy intern or pharmacy technician is
working and oversees the correctness and accuracy of the prescription's
ingredients, quantity, and label.

"Institutional facility" includes a:

(1) ‘Hospital;




(2) Convalescent home;

(3) Nursing home;

(4)  Extended care facility;

5 Mental institution;

(6) Rehabilitation center;

(7) Health maintenance organization;

(8) Psychiatric center;

©) Mental retardation center;

(10)  Penal institution; or

(11)  Any other organization whose primary purpose is to provide a
physical environment for patients to obtain health care services or
at-home care services, except those places where physicians,
dentists, veterinarians, osteopaths, podiatrists, or other prescribers
who are duly licensed, engage in private practice.

"Institutional pharmacy" means a pharmacy providing services to an
institutional facility ‘

"NABPLEX" means the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy
Licensure Examination, now known as the NAPLEX.

"NAPLEX" means the North = American Pharmacist Licensure
Examination, previously known as the NABPLEX.

"Partnership” means a general partnership, a limited partnership, a limited
liability partnership, or a limited liability limited partnership.

"Pharmacy intern" means a student or graduate of a school or college of
pharmacy, that is accredited or is a candidate for accreditation by the ACPE, and
who is issued a permit by the board to work under the immediate supervision of a
registered pharmacist.

"Pharmacy technician" means a nonlicensed individual, other than a
pharmacy intern, who assists the pharmacist in various activities under the
immediate supervision of a registered pharmacist.

"Wholesale distribution" means the transfer of prescription drugs to
persons other than a consumer or patient, but does not include: '

(1) Intracompany sales, defined as any transaction or transfer between

an entity and any division, subsidiary, parent, or affiliated or
related company under common ownership and control;

(2) The purchase or other acquisition, by an institutional facility that is

a member of a group purchasing organization, of a drug for use by
the entity's patient, from the group purchasing organization or from
other institutional facilities that are members of the group
purchasing organization;



3)

“)

6))

(6)

(N

(8)

The sale, purchase, or trade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase,
or trade a drug by a charitable organization described in section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, to a
nonprofit affiliate of the organization to the extent otherwise
permitted by law;

The sale, purchase, or trade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase,
or trade a drug among institutional facilities that are under common
control. For purposes of this paragraph, "common control" means
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and -
policies of a person or an organization, whether by ownership of
stock, working rights by contract, or otherwise;

The sale, purchase, or trade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase,
or trade a drug for emergency medical reasons. For purposes of
this paragraph, "emergency medical reasons" includes[,] but is not
limited to[,] transfers of prescription drugs by a pharmacy to
another pharmacy to alleviate a temporary shortage, except that
the gross dollar value of [such] the transfers shall not exceed five
per cent of the total prescription drug sales revenue of either the
transferor or transferee pharmacy during any period of twelve
consecutive months;

The sale, purchase, or trade of a drug, or an offer to sell, purchase,
or trade a drug, or the dispensing of a drug pursuant to a
prescription;

The distribution of drug samples by manufacturers' representatives
or distributors' representatives. For purposes of this paragraph,
"drug sample" means a uvnit of a prescription drug that is not
intended to be sold and is intended to promote the sale of the drug;
or

The sale, purchase, or trade of blood and blood components
intended for transfusion. For purposes of this paragraph, "blood"
means whole blood collected from a single donor and processed
either for transfusion or further manufacturing; and '"blood
component” means that part of blood separated by physical or
mechanical means.

"Wholesale distributor” means any person or entity in this State engaged
in the transfer of prescription drugs to a person other than a consumer or patient,
including[,] but not limited to, manufacturers; repackers; own label distributors;
private label distributors; jobbers; brokers; warehouses, including manufacturers'
and distributors' warehouses, chain drug warehouses, and wholesale drug
warehouses; independent wholesale drug traders; prescription drug repackagers;



practitioners; birth control and other clinics; individuals; hospitals; nursing homes
and their providers; health maintenance organizations and other health care
providers; and retail and hospital pharmacies that conduct wholesale distributions.
The term "wholesale distributor” shall not include any carrier for hire or person or
entity hired solely to transport prescription drugs. For purposes of this definition,
"manufacturer” means anyone who is engaged in manufacturing, . preparing,
propagating, compounding, processing, packaging, repackaging, or labeling of a
prescription drug; and "prescription drug" means any human drug required by
federal law or regulation to be dispensed only by a prescription, including finished
dosage forms and active ingredients subject to section 503(b) of the Federal Food,
Drug, and Cosmetic Act. [Eff 5/16/64; am 8/7/70; am and ren §16-95-2, 6/22/81;
am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/ 15; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

§16-95-3 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-4 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
8§16-95-5 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-6 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-7 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-8 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-9 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-10 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-11 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]



§16-95-12 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-13 Repealed. [R 12/24/92)]

§16-95-14 Display of license or permit. The holder of a license or permit
shall conspicuously display, in the place of business, that license or permit and
shall have the evidence of current validation in the holder's possession at all times.
[Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-14, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp
12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS
§8461-4, 461-9, 461-16) (Imp: HRS §§461-4, 461-9, 461-16)

§16-95-15 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-16 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-17 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-18 License or permit required. It shall be unlawful for a person
who is not licensed or who has not been issued a permit under chapter 461, HRS,
and this chapter to engage in the practice of a pharmacist, to perform the duties of
a pharmacy intern, to operate a pharmacy, to engage in the wholesale distribution
of drugs, or to engage in any activities requiring a miscellaneous permit. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04;° am and comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-
10)

§16-95-19 License or permit nontransferable. Any license or permit
issued by the board shall be valid only for the person to which it is issued and
shall not be transferable. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and
comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§461-4.5)




SUBCHAPTER 2
APPLICATIONS

Forms. documentation, and notification. (a) An application

§16-95-21 ; 1
for license or permit shall be made under oath on forms provided by the board and
shall not be considered complete unless accompanied with the required
documentation and fees. It shall be each applicant's responsibility to furnish all
information and any documentation requested by the board.

(b)

The application form may require the applicant and any personnel

‘of the applicant to provide the following:

)
(2)
&)
“)

(5)
(©)

@)

(8)
€))
(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)

The applicant's full name;

A statement that the applicant has attained the age of majority;

The applicant's current business or mailing address for publication,
and the applicant's current residence address;

The applicant's social security number;

The applicant's educational history and evidence of the education;
The date and place of any conviction of a crime directly related to
the practice of pharmacy, drugs, drug samples, wholesale or retail
drug distribution, or distribution of controlled substances, unless
the conviction has been expunged or annulled or is otherwise
precluded from consideration by section 831-3.1, HRS;

The state or states or United States territory in which the applicant
is currently licensed, and any information regarding any
disciplinary proceedings pending or disciplinary actions taken by
any state or jurisdiction against the license;

A statement that the applicant is a United States citizen or an alien
authorized to work in the United States;

The names, addresses, phone numbers, and social security numbers
of corporate officers or partners or other personnel of the applicant;
Verification that the corporation, partnership, or entity is properly
registered with BREG;

Verification that the trade name, if any, is properly registered with
BREG;

The name and license number of the pharmacist in charge of the
prescription area and the name or names and license number or
numbers of any other pharmacists employed;

The name, position, and title of any person responsible for the
distribution of drugs; and

10



(14)  Any other information the board may require to investigate the

applicant's qualifications for license or permit.

(©) Any requirement that the board provide notice to licensees or
permittees shall be deemed met if notice is sent to the address on file with the
board.

(d)  Any change in the application or of any information filed with the
board shall be reported to the board, in writing, within ten days of the change.

(e) Upon closure of a pharmacy located in this State, the pharmacy
shall:

)] Provide written notice to the board within ten days; and

(2) Return all indicia of licensure. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-

21, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and
comp 06/22/15; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS
§461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-5, 461-6, 461-7, 461-8.6,
461-14, 461-15)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part upon sections
16-95-13 and 16-95-35. [Eff 5/12/64; am and ren §§16 95-13, 16-95-35, 6/22/81;
R 12/24/92]

§16-95-22  Application and requirements for pharmacist license by
examination. (a) An application for license by examination shall be accompanied
by the required application fee, which shall not be refunded, and the examination
fee. An examination fee may be refunded provided a written request for refund is
made prior to the application deadline.

(b)  An applicant shall:

(1)  Have attained the age of majority; and

(2) Hold a degree from a school or college of pharmacy which has

received candidate status with or has been accredited by the ACPE;

(c) For 1ssuance of the license, the applicant shall provide evidence of:

(1) At least fifteen hundred hours of practical experience; and

(2) Passage of either the NABPLEX or the NAPLEX, and the Hawaii

Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination (MPJE). The
MPIE requires a passing score of at least seventy-five points.

(d) An applicant who is a participant in the National Association of
Boards of Pharmacy's (NABP) score transfer program shall be responsible for
having the score report sent to the board.

11



(e) A foreign graduate, in addition to the requirements {above] in
subsections (a) to (d) and in lieu of the candidacy or accreditation requirements by
the ACPE in subsection (b)(2), shall provide verification of passing the following:

(1) The Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination

(FPGEE); and
- {2) The Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL); ([Eff
‘ 5/16/64; am 3/16/80; am and ren §16-95-22, 6/22/81; am and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04: am and comp 06/22/15; am and
comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§§461-5, 461-6)

§16-95-22.5 Application and requirements for pharmacist license by
reciprocity. (a) An application for license by reciprocity shall be filed on forms
provided by the board. The applicant shall submit:

@y Evidence of current and valid licensure to practice pharmacy in
another state or jurisdiction with qualifications which equal or
exceed those of this State;

(2) Information regarding any disciplinary action taken or any
complaints or investigations pending against the applicant;

3 Evidence of having practiced for at least fifteen hundred hours as a
licensed pharmacist within the five years preceding the date of
application; and

4 A completed official NABP licensure transfer application within
ninety days from the date of issuance by the NABP, unless
extended by the NABP.

(b) The board shall not issue a license by reciprocity unless the other

state or jurisdiction grants reciprocal licensure to this state's licensees.

(©) The board may deny licensure by reciprocity if the applicant fails
to fulfill the requirements herein or has had any disciplinary action taken or if any
complaints are pending. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and
comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§461-8.5)

§16-95-23 Temporary license. (a) An application for temporary license
may be filed at the same time as an application for examination and shall be
accompanied by the non-refundable application fee. Following a determination by
the board that the qualifications for admission to the examinations listed in section

12



461-6, [Hawail Revised Statutes] HRS exist, a temporary license to practice
pharmacy may be issued, provided the applicant:

(1) Passes the Hawaii MPJE with a score of at least seventy-five
points; ,

(2)  Submits a verification, by an official of the licensing authority of
that other state or territory of the United States, of a current and
valid license to practice pharmacy in the other state or territory of
the United States; and .

(3) Submits evidence that the applicant has practiced for at least fifteen
hundred hours as a licensed pharmacist within the five years
preceding the date of application.

(b)  The temporary license shall be valid only until the results of the
next administration of the NABPLEX or the NAPLEX examinations are received
by the board.

(c) In the event the pharmacist fails to take and pass either the
NABPLEX or NAPLEX examination, the temporary license may be extended, for
good and just cause, provided a request for extension is made in writing. In no
case shall the temporary license be extended beyond three consecutive
administrations of the examinations. [Eff 5/16/64; am 3/16/80; am and ren §16-
95-23, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;

am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-7) (Tmp: HRS
§8461-4.5, 461-7)

§16-95-24 Pharmacy intern permit, (a) An application for a permit to
work as a pharmacy intern may be filed at any time. The board may delegate to
the board's executive officer the authority to issue a pharmacy intern permit to
qualified applicants.

(b)  An applicant shall provide verification that the applicant [has
satisfactorily completed at least one year of instruction in a college of pharmacy
and] is currently enrolled in or is a graduate of a college of pharmacy which has
received candidate status with or has been accredited by the ACPE.

(c) [A copy of the applicant's diploma, an] An official transcript
showing the date of graduation, or a letter from the dean or registrar that the
applicant [has completed the first year of school] is currently enrolled at [a] an
ACPE accredited college of pharmacy shall be submitted with the application.

(d) The applicant shall provide the name and license number of the
supervising pharmacist and the name and address of the pharmacy at which the
applicant is employed or will be employed. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-24,
6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and

13



comp
5,461-9)

] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-

Historical note: The substance of this section is based substantially upon sections

16-95-44 and 16-95-45. [Eff 5/16/64; am 8/7/70; am 6/11/77; am and ren §§16-
05-44, 16-95-45, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92] '

§16-95-25 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-26 Pharmacy gefmit. (a) An application for a pharmacy permit
shall be filed in duplicate at least fifteen days before a board meeting and must be
accompanied by the application fee which shall not be refunded.

(b)
(D

2
3

)

&)
(6)

The application shall include:

A floor plan of the prescription area which shall diagram the space

and location of fixtures such as counters, tables, drawers, shelves,

storage cabinets including a locked cabinet, library, sink with hot

and cold water, proper sewage outlet, and refrigeration storage

equipment;

The name and license number of the pharmacist in charge and any

other pharmacists employed;

A letter of verification or bill of sale that the pharmacy has been

bought with the effective date of sale if the pharmacy was

purchased;

Evidence that the entity is currently registered with BREG. If a

corporation, partnership, or limited liability company has been

registered for more than one year, a "Certificate of Good Standing”

from the department shall be attached. If a corporation,

partnership, or limited liability company has been registered for

less than one year, a "file-stamped" copy of the document filed

with BREG shall be attached;

Evidence that the trade name, if any, is properly registered with

BREG;

An attestation that, at a minimum, the pharmacy [possess]

possesses or has electronic access to the following reference

materials:

(A)  United States Pharmacopeia National Formulary, and all
supplements;

(B)  Federal Drug Enforcement Administration regulations;

14



©

D)
(EB)

(&)
@

‘State uniform controlled substances laws, chapter 329,

HRS.

State food and drug laws, 328 HRS;

State pharmacy law, chapter 461, HRS, and chapter 16-95
HAR;

Prescription files and;

Drug Facts and Comparison or other current drug
information guide; and

(7 An attestation that, at a minimum, the pharmacy possesses the
following technical equipment and supplies[;]:

(A)

(B)
©)
D)
(E)
)

Class A prescription balance or a balance of greater
sensitivity and appropriate weights;

Mortar and pestle (glass or porcelain);

Refrigerator;

" Bottles and vials of assorted sizes:

Graduates or other similar measuring device; and
Prescription labels.

(c) No permit shall be issued unless all deficiencies have been

corrected and approved by the board.

(d) The board may delegate to its executive officer the authority to
issue a permit upon receipt of a completed application and documentation
evidencing clear compliance with this section. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-
26, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am

and comp
461-12, 461-14)

1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5,

Historical note: The substance of this section is substantially based upon section
16-95-51. [Eff 5/16/64; am 6/11/77; am and ren §16-95-51, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-27 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

- §16-95-28 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-29 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

15



§16-95-30 Wholesale prescription drug distributor license requirements.
(a) Application for a wholesale prescription drug distributor license shall be made
under oath on a form to be provided by the board. In addition to providing
information required by section 16-95-21(b), the applicant shall provide the
following information as it pertains to the applicant including any officer, director,
manager, or other persons in charge of wholesale drug distribution, storage, or

handling:
(1)

(2)
3)
)

&)

(6)

(b)
identify:
(1)
2)
(3)

(c)

Any convictions under any federal, state, or local laws relating to
drug samples, wholesale or retail drug distribution, or distribution
of controlled substances;

Any felony conviction under federal, state, or local laws;

Each person's past experience in the manufacture or distribution of
prescription and controlled drugs;

Any suspension, [revocation,] revocation, disciplinary action, or
pending investigation by any federal, state, or local government of
any license currently or previously held for the manufacture or
distribution of any drugs, including controlled substances;
Verification of at least one year of experience in the distribution or
handling of prescription drugs for any person responsible for the
distribution of drugs; and

A current list of officers, directors, managers, and other persons in
charge of the wholesale distribution, storage, and handling of
prescription drugs, including a description of each person’'s duties
and a summary of each person's qualifications.

A map of the facilities shall also be submitted. The map shall

The storage area for drugs;

The storage area for quarantined drugs; and

The placement of the lighting, ventilation, and temperature control
equipment.

No license shall be issued prior to receipt of a satisfactory

inspection report from the state department of health. At a minimum, the board
requests that the department of health shall ensure that:

(D
()

3)

The facilities are of suitable size and construction to facilitate
cleaning, maintenance, and proper operations;

The storage areas are designed to provide adequate ventilation,
temperature, sanitation, humidity, space, equipment, and security
conditions;

A quarantine area is available for prescription drugs that are
outdated, damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or adulterated, or

16



(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)

(8)
©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

whose immediate or sealed outer or sealed secondary containers

have been opened;

The facility is maintained in a clean and orderly fashion;

The facility is free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or

vermin of any kind;

The facility is secure from unauthorized entry;

Access from outside the premises is kept to a minimum and well

controlled;

The outside perimeter of the premises 1s well-lighted;

Entry into areas where prescription drugs are held is limited to

authorized personnel;

The facilities are equipped with an alarm system to detect entry

after hours;

The facilities are equipped with a security system that will provide

suitable protection against theft and diversion;

All prescription drugs are stored at appropriate temperatures and

under appropriate conditions in accordance with requirements, if

any, in the labeling of the drugs, or in accordance with the
standards regarding conditions and temperatures for the storage of
prescription drugs adopted by the state department of health.

(A) I no storage requirements are established for a prescription
drug, the drug may be held at controlled room temperature,
as defined in the current United States Pharmacopeia
National Formulary and all supplements, to help ensure that
its identity, strength, quality, and purity are not adversely
affected;

(B)  Appropriate manual, electromechanical, or -electronic
temperature and humidity recording equipment, devices, or
logs shall be used to document the proper storage of

~ prescription drugs;

Upon receipt, each outside shipping container of prescription drogs
is examined visually to confirm the identity of the drugs and to
prevent the acceptance of contaminated prescription drugs that are
unfit for distribution. This examination shall be adequate to reveal
container damage that would suggest possible contamination or
other damage to the contents;

Each outgoing shipment of prescription drugs is inspected carefully

to confirm the identity of the drugs and to ensure that no

prescription drugs are delivered that have been damaged in storage
or held under improper conditions; (15) Returned, damaged,

17



(16)

(17)

(d)

outdated, deteriorated, mishandled, or adulterated prescription
drugs are physically separated from other prescription drugs and
stored, in such a way that no cross-contamination or confusion is
possible, until they are destroyed or returned to the supplier;

Any prescription drugs whose immediate or sealed outer or sealed
secondary containers are found upon arrival to have been opened or
used are identified as such, and are physically separated from other
prescription drugs and stored, in such a way that no cross-
contamination or confusion is possible, until they are destroyed or
returned to the supplier; and

If the conditions under which a prescription drug has been returned
cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity, strength, quality, or purity,
then the drug is either destroyed or returned to the supplier, unless
examination, testing, or other investigation proves that the drug
meets appropriate standards of safety, identity, strength, guality,
and purity. In determining whether the conditions under which a
drug has been returned cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity,
strength, quality, or purity, the wholesale distributor shall consider,
among other things, the conditions under which the drug has been
held, stored, or shipped before or during its return and the
condition of the drug and its container, carton, or labeling as a
result of storage or shipping.

Written policies and procedures for the receipt, security, storage,

inventory, and distribution of prescription drugs, including policies and .
procedures for identifying, recording, and reporting losses or thefts and for
correcting all errors and inaccuracies in inventories shall be submitted. Written
policies and procedures shall include: '

(D

()

A procedure whereby the oldest approved stock of a prescription

drug is distributed first. The procedure may permit deviation from

this requirement if the deviation is temporary and appropriate;

A procedure for handling recalls and withdrawals of prescription

drugs. The procedures shall be adequate to deal with recalls and

withdrawals caused by:

(A) Any action initiated at the request of the department of
health, the Food and Drug Administration, or any other
federal, state, or local law enforcement or other government
agency;

(B) Any voluntary action by the manufacturer to remove
defective or potentially defective drugs from the market; or

18



(C)  Any action undertaken to promote public health and safety
by replacing existing merchandise with an improved
product or new package design;

(3) A procedure to ensure that the distributor prepares for, protects
against, and handles properly any crisis that affects security or
operation of any facility in the event of strike, fire, flood, or other
natural disaster, or in other emergencies; and

4) A procedure to ensure that all outdated prescription drugs are
segregated from other drugs and either returned to the
manufacturer or destroyed. This procedure shall require written
documentation of the disposition of outdated prescription drugs.
The documentation shall be maintained for five years after
disposition of the outdated drugs. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp
12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: §461-4.5)

§16-95-31 Miscellaneous permit. An application for a miscellaneous
permit shall be filed at least fifteen days before a board meeting and shall be
accompanied by the application fee, which shall not be refunded, and required
fees. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;

comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-
16)

§16-95-32 Criminal conviction. When an applicant or the applicant's
personnel has been convicted of a crime related to the pharmacy profession and it
is determined that the conviction may be considered under section 831-3.1, HRS,
the board may request the following documents from the applicant:

(1)  Copies of any court records, judgments, orders, or other documents
that state the facts and statutes upon which the applicant was
convicted, the judgment of the court with regard to that conviction,
the sentence imposed, and the record of compliance with the
sentence imposed; and

(2) Affidavits from any parole officer, employer, or other persons who
can attest to a firm belief that the applicant has been sufficiently
rehabilitated to warrant the public trust. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;

comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Tmp: HRS
§6461-4.5, 461-21)

19



§16-95-32.2 Denial or rejection of application. (a) An application for
issuance of a license or permit shall be denied when an application is insufficient
or incomplete; is not accompanied with the required fees; or when an applicant
has failed to provide satisfactory proof that the applicant meets the requirements
for the license or permit. In addition, the board may deny issuance of a license or
permit in accordance with sections 436B-19 and 461-21, HRS, and section 16-95-
110.

(b) An application shall be automatically rejected and the applicant
shall be denied a license or permit when the applicant, after having been notified
to do so: '

(D Fails to pay the appropriate fees within sixty days from

notification; or

(2) After being requested by the board, fails to provide any

information or documentation concerning the requirements for
licensure or permit within sixty days of the request. =

(c) Any application which has been denied or rejected shall remain in
the possession of the board and shall not be returned.

(d)  An applicant, whose application has been denied or rejected, may
file for an administrative hearing pursuant to chapter 91, HRS. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5,
461-5, 461-14, 461-15, 461-21)

SUBCHAPTER 3

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE DOCUMENTATION

§16-95-33 Education documentation for a pharmacist license. (a) The
board will accept the following as verification of education requirements for a

pharmacist:

(1) A certified copy of an official transcript showing the date of
graduation from a college of pharmacy which has received
candidate status with or has been accredited by the ACPE[.]:

2) In lieu of the [above] requirements of paragraph (1), at the time of
application, the board will accept a certified letter from the college
registrar or dean verifying that the applicant is on track to graduate.
However, prior to the issuance of the license, the applicant shall
have complied with chapter 461, HRS, and shall have provided a
certified copy of an official transcript from a college of pharmacy,

20



(b)

which has received candidate status with or has been accredited by
the ACPE and has been conferred a degree.
The board will accept the following as verification of education

requirements from a foreign graduate:

&)

2

A certified copy of the foreign diploma or a certified copy or
official transcript showing the date of graduation from the foreign
college of pharmacy; and

An original or certified copy of the certificates evidencing the
passage of the FPGEE examination. [Eff 5/16/64; am 6/11/77; am
and ren §16-95-33, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92; comp
12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; comp - ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-5)

§16-95-33.2 Education documentation for a pharmacy intern permit. The
board will accept the following as verification of education requirements for a
pharmacy intern permit:

(D)

2)

A [certified copy of a diploma or a] certified copy of an official
transcript showing the date of graduation from a college of
pharmacy which has received candidate status with or has been
accredited by the ACPE; or

A verification letter from the college dean or registrar that the
applicant [has completed the first year of pharmacy school] is
currently enrolled at a school or college of pharmacy which has

received candidate status with or has been accredited by the ACPE.,
[Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;

am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp:
HRS §8461-4.5, 461-5, 461-9)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based substantially upon sections

16-95-44 and 16-95-45. [Eff 5/16/64; am 8/7/70; am 6/11/77; am and ren §§16-
05-44, 16-95-45, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-34 Experience verification for a pharmacist by examination. (a)
An applicant shall have at least fifteen hundred hours of practical experience

under the supervision of a registered pharmacist. Practical experience shall have
been acquired subsequent to graduation or completion of the first year's
attendance at a school or college of pharmacy which has received candidate status
with or has been accredited by the ACPE and may include:

21



(D
2)
3)

4)

(b)

Post graduate experience;
Supervised practice during vacations;
Experience gained concurrent with attendance at a pharmacy

school; and
Experience

gained during pharmacy school coordinated

externships and clinical clerkship programs.
(A)  For purposes of this section, externship means a pharmacy

school
was:
(1)

(ii)

(iii)

@v)

coordinated practical experience program which

Conducted outside the classroom in licensed
pharmacies; '
Developed to provide a broad experience in all
distributive and patient oriented practice tasks;
Supervised by a licensed preceptor or licensed
pharmacist with a one to one teaching and
supervisory relationship between the preceptor or
pharmacist and the extern; and

A component of the pharmacy school's curriculum
for which academic credit is given.

(B) = For purposes of this section, clinical clerkship means a
pharmacy school coordinated practical experience program

which:

@

(i)
(iif)
@iv)

v)

Was conducted in patient care settings where the
student is provided with actual experience in patient
care;

Placed emphasis on all phases of drug therapy
relative to the disease states of individual patierits;
Provided clinical service on either an outpatient or
an inpatient basis as a primary student activity;

May minimize general drug distributive functions;
and ‘

Is a component of the pharmacy school's curriculum
for which academic credit is given.

The board will accept a written statement of practical experience,
signed by an official of the licensing authority of another state, the pharmacy
school, the employing pharmacy, or the supervising pharmacist who is licensed in
any state or territory of the United States, attesting that the applicant worked under
the immediate supervision of the pharmacist in a pharmacy in the United States or
territory of the United States, selling drugs, billing prescriptions, preparing
pharmaceutical preparations, and keeping records and making reports required

22



under state and federal statutes. The statement shall also show the beginning and
ending dates of the applicant's practical experience and the total number of hours
worked.

(c) The board will not accept any pro gratis practical experience hours
granted upon graduation for which an applicant has not actually worked. [Eff
5/16/64; am 6/11/77; am and ren §16-95-34, 6/22/81; am and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and comp 1
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Tmp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-5)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based substantially upon sections

16-95-44, 16-95-45 and 16-95-47. [Eff 5/16/64; am 8/7/70; am 6/11/77; am and
ren §816-95-44, 16-95-45, 16-95-47, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-35 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-36 Experience verification for a pharmacist license by reciprocity
or_temporary pharmacist license. The applicant for a pharmacist license by
reciprocity shall provide proof [or] of current licensure and at least fifteen
hundred hours of practical experience as a registered pharmacist within five years
preceding the date of application in the form of: :

(1) A statement signed by an official of the licensing authority from

another state or territory of the United States, attesting that the
license is current, is valid, unencumbered, and in good standing
and a statement signed by the applicant's employer or employers
attesting that the applicant has practiced pharmacy as a licensed
pharmacist for fifteen hundred hours or more within the five years
preceding the date of application; or

2) If the applicant is self-employed, a statement by the applicant

attesting that the applicant owned and operated an independent
pharmacy and that the applicant has practiced pharmacy as a
licensed pharmacist for fifteen hundred hours or more within the
five years preceding the date of application. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and
comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§§461-4.5, 461-5, 461-8.5)

23



SUBCHAPTER 4 - REPEALED

§16-95-39 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-40 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-41 Repealed. [R 9/28/04]
§16-95-42 Repealed. [R 9/28/04]
§16-95-43 Repealed. [R 9/28/04]

SUBCHAPTER 5 — REPEALED

§16-95-44 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-45 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-46 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-47 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-48 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-49 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-50 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

24



SUBCHAPTER 6 — REPEALED

§16-95-51 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-52 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-53 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-54, Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

SUBCHAPTER 7 — REPEALED

§16-95-55 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-56 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-96-57 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-58 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-59 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-60 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-61 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

§16-95-62 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

25



§16-95-63 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]
§16-95-64 Repealed. [R12/24/92]

SUBCHAPTER 8 — REPEALED

816-95-65 Repealed. [R 12/24/92]

SUBCHAPTER 9
RENEWAL
§16-95-70 Repealed [R 03/12/15]

§16-95-71 Date for filing. All licensees and permit holders shall
complete and submit a renewal application together with the required fees on or

before December 31 of the odd-numbered year. A completed renewal application

with the required fees sent by the United States mail shall be considered timely
filed if the envelope bears a postmark no later than December 31 of the
odd-numbered year or if filed on-line with the department by that date. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04, am and comp 06/22/15;
comp "~ ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §8§461-8,
461-16)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part upon section
16-95-15. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-15, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-72 Automatic forfeiture for failing to renew. The failure to timely
renew the license or permit or to pay the applicable fees or paying fees with a
check which is dishonored upon first deposit shall cause the license or permit to
be automatically forfeited. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04;
comp 06/22/15; comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
88§461-4.5, 461-8, 461-16, Act 196, SLH 1992)

26



§16-95-73 Restoration of forfeited license or permit. (a) A forfeited
pharmacist license may be restored within three years of the forfeiture provided

the applicant:
1)

2)

(b)

Within the first year of the forfeiture:

(A)  Applies for restoration on a from provided by the board;

(B)  Pays the penalty, current biennial and renewal fees; and

(C)  Complies with the continuing education requirements under .
section 461-8, HRS[.]:

Within the second and third year of the forfeiture:

(A)  Applies for restoration on a form provided by the board;

(B)  Submits an official statement signed by the applicant's
employer or employers or if the applicant was self-
employed, a statement signed by the applicant attesting that
the applicant has been employed for a minimum of fifteen
hundred hours as a licensed pharmacist within the five
years preceding the date of application;

(C)  If applicable, provides a statement signed by a licensing
official of each other state or territory of the United States
in which a license is held or once held, indicating that the
license is current, valid, unencumbered, and in good
standing or, if the license is not current, valid, and
unencumbered, [and if] whether any disciplinary action had
been taken against the licensee. The applicant shall be
responsible for obtaining any additional information
required by the board to review the reasons the license is
not current, valid, unencumbered, or in good standing;

(D)  Takes and passes the Hawaii MPJE; [and]

(E)  Pays the penalty, current biennial, and renewal fees: and[;]

& Complies with the continuing education requirements under
section 461-8, HRS.

A forfeited pharmacy or miscellaneous permit, or a wholesale

distributor license may be restored within three years of the forfeiture, provided

the applicant:
(1)
2)
3

“4)

Applies for restoration on a form provided by the board;

Pays all penalty fees, current biennial, and renewal fees;

Submits a signed statement to teport changes, if any, to the
information on file with the board; and

In the case of a wholesale distributor, passes a facility inspection
conducted by the department of health. '

27



(c) The board may deny restoration of a forfeited license or permit if
during the time the license or permit was forfeited, the license or permit holder
engaged in any activities identified in section 436B-19 or 461-21, HRS, or both.

(@) A person whose license or permit has been forfeited and who fails
to restore the license or permit as provided in this section, shall apply as a new
applicant. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am
and comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5,
461-8, 461-16)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based substantially upon sections
16-95-16 and 16-95-17. [Eff 5/16/64; am 3/16/80; am and ren §§16-95-16,
16-95-17, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-74 Board may refuse to renew or restore a license or permit. (a)
The board may refuse to renew or restore a license or permit for failure or refusal
of the licensee or permit holder to:

(1) Properly complete or timely submit the renewal application form

and submit all fees and required documentation;

(2) Meet and maintain the conditions and requirements necessary to

qualify for the issuance of the license or permit; and

3) Comply with chapter 461, HRS, and this chapter.

(b)  An applicant, whose application has not been renewed or restored
for the [above reasons,] reasons stated in subsection (a), may file for an
administrative hearing pursuant to chapter 91, HRS. |[Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

SUBCHAPTER 10
SCOPE OF PRACTICE

§16-95-79 Supervision by a registered pharmacist. (a) A registered
pharmacist shall immediately supervise all activities and operations of a
pharmacy, and immediately supervise the functions and activities of pharmacy
interns and pharmacy technicians to ensure that all functions and activities are
performed in accordance with laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy.

(b) A pharmacist either employed within an institutional facility or
providing services to an institutional facility shall be responsible for ensuring that




the institutional facility establishes, maintains, and operates in accordance with
written policies and procedures as ouflined in section 16-95-80. [Eff and comp
12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-9, 461-10, 461-11, 461-12,
461-13)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part on section 16-95-46.
[Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-46, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-80 Physical presence of a registered pharmacist. (a) A registered
pharmacist shall be physically present during the hours of operation of a
prescription area.

(b) At any time a registered pharmacist is not in the prescription area,
(except in cases of emergencies), the entire stock of prescription drugs shall be
secured from access to unauthorized persons and the means of access shall only be
in the control of the pharmacist.

(c) A pharmacist in an institutional pharmacy shall ensure that written
- policies and procedures have been established by the institutional facility for
providing drugs to the medical staff and other authorized personnel of the
institutional facility by use of night cabinets, and access to the institutional
pharmacy and emergency kits when the pharmacist is not in the area. A "night
cabinet” is a cabinet, room, or any other enclosure not located within the
prescription area. The written policies and procedures shall provide that a
pharmacist shall be "on call" during those periods when night cabinets are utilized
and shall provide policies and procedures regarding the following:

(D) Security of the night cabinet to ensure that the night cabinet is
sufficiently secured to deny access to unauthorized persons by
force or otherwise;

(2) The development and maintenance of an inventory listing of all
drugs included in the cabinet and the requirement that the
pharmacist ensures, at a minimum, that:

(A)  Drugs available therein are properly labeled;

(B)  Only prepackaged drugs are available therein in amounts
sufficient for immediate therapeutic requirements; and

(C) An appropriate practitioner's prescription regarding the
dispensing of drugs exists[.];

3 Access to the pharmacy. In the event a drug is not available from
floor supplies or night cabinets and the drug is required to treat the
immediate needs of a patient whose health would otherwise be

29



jeopardized, the drug may be obtained from the institutional

pharmacy in accordance with this subsection.  Authorized

personnel may remove drugs therefrom provided:

(A)  The authorized personnel are designated, in writing, by the
institutional facility;

(B) The authorized personnel have been instructed by the.
pharmacist of the proper methods of access, and the records
and procedures regarding removal of the drugs; and

(C)  The authorized personnel are required to complete a form
which shall include the patient's name and room number,
the name of drug, drug strength, dosage, quantity of drug
removed, date, time, and the signature of the authorized
personnel[.]; and

4) The prompt detection, removal, disposal, handling, and
replacement, if possible, of a drug [which]_that has been recalled
by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or the manufacturer to
ensure .that recalled drugs are removed from the pharmacy's
inventory, emergency kit, night cabinet, remote dispensing
machine, or from the patient if deemed necessary according to the

federal and manufacturer's guidelines. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;

comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and

comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS

§8461-1, 461-4.5, 461-9, 461-10, 461-11, 461-12)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part on section 16-95-4.
[Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-4, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-81 Emergency kits. (a) A pharmacist may provide emergency kits
to an institutional facility which does not have an institutional pharmacy to meet
the immediate therapeutic needs of patients.

(b) The pharmacist and the medical staff of the institutional facility
shall jointly determine the drugs, and quantity, to be included in the emergency
kit.

(c) The exterior of emergency kits shall be labeled by the pharmacist
to clearly indicate that the kit is an emergency drug kit. [there] There shall be 2
listing of the drugs contained in the emergency kit, including name, strength,
quantity, and expiration date of the drugs, which shall be maintained and kept in
an accessible location near to the emergency kit, along with the name, address,
and telephone number of the supplying pharmacy.

30



(d) All drugs contained within the emergency kit shall be labeled to
identify, at a minimum, the brand or generic name, strength, route of
administration, if other than oral, quantity, source, manufacturer, if generic, lot
number, expiration date, and other information as may be required by the medical
staff of the institutional facility to prevent any misunderstanding or risk of harm to
the patients of the facility. . ,

(e) On or before the earliest expiration date of any drug contained in
the emergency kit, the pharmacist shall replace any expired drugs, relabel, and
reseal the kit.

() The pharmacist shall ensure that the institutional facility has
established written policies and procedures which shall provide, but not be limited
to, policies and procedures covering:

(1) Storage of emergency kits in secured areas which shall be in an

environment for preservation of the drugs;

2) Procedures to ensure that drugs are removed only pursuant to a
valid prescription or practitioner's order and recordation of any
removal; and

(3) Procedures to notify the pharmacist within twenty-four hours of
any removal of any drug from the emergency kit. [Eff and comp
12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§§461-1,461-9, 461-10, 461-11, 461-12)

§16-95-82 Valid prescriptions. (a) A pharmacist may fill and dispense
prescriptions provided the prescription is valid. A valid prescription shall be
legibly written and contain, at [the] a minimum, the following information:

() The date of issuance;

(2) The original signature of the practitioner;

(3) The practitioner's name and business address;

(4)  The name, strength, quantity, and specific instructions for the drug

to be dispensed;

(5)  The name and address of the person for whom the prescription was
written or the name of the animal and address of the owner of the
animal for which the drug is prescribed, unless the pharmacy filling
the prescription has such address on file;

(6) The room number and route of administration if the patient is in an
institutional facility; and

(7) If refillable, the number of allowable refills.

31



(b)  Except where a written prescription is required by la\;v; a
practitioner or the practitioner's agent may use a phone order, provided:

(1) Only a pharmacist or a pharmacy intern shall receive the oral

prescription;

(2) The oral prescription shall be immediately reduced to writing,

including the practitioner's oral code designation, by the pharmacist
- or pharmacy intern and shall be kept on file for five years; and
3) The oral prescription contains all of the information required under
subsection (a).

(c) A faxed prescription for a noncontrolled substance sent by a
practitioner or the practitioner's agent is acceptable provided it contains all of the
information required under subsection (a) and is kept on file for five years.

(d) Any pharmacist shall comply with any applicable state or federal
laws or rules governing the validity of prescriptions. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04 ; am and comp 06/22/15; am and comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-11, 461-13)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part upon sections 16~
959 and 16-95-10. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §§16-95-9, 16-95-10, 6/22/81;
R 12/24/92]

§16-95-83 Substitution; drug product selection. (a) It shall be unlawful to
dispense a different drug in place of the drug prescribed without the express
consent of the person prescribing.

_ (b) Drug product selection shall comply with part VI of chapter 328,

HRS. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§328-92, 328-
94, 328-97, 328-98, 461-11, 461-13, 328)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based in part upon section 16-95-
83 is based substantially upon §16-95-11. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §16-95-11,
6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-84 Transfer of prescriptions. (a) Transfers of prescription
information for the purpose of initial fill or refill dispensing is permissible
between pharmacies provided the pharmacist transferring the prescription
provides all information necessary for a valid prescription, and records on the
prescription, the name and location of the pharmacy receiving the prescription, the

32



name of the pharmacist receiving the prescription information, the date of transfer,
and the name of the pharmacist transferring the prescription, or [note] notes the
pharmacist's name on the electronic files, and [record] records that the
prescription 1S inactivated or made void for future refills at the location from
which it is being transferred.

(b) © The pharmacist receiving the transferred prescription information
shall indicate the name of the pharmacist transferring the prescription as well as
the transferring pharmacist's or pharmacy name, the transferring pharmacy's name,
location, and original prescription number, the original date the prescription was
written, the number of refills or quantity remaining on the prescription, and the
last date the prescription was filled.

(c) All records of transferred prescriptions shall be maintained for a
period of five years from the date of filling or refilling. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-10, 461-11, 461-13)

§16-95-85 Scope of practice of a pharmacy intern. A pharmacy intern
may perform all functions under the definition of “practice of pharmacy” as stated

in section 461-1, HRS, except where prohibited by any state or federal law or rule
and excluding the final drug verification before it is dispensed. The pharmacy
intern shall at all times be under the immediate supervision of a licensed or
registered  pharmacist. [Eff and comp 06/22/15; am  and
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461.9) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-9)

§16-95-86 Scope of practice of a pharmacy technician. A pharmacy
technician may perform the following tasks, not requiring professional judgment,
under the immediate supervision of a pharmacist:

(D Process prescription labels, drug packaging, stocking, delivery,
record keeping, pricing, documentation of third party
reimbursements, and preparing, labeling, compoundmg, storing,
and providing medication; and

(2)  Medication preparation is permissible provided that the pharmacy
technician:

(A) Has a working knowledge of the pharmaceutical medical
terms, abbreviations, and symbols commonly used in the
prescribing, dispensing, and charting of medications;

(B) Is able to perform the arithmetic calculations required for
the usual dosage determination and solution preparation;

33



©

(D)
(E)

(F)

Has a thorough knowledge and understanding of the
pharmacy technician's duties and responsibilities, including

:-standards of ethics and applicable laws and regulations

governing the practice of pharmacy;

Has a working knowledge of drug dosages, route of
administration, and dosage forms and therapeutics;

Has a working knowledge of the procedures and operations
relating to the manufacturing, packaging, and labeling of
drug products; and

Has an appropriate working knowledge of the procedures
and operations relating to aseptic compounding and
parenteral admixture operations. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp:
HRS §§461-9, 461-10, 461-11)

§16-95-87 Return or exchange of drugs prohibited. No prescription drug
shall be accepted for return or exchange after the drug has been taken from the
premises where dispensed or sold by prescription. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp
12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS
§461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-11) ‘

Historical note: Section 16-95-87 is substantially identical to section 16-95-12.
[Eff 5/15/64; am and ren §16-95-12, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

SUBCHAPTER 11

RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS

§16-95-93 Records of dispensing. (a) Records of dispensing for original
and refill prescriptions are to be made and kept by pharmacies for five years and,
in addition to the requirements of section 16-95-82, shall include but not be
limited to the following: ‘

Quantity prescribed and quantity dispensed,

Date of dispensing; ,

Serial number or, if an institution, equivalent control system;
Identification of the pharmacist responsible for dispensing; and
Record of refills to date.

(1)
(2)
3)
4
&)

34



(b)  An institutional pharmacy will have fulfilled the requirements of
this section if the information required by [paragraphs (1) to (4) of subsection (a)]
subsection (a)(1) to (4) is kept on accurate patient profiles or medication
administration records showing all drugs administered to the patient for five years;
and the institutional facility keeps the original patient charts evidencing the
prescription orders and medication administration records in the institutional
facility's files for at least five years. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am
and comp 06/22/15; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5)
(Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-10, 461-11, 461-13)

§16-95-94 Automated data processing systems. As an alternative to
procedures set forth in section16-95-93, an ADP system may be employed for the
record keeping system provided the following conditions have been met:

(1) The ADP system shall have the capability of producing hard copy
documents of all drug orders of original and refilled prescription
information. The hard copy produced must be of a print size that
1s readable without the aid of any special device;

(2) Information to be kept on the ADP system shall include, but not be
limited to the information required in section 16-95-82, valid
prescriptions, and section 16-95-93, records of dispensing;

(3) The pharmacist responsible for entries into the ADP system shall
ensure that the information entered into the computer is accurate
and complete;

“4) The documentation used to satisfy the above requirements shall be
provided to the pharmacy within seventy-two hours of the date of
dispensing;

(5) An auxiliary record keeping system shall be established for the
documentation of refills in the event the ADP system is inoperative
for any reason. The auxiliary system shall ensure that all refills are
authorized by the original prescription and that the maximum
number of refills is not exceeded. When the ADP system is
restored to operation, the information regarding drug orders and
prescriptions filled and refilled during the inoperative period shall
be entered in the ADP system within ninety-six hours;

(6) Any pharmacy using an ADP system shall comply with all

-applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations; and

7 A pharmacy shall make arrangements with the supplier of data
processing services or materials to assure that the pharmacy
continues to have adequate and complete records for any drug

35



order, prescription, and dispensing if- the relationship with such
supplier terminates for any reason. The pharmacy shall assure
continuity in the maintenarnce of records. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS
§8461-9, 461-10, 461-11, 461-12, 461-13)

$16-95-95 Security of records. To maintain the confidentiality of patient's
prescriptions or drug orders, there shall exist adequate safeguards for security of
the records whether kept manually or in an ADP system. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15; comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-
4.5) (Tmp: HRS §§461-9,461-10, 461-11, 461-12, 461-13)

§16-95-96 Record keeping for wholesale prescription drug distributors.
(a) Wholesale distributors shall establish and maintain inventories and records of
all transactions regarding the receipt and distribution or other disposition of
prescription drugs. These inventories and records shall include the following
information:

(D) The source of the drugs, including the name and principal address
of the seller or transferor, and the address of the location from
which the drugs were shipped;

(2) The identity and quantity of the drugs received and distributed or
disposed of; and

3) The dates of receipt and distribution or other disposition of the
drugs. =

(b) The wholesale distributor shall also maintain records to reflect:

(D Storage. All prescription drugs shall be stored at appropriate
temperatures and under appropriate conditions in accordance with
the requirements, if any, in the labeling of the drugs, or in
accordance with the standards regarding conditions and
temperatures for the storage of prescription drugs.

(A)  If no storage requirements are established for a prescription
drug, the drug may be held at controlled room temperature,
as defined in an official compendium, to help ensure that its
identity, strength, quality, and purity are not adversely

_ affected.

(B)  Appropriate ‘manual, electromechanical, or electronic

temperature and humidity recording equipment, devices, or

36



2)

3)

logs shall be used to document the proper storage of
prescription drugs.

Examination of materials.

(A)

(B)

Documentation shall be maintained for at least five years
demonstrating that each outside shipping container of
prescription drugs was examined visually to confirm the
identity of the drugs and to prevent the acceptance of
contaminated prescription drugs or prescription drugs that
are otherwise unfit for distribution shall be maintained.
This examination shall be adequate to reveal container
damage that would suggest possible contamination or other
damage to the contents.

Documentation shall be maintained for at least five years
demonstrating that each outgoing shipment of prescription
drugs was inspected carefully to confirm the identity of the
drugs and to ensure that no prescription drugs were
delivered that have been damaged in storage or held under
improper conditions.

Returned, damaged, outdated, deteriorated, misbranded, and
adulterated prescription drugs.

(A)

(B)

(©)

Prescription drugs that are damaged, outdated, deteriorated,
misbranded, or adulterated shall be physically separate from
other prescription drugs and stored, in such a way that no
cross-contamination or confusion are possible, until they
are destroyed or returned to the supplier.

Any prescription drugs whose immediate or sealed outer or
sealed secondary containers are found upon arrival to have
been opened or used shall be identified as such, and shall
be physically separated from other prescription drugs and
stored, in such a way that no cross-contamination or
confusion are possible, until they are destroyed or returned
to the supplier.

If the conditions under which a prescription drug has been
returned cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity, strength,
quality, or purity, then the drug shall be either destroved or
returned to the supplier, unless examination, testing, or
other investigation proves that the drug meets appropriate
standards of safety, identity, strength, quality, and purity.
In determining whether the conditions under which a drug
has been returned cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity,

57



quality, or purity, the wholesale distributor shall consider,
among other things, the conditions under which the drug
has been held, stored, or shipped before or during its return
and the condition of the drug and its container, carton, or
labeling as a result of storage or shipping.

(c) Inventories and records shall be made available for inspection and
photocopying by the department or any authorized federal, state, or local law
enforcement officials for a period of five years following disposition of the drugs.

(d) Records described in this section that are kept at the inspection site
or that can be retrieved immediately by computer or other electronic means shall
be readily available for authorized inspection during the retention period. Records
kept at a central location apart from the inspection site and not electronically
retrievable shall be made available for inspection within two working days of a
request by the department or any authorized official of a federal, state, or local law
enforcement agency. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp
06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5)

SUBCHAPTER 12
ADVERTISING PRACTICES

§16-95-101 Procedures to advertise prescription drugs. (a) Advertising
of prescription drugs is to provide the public with information in a manner
consistent with public health and safety. Prescription drug advertising is for the
purpose of providing information and not to creafe a demand for drugs. A
pharmacy, if it chooses to advertise, will advertise prescription prices, drugs, and
reference to prescription prices and drugs in accordance with this section:

(1) A pharmacy may post its prices for prescription drugs on a

: prescription price poster. The form of the posting shall be
legible[.]1;

(2) A pharmacy may advertise prescription prices by publication or
display in any media. For purposes of this section, "media"
includes but is not limited to newspapers, magazines, calling cards,
and directories, including all listings in telephone directories[.];

(3)  Any advertisement for prescription drugs shall be made in three
commonly prescribed quantities[.];

4) Any advertisement for prescription drugs or prices shall be truthful,
reasonable, fully informative, and understandable to the public and
shall not be false or misleading|.]:

38



(5) Any advertisement for prescription drugs shall state the time period

during which the prices advertised will be effective[.]; end

(b)  The price for prescription drugs advertised shall not be below cost
as defined in section 481-3, HRS, as amended.

(c) A pharmacist or the pharmacist's agent upon request however
communicated to the pharmacist shall give the current price for any drug sold at
the pharmacist's pharmacy for informational purposes only and the price quoted
shall not be false or misleading but must be truthful, reasonable, informative, and
understandable to the public. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and
comp 06/22/15; am and comp . ] (Auth: HRS §8461-1, 461-
4.5,461-21) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-21)

Historical note: The substance of this section is substantially identical to sections
16-95-5, 16-95-6 and 16-95-7. [Eff 5/16/64; 9/1/74; am 2/3/78; am and ren §§16-
95-5, 16-95-6, 16-95-7, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-102 Procedures to advertise related pharmacy services.
Advertising of related pharmacy services is to provide the public with information
in a manner consistent with public health and safety and shall be truthful,
reasonable, fully informative, and understandable to the public and shall not be
false or misleading. A pharmacy may advertise that it performs the following
services:

(1) Personal medication record. To qualify as providing this service, a
system must be maintained which enables the immediate retrieval
of information concerning individual pharmacy patients which is of
sufficient scope to enable a determination by the pharmacist of
rational drug utilization. In accomplishing this purpose the design
and use of the system must be to ascertain and record all patient
information necessary to assist the pharmacist in avoiding adverse
drug reactions, drug-drug interactions, and inappropriate use of
drugs. '

(2) Professional consultation with patient and practitioners. The

‘ availability of patient consultation means that the pharmacist
routinely informs the patient, either directly or indirectly, on what
the patient is taking, how to take it, what to expect, what special
precautions should be observed, and how the medication is to be
properly stored. This service is to assure that the patient
understands the proper use of the drug and that the practitioner's
intentions will materialize in a drug regimen of optimal

30



effectiveness, safety, and duration. Practitioner consultation

denotes the availability and practice of pharmacists acting as drug

information specialists who discuss with practitioners drug effects

interactions, side effects, and drugs of choice for diseased
. conditions.

3) "Emergency prescription service" means the providing of
pharmaceutical services, which includes prescription dispensing, at
any time after usual pharmacy hours. This means that a pharmacist
is available, can be readily contacted, and will respond with
reasonable expediency at any hour, day or night, in a manner
consistent with security and personal safety.

Should the pharmacy choose to advertise the performance of the foregoing
services, it shall conform with the definition of that service as herein set forth.
[Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-1,
461-4.5,461-21)

Historical note: The substance of this section is based substantially on section
16-95-5. [Eff 5/16/64; am 2/3/78; am and ren §16-95-5, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-103 Advertising of controlled substances prohibited. No person
shall advertise or promote to the public in any manner the sale of a Scheduled II,
II0, IV, or V controlled substance as defined in the Federal Controlled Substances
Act and the rules promulgated thereunder as well as any other controlled
substances as defined in chapter 329, HRS, as amended, and the rules
promulgated thereunder by the state department of health. [Eff and comp
12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth:
HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

Historical note: The substance of this section is substantially identical to section
16-95-8. [Eff 9/1/74; am 2/3/78; am and ren §16-95-8, 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

40



SUBCHAPTER 13

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS, APPLICATION DENIAL, HEARINGS,

ADMINISTRATIVE PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE

§16-95-110 Grounds for revocation. suspension, refusal to renew or
restore, denial, or conditioning of license or permit. (a) In addition to any other

acts or conditions provided by law, the board may revoke, suspend, refuse to
renew or restore, deny, or condition a license or permit for any one or more of the
following acts or omissions:

(1
2)

3)

@)

)
(6)
(7
(8)
®)
(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)

Procuring a license or permit through misrepresentation or deceit;
Failing to meet or maintain the requirements or conditions
necessary to qualify for license or permit;

Conviction of, or pleading nolo contendere to a crime that is
substantially related to the qualification, functions, or duties of a
pharmacist;

Committing any act or omission in the practice of pharmacy or
wholesale distribution which constitutes dishonesty, fraud, or
misrepresentation with the intent to substantially benefit the
pharmacist or wholesale distributor or with the intent to
substantially injure another person;

Aiding or abetting an unlicensed person to directly or indirectly
evade chapter 461, HRS, or this chapter;

Failing to maintain records or to make accessible any records as
required in subchapter 11;

Violating any provisions of the department of health or department
of public safety;

Except as provided by law, accepting returns or exchanges of
prescription drugs after the drugs have been dispensed;

Dispensing a different drug or brand in place of the drug or brand
prescribed without the express consent of the person prescribing;
Failing to comply with the state's drug formulary or substitution
laws as set forth in part VI of chapter 328, HRS;

Professional misconduct, gross carelessness, or manifest
incapacity;

Violation of any state or federal law, including violation of a drug,
controlled substance, or poison law;

False, fraudulent, or deceptive advertising;

Making a false statement on any document submitted or required to
be filed by this chapter;

41



(15)  Habitual intemperance or addiction to the use of habit-forming
drugs;

(16)  Violating the provisions of chapter 461, HRS, this chapter, or any
order of the board;

(17)  Failure to comply with the pharmaceutical compounding
requirements found in [Chapters] chapters 795 (nonsterile
preparations) and 797 (sterile preparations) of the United States
Pharmacopeia National Formulary, as amended;

(18)  Failure to report, in writing to the licensing authority, any
disciplinary decision issued against the licensee or the applicant in
another jurisdiction within thirty days of the disciplinary decision.

(b) The board may make recommendations regarding quality
improvements to prevent or minimize errors. The board may also fine or impose
conditions or limitations upon a license or permit. A hearing on that fine,
condition, or limitation may be conducted in accordance with chapter 91, HRS.
The violation of any condition or limitation on a license or permit may be cause to
impose additional sanctions against the licensee or permittee. Any fine imposed
by the board after a hearing in accordance with chapter 91, HRS, shall be no less
than $100 and no more than $1,000 for each violation, and each day of violation
may be deemed a separate violation. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am
and comp 06/22/15; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5)
(Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-17, 461-21, 461-22,)

§16-95-111 Denial. In the event an application for the issuance of a
license or permit or for the reinstatement thereof is denied, the board shall notify
the applicant by letter of the board's action which shall include a concise
statement of the reasons therefor and a statement informing the applicant of the
applicant's right to a hearing if the applicant so desires. [Eff and comp 12/24/92;
comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15; comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-
4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 461-8, 461-14, 461-21, 461-22)

Historical note: The substance of this section is substantially identical to section
16-95-27. [Eff 5/ 16/64; am and ren §16-95-27; 6/22/81; R 12/24/92]

§16-95-112 Demand for hearing: proceedings upon demand for hearing.
(a) Any person whose application for a license or permit or whose application for
the reinstatement of a license or permit has been denied by the board shall be

42



entitled to a hearing, provided that a demand for a hearing is filed with the board
within sixty days of the date of denial of the application.

(b) If a demand for hearing is filed within the time prescribed, the
board shall order a hearing in accordance with chapter 91, HRS, relating to
contested cases and unless the context otherwise requires, the rules set forth in
chapter 16-201, the rules.of practice and procedure of the department. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15,
comp 1 (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§91-9, 91-9.5,
91-10,91-11, 91-12, 461-4.5, 461-21)

Historical note: The substance of this section is substantially identical to sections
16-95-28 and 16-95-29. [Eff 5/16/64; am and ren §§16-95-28, 16-95-29, 6/22/81;
R 12/24/92]

§16-95-113 Administrative practice and procedure. The rules of practice
and procedure for pharmacies and pharmacists shall be as provided in chapter
16-201, the rules of practice and procedure of the department as adopted, and as
may subsequently be amended, which are incorporated by reference and made a
part of this chapter. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 461-4.5)

SUBCHAPTER 14
ORAL TESTIMONY

§16-95-118 Oral testimony. (a) The board shall accept oral testimony on
any item which is on the agenda, provided that the testimony shall be subject to
the following conditions:

(1) Each person seeking to present oral testimony is requested to notify
the board not later than forty-eight hours before the meeting, and at
that time to state the item on which testimony is to be presented;

(2) The board may request that any person providing oral testimony
submit the remarks, or a summary of the remarks, in writing to the
board; )

3) The board may rearrange the items on the agenda for the purpose
of providing for the most efficient and convenient presentation of
oral testimony;

43



4) Persons presenting oral testimony at the beginning of the testimony
shall identify themselves and the organization, if any, that they
represent;

(5) The board may limit oral testimony to a specified time period but
in no case shall the period be less than five minutes, and the person
testifying shall be informed prior to the commencement of the
testimony of the time constraints to be imposed; and

(6) The board may refuse to hear any testimony which is irrelevant,
immaterial, or unduly repetitious to the agenda item on which it is
presented.

(b) Nothing in this section shall require the board to hear or receive
any oral or documentary evidence from a person on any matter which is the
subject of another proceeding pending subject to the hearings relief, declaratory
relief, or rule relief provisions of chapter 16-201.

(c) Nothing in this section shall prevent the board from soliciting oral
remarks from persons present at the meeting or from inviting persons to make
presentations to the board on any particular matter on the board's agenda. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15; comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§92-3, 461-4.5)

SUBCHAPTER 15
FEES

8§16-95-123 Fees established. The fees are as established in chapter
16-53. The fees for wholesale prescription drug distributors license shall be the-
same fees as established for a pharmacy in chapter 16-53. [Eff and
comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15; comp ]
(Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §§461-4.5, 26-9) '

§16-95-124 Form of fee. The fees, if in the form of a money order or
check, shall be made payable to the department [of commerce and consumer
affairs]. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; am and comp 06/22/15; am and
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

44



§16-95-125 Dishonored checks considered failure to meet requirements.
The dishonoring of any check upon first deposit shall be considered a failure to
meet requirements. [Eff and comp 12/24/92; comp 12/25/04; comp 06/22/15;
comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5) (Imp: HRS §461-4.5)

SUBCHAPTER 16
EMERGENCY CONTRACEPTION COLLABORATIVE AGREEMENT

§16-95-130 Emergency contraception written collaborative agreement. (a)
Each arrangement between a licensed pharmacist and a licensed physician relating
to the distribution to a patient of emergency contraception drugs shall be
documented in a signed collaborative agreement in accordance with the form
attached hereto as Exhibit [“A”] A entitled “Emergency Contraception Drug
Therapy Collaborative Agreement” dated [1204] December 2004, located at the
end of this chapter and made a part of this chapter. The agreement shall be
delivered to the board by the licensed pharmacist within ten days of the execution
of the agreement by the pharmacist and the physician.

(b) Before a pharmacist may participate in the collaborative
agreement, the pharmacist shall have completed an emergency contraception
training course approved by the ACPE, curriculum-based programs from an
ACPE-accredited college of pharmacy, applicable state or local health department
programs, or programs recognized by the board of pharmacy. Training shall
include procedures listed in Exhibit [“A”] A, entitled, “Emergency Contraception
Drug Therapy Collaborative Agreement”, dated December 2004 and located at the
end of this chapter, the management of the sensitive communications often
encountered in emergency contraception, providing service to minors, quality
assurance, referral for additional services, and documentation,

(c) By executing the collaborative agreement, both the physician and
pharmacist agree and acknowledge that:

(1) They accept the responsibility for the distribution of the emergency
contraception drugs and that the licensed pharmacist shall dispense
only certain drugs approved for emergency contraception by the
United States Food and Drug Administration. Some of the
currently approved drugs are listed in the attached Exhibit [“B”] B
entitled [brands and doses,] “Brands and Doses”, dated [0814]
August 2004, located at the end of this chapter and made a part of
this chapter however, drugs approved for emergency contraception
are not limited to this list. Other drugs listed in Exhibit [“B”] B

45



(2)

3)

)

(d)

entitled “Brands and Doses”, dated August 2004 and located at the

end of this chapter, may be dispensed instead of Plan B® in the

following circumstances:

(A) Plan B® is unavailable;

(B)  Plan B® is not covered under the patient's health insurance
plan and another drug listed in Exhibit ['B”] B is covered;
or

(C)  The patient chooses another listed drug after the pharmacist
advises the patient that side effects are usually less with
Plan B®.

The list of approved drugs in Exhibit [“B”] B also shall include

adjunctive drugs for treatment of nausea and vomiting that may be

associated with emergency contraceptives;

The licensed pharmacist shall provide the patient with drug

information concerning dosage, potential adverse side effects, and

follow-up contraceptive care;

The collaborative agreement shall be effective for a period of at

least two years from the date of its delivery to the board, unless

rescinded in writing by either the physician or the pharmacist, with
written notice to the other and the board, or unless the pharmacy
board invalidates the agreement or changes the terms of the
agreement. After the two year period, the agreement shall continue
to be valid from month to month unless rescinded, invalidated, or
changed as provided herein. The licensed pharmacist or the

licensed physician, who rescinds the agreement, shall notify the

board within three business days of the rescission. At the time the
collaborative agreement is rescinded, the licensed pharmacist shall
not have prescriptive authority to dispense emergency
contraceptives until another collaborative agreement with a
physician is completed and received by the board; and

Each drug therapy prescription authorized by the physician and
dispensed by the pharmacist shall be documented in a patient
profile. :

Additionally, the collaborative agreement between the licensed

pharmacist and licensed physician shall include:

(1
(2)

The name, address, and phone number of the licensed pharmacist
and pharmacy and the signature of the licensed pharmacist;

The name, address, and phone number of the licensed physician
and the signature of the licensed physician;

46



(3)  The purpose of the collaborative agreement, which is to permit
emergency contraception drug therapy within one hundred [and]
twenty hours of the patient having unprotected sexual contact and
to ensure that the patient receives appropriate information from the
licensed pharmacist regarding the drug therapy;

(4) The procedures, delineated in Exhibit [“A”] A, to be followed by
the licensed pharmacist when the patient requests drug therapy,
including any applicable referrals;

(5)  Any limitation agreed upon by both the licensed pharmacist and
the licensed physician including{,] but not limited to[,] approved
drugs that may not be prescribed to the patient or whether the
licensed pharmacist's or the licensed physician's decision shall
control in the event of a disagreement on the prescription for a
patient; -

(6) A provision that the licensed pharmacist shall refer the patient to a
licensed physician;

(7) A statement that the label placed on the drug therapy product shall
contain the names of both the pharmacist and the physician signers
of this [Agreement] agreement;

(8) An informed consent, included in Exhibit [“A”] A, to be used by
the licensed pharmacist to inform the patient about the emergency
contraception drug therapy. The informed consent shall be signed
by both the licensed pharmacist and the patient; and

©) A screening checklist for emergency contraception pills, included
in Exhibit [“A”] A, to be filled in by the patient and signed by both
the licensed pharmacist and the patient.

(e) Any modification to an existing collaborative agreement previously
delivered to the board shall be submitted to the board by the licensed pharmacist
at least ten working aays prior to the intended implementation of the changed
collaborative agreement.

(H) The board shall have the authority to reject a collaborative
agreement if the board determines that the collaborative agreement is not in
compliance with this section or is not in the best interests of the patient.

(g) The form of the collaborative agreement, the informed consent
form, and the screening checklist for emergency contraception drugs attached as
Exhibit [“A”] A hereto, shall be made available by the board to licensed
pharmacists and licensed physicians.” [Eff and comp 12/25/04; am and
comp 06/22/15; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §461-4.5)
(Imp: HRS §461-1)

47



2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed. New
material is underscored.

3. Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments and
compilation are not underscored.

4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 16-95, Hawaii
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the
Lieutenant Govemor.

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules drafted in the Ramseyer
format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes,
which were adopted on "~ and filed with the Office of the
Lieutenant Governor.

KERRI OKAMURA
Chairperson, Board of Pharmacy

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Attorney General

43



Chapter 16-95

EXHIBIT [“A”]'A

Emergency Contraception Drug Therapy Collaborative Agreement

As a licensed physician authorized to prescribe medications in the State of Hawaii, I authorize the
licensed pharmacist to initiate emergency contraception drug
therapy according to the terms and conditions that follows and according to Hawaii Administrative Rule
§16-95-130. This Agreement provides written terms and conditions for initiating emergency
contraception drug therapy in accordance with the laws and rules of the State of Hawaii. This agreement
shall be delivered to the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs within seven (7) days of the
execution of the agreement by the licensed pharmacist and the licensed physician. Any modification to
an existing collaborative agreement previously delivered to the Department shall be delivered also to the
Department by the licensed pharmacist at least ten working days prior to the intended implementation of
the changed collaborative agreement. '

Purpose: Permit the use of drug therapy within 120 hours of the patient having unprotected sexual
contact and to ensure the patient receives adequate information to successfully complete drug therapy.

Procedures: When the patient's pharmacist requests drug therapy, the pharmacist shall assess the need
for drug therapy and/or referral for contraceptive care and reproductive health care. The pharmacist shall
determine the following:

The date of the patient’s last menstrual period to rule out established pregnancy;
Whether the elapsed time since unprotected intercourse is less than 120 hours;
‘Whether the patient has been a victim of sexual assault; and

That the patient is at least 14 years of age.

A gl R b

Referrals: The licensed pharmacist shall refer the patient to the licensed physician for follow-up.
If drug therapy services are not available at the pharmacy, the pharmacist shall refer the patient to
another licensed pharmacist. Also, the pharmacist shall refer the patient to see either a medical doctor or
family planning clinic provider if:

A. The pharmacist cannot rule out that the patient is pregnant or if the elapsed time since the
patient having unprotected intercourse is greater than 120 hours;

B. The pharmacist is concerned that the patient may have been exposed to a sexually

transmitted disease;

The patient does not have a regular contraceptive method; and

The patient does not have a health care provider and needs free or low cost family planning

services.

o0

This Emergency Contraception Drug Therapy collaborative Agreement was developed using the collaborative agreements of
Washington and California, who developed their guidelines from the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists and
the World Health Organization and physicians, pharmacists and nurses. This Agreement has been approved by the Board of
Pharmacy, State of Hawaii.

December 2004 Page 1 of 6



If the pharmacist is concerned that the patient may have contracted a sexually transmitted disease through
unprotected sexual activity and/or if the patient indicates that she has been sexually assaulted, the
pharmacist may recommend referral to a medical doctor, a family planning clinic, a sexual assault
treatment center, the police, or multiple referrals to these entities as the pharmacist may deem
appropriate, while providing drug therapy.

While drug therapy can be used repeatedly without serious health risks, patients who request drug
therapy shall be referred to a medical doctor or family planning clinic provider for consideration of the
use of a regular contraceptive method. '

Drug Therapy product selection: The pharmacist shall provide medication from a list of drugs approved
for emergency contraception by the United States Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") listed in
Exhibit "B" and agreed upon as part of this collaborative Agreement. Plan B® shall be the preferred
drg therapy. The list shall include emergency contraceptives and adjunctive medications for treatment
of nausea and vomiting associated with emergency contraceptives. The list shall be maintained at the
pharmacy and shared by all participants in the agreement. Along with the medication, the pharmacist
shall provide drug information concerning dosage, potential adverse effects, and follow-up contraceptive
care. -

Prescription labeling: The label placed on the drug therapy product shall contain the names of both the
pharmacist and the physician signers of this Agreement.

Documentation: Each drug therapy prescription authorized by the physician and initiated by the
pharmacist shall be documented in a patient profile. o

Training: The pharmacist who participates in the drug therapy shall have received appropriate training
that includes programs approved by the American Council of Pharmaceutical Education (ACPE),
curriculum-based programs from an ACPE-accredited college of pharmacy, state or local health
department programs, or programs recognized by the board of pharmacy. Training must include
procedures listed above, the management of the sensitive communications often encountered in
emergency contraception, service to minors, quality assurance, referral for additional services,
documentation and a crisis plan if the pharmacy operations are disrupted by individuals opposing the
emergency contraception.

Further, the pharmacist agrees to participate in the Emergency Contraception Hotline.

Term of the Agreement: This agreement shall be effective for a period of at least two years from the
date of its delivery to the Department unless rescinded in writing earlier by either the physician or the
pharmacist, with written notice to the other and to the Department, or unless the Pharmacy Board
invalidates such Agreement or changes the terms of the agreement. After the two year period, the
agreement shall continue to be valid month to month unless rescinded, invalidated, or changed as
provided herein. The licensed pharmacist or the licensed physician, who rescinds the agreement, shall
notify the Department within three business days of the rescission. At the time the collaborative
agreement is rescinded, the licensed pharmacist shall not have prescriptive authority to dispense
emergency contraceptives until another collaborative agreement with a physician is completed and
delivered to the Department.

Page 2 of 6



(Name of Pharmacy)
Informed Consent for Emergency Contraception Drug Therapy

Name of Patient: , Age:
Address:
Phone No.:

First day of last menstrual period: f

Mo/Day/Year

Date of unprotected sexual intercourse: __ /  /

Mo/Day/Year
If more than one exposure, give date and time of initial exposure:

Was this sexual intercourse the result of sexual assanlt? Yes No

Before giving your consent, be sure that you understand both the pros and cons of Emergency
Contraceptive Pills (ECPs). If you have any questions, we will be happy to discuss them with you.

Do not sign your name at the end of this form until you have read and understood each statement and the
pharmacist has answered your questions and can witness your signature. This information is
confidential.

I understand that:
1. ECPs contain hormones that act to prevent pregnancy. These pills are taken after having
unprotected sex (sex without birth control or birth control failure). They are to be used as an
emergency freatment only and not as a routine method of contraception.
2. ECPs work by preventing or delaying the release of an egg from the ovary, preventing
fertilization, or causing changes in the lining of the uterus that may prevent implantation of a
fertilized egg. Iunderstand that if I am already pregnant, ECPs will not stop or interfere with the
pregnancy.
3. ECP treatment should be started within 5 days (120 hours) of unprotected sex.
4. ECPs are not 100 percent effective.
5. Reactions to the pills may include: nausea and vomiting, fatigue, dizziness, breast tenderness,
early or late menstrual period.
6. Ishould see a physician if my period has not started within 3 weeks afier treatment.
7. 1should use condoms, spermicides, or a diaphragm, or continue taking birth control pills to
prevent pregnancy if I have sex before my next period. After that, I should continue to use a
method of contraception.
8. ECPs will not protect me from or treat sexually transmitted diseases and I should seek
diagnosis and treatment if I am concerned because I have had sex with a new partner in the past
month or my partner has had sex with someone else in the past month or my partner has a
sexually transmitted disease.
9. Tunderstand that it may be useful to share this treatment information with my regular health
care provider. Therefore, I request and authorize the release of this information to the following
designated provider:

10. Designated Provider’s Name:

Patient’s Signature: Date:

Page30f 6



Additional Terms or Limitations:

Physician's Name:

Street Address/City/State; Zip Code:

Phone Number: MD License No.:

Physician's Signature: ) Date:

Pharmacist's Name:

Street Address/City/State/Zip Code where Drug Therapy will occur (include name of pharmac-y,
pharmacy license number, pharmacist-in-charge and pharmacist-in-charge license number):

Pharmacist License No.:

Phone Number:

Pharmacist's Signature: Date:

Pharmacist-in-charge's Signature: Date:

Page 4 of 6



Screening Checklist for Emergency Centraceptive Pills

Patient Name: Today’s Date:

Address: Age:

These questions are to help us understand what you need right now.

1. Have you had unprotected sex during the last 5 days? Yes No

2. On what day(s) did you have unprotected sex in the past 5 days?
Monday ___ Tuesday ___ Wednesday _ Thursday _ Friday ___ Saturday ___ Sunday __
3. What time of day was the first unprotected sex in the past 5 days? AM. P.M.

4. Have you had unprotected sex prior to the last five days? Yes No

5. When was the first day of your last menstrual period? Date:

6. Are you currently using a method of birth control?

Nomethod ____ Birth Control Pills ___
Condoms Diaphragm
TUD Other Method

Contraceptive Shot (Depo Provera®) __

7. Did you have unprotected sex as a result of sexual assault (or, did anyone pressure you into having sex
when you didn’t want to?)

Yes No

8. Would you like a pharmacist to call you in the next couple of weeks to see how you’re doing?

Yes No__
If yes, what time of the day is best to call? AM. P.M.
Patient’s Signature: Date:
For Pharmacist Use Only
Date and time of interview: EC Provided: Yes_ No__
Referral made for (check all that apply):
Contraception follow-up ___ Evaluation for STD ___ Other medical evaluation
Pregnancy counseling Assault Counseling ___ No referrals made
Date and time of callback: Referrals made then?
Pharmacist’s Signature: Date:

Page 50f 6



Informed Consent for Emergency Contraception Drug Therapy Continued

Pharmacist’s Signature: Date:

Pharmacist only: Referral made to:

Rx No.:

Page 6 of 6



EXHIBIT [“B”] B

Brands and Doses

Chapter 16-95

Of Oral Contraceptive Pills Used For Emergency Contraception

There are now two prepackaged emergency contraceptive pill products (dedicated emergency
contraceptive pills) as well as 14 brands of birth control pills that can be used for emergency

contraception.
Brand Manufacturer Pills per Dose Ethinyl Estradiol | Levonorgestrel
: {Treatment schedule is per Dose per Dose (mg)*
one dose ASAP after
unprotected intercourse, (mcg)
and a second dose 12
hours later)
Dedicated Emergency Contraceptive Pills
Plan B Women’s Capital | 1 white pill 0 0.75
Corporation
Preven Gynetics 2 blue pills 100 0.50
Oral Contraceptive Pills
Levora Watson 4 white pills 120 0.60
Levlen Berlex 4 light-orange 120 0.60
pills
Lo/Ovral Wyeth-Ayerst 4 white pills 120 0.60*
Low-Ogestrel Watson 4 white pills 120 0.60*
Nordette Wyeth-Ayerst 4 light-orange 120 0.60
pills
Alesse Wyeth-Ayerst 5 pink pills 100 0.50
Aviane Duramed 5 orange pills 100 0.50
Levlite Berlex 5 pink pills 100 0.50
Ogestrel Watson 2 white pills 100 0.50%*
Ovral Wyeth-Ayerst 2 white pills 100 0.50*
Tri-Levlen Berlex 4 yellow pills 120 0.50
Triphasil Wyeth-Ayerst 4 yellow pills 120 0.50
Trivora Watson 4 pink pills 120 0.50

Adapted from RA Hatcher, et al, Contraceptive Technology: Seventeenth Revised Edition. New York NY: Ardent
Media, 1998. Updated by Felicia Steward, MD 2001.

* This progestin in Ovral, Lo/Ovral, Low-Ogestrel, Ogestrel and Ovrette is norgestrel, which contains twa isomers

only one of which (levonorgestrel) is bioactive; the amount of norgestrel in each dose is twice the amount of
levonorgestrel.

August 2004

Page 1 of 2




Anti-nausea Treatment Options

for use with Emergency Contraception

Drug

Dose

&

' Timing of Administration,

Non-prescription Drugs

Meclizine hydrochloride
(Dramamine, Bonine)

One or two 25mg tablets

1 hour before ﬁfst EC dose;

-repeat if needed in 24 hours

Diphenhydramine
hydrochloride (Benadryl)

One or two 25mg tablets or
capsules. :

1 1 hour before first EC dose;

repeat as needed every 4-6
hours.

Dimenhydrinate (Dramamine)

One or two 50mg tablets or 4-
8 teaspoons liquid

30 minutes to 1 hour before
first ECP dose; repeat as
needed every 4-6 hours.

Cyclizine hydrochloride
(Marezine)

One 50mg tablet

30 minutes before first EC
dose; repeat as needed every
4-6 hours.

Adapted from RA Hatcher, et al, Contraceptive Technology: Seventeenth Revised Edition. New York NY: Ardent Media,
1998, Updated by Felicia Steward, MD 2001.

Page 2 of 2



Exhibit 3



§19~38.1-1

HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES
TITLE 19
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATTON
SUBTITLE 2
AIRPORTS DIVISION

CHAPTER 38.1

dN—DEMAND TAXI SERVICE AT‘PUBLIC ATIRPORTS

§19-38.1-1
§19-38.1-2
§19~38.1-3
§19-38.1-4

§19-38.1-5
§159-38.1-6
§19-38.1-7
§19-38.1-8

§19-38.1-9
§19-38.1-10C

§19-38.1-11 . .
§19-38.1-12 "

§19-38.1-13
§19-38.1-14
§19-38.1-15
§19-38.1~+16

Historical note.

Definitions
Purpose
Applicability

‘Airports without a taxi management'

concessionaire

Airports with a taxi management
‘concessionaire

Taxi driver gqualification; taxi vehicle
requirements

" Taxil management concession

Insurance

Signs

Taxi driver conduct

Indemnification and hold harmless
Severability

Enforcement :

Ccumulative penalty _
Subordination to- sponsor's assurance

Repeal

Thls chapter is based substan—

tially on chapter 19-38.

§19-38.1-1 Definitions.

[EFf 12/16/93;

Unless the context

indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:
“Department" means the state department of

rOCT 04 1587

transportation.

"Director" means the director of transportatacn or
his duly authorized representative.

"on-demand taxi service means those taxi services
in which a customer has made no prior arrangement for
services.

38.1-1

_2044 %



§19-38.1-1

"Open-access taxl system" means a taxi system that
will allow all quallfylng taxi drivers and vehicles to
provide taxi service at public airports.

"Public airport" or "airport" means any area of land
and water under state jurisdiction which is used,
intended for use, for landing and taking-off of alrcraft
and any appurtenant areas which are used, or intended for
‘use, for airport buildings or other alrport facilities or

rights—of-way, including approaches, together with all
airport buildings and facilities located thereon.

"'State" means the State of Hawaii.

"Taxi" or "taxicab" means the motor vehicle used to
provide taxi service in or at a public airport.

"Taxi driver' means the operator or driver of a
taxi. g
"Taxi driver authorization" means an authorization
issued by the director or taxi management concessionaire
for the purpose of author121ng a taxl driver' to provide
on-demand taxi service at a public airport, pursuant to
this chapter.

"Taxi management concessionaire" means the
concessionaire hired by the State to provide an open-
access taxi system at a public alrport

"Taxi service" means the service of providing a
motor vehicle for hire by the public in or at a public
airport, which motor vehicle shall have a driver other
than the hirer and be used for the purpose of :
transporting the hirer and incidental personal property
to a destination over a route controlled by the hirer and
is subject to a metered rate or tariff as prescrlbed and
authorized by county ordinance or rules.

"Taxi vehicle permit" means a permlt issued by the
director or taxi management concessionaire for the
purpose of authorizing a motor vehicle to be used in
providing on-demand taxi service at a T,
pursuant to this chapter. [Ef£ ﬁlbéw )
(Auth: HRS §261-12) -(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§15-38.1-2 Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is

to regulate the open-access taxi system at public
alrports and to ensure safe, orderly and reliable taxi

servic [f the travelllng public.
[Eff fl Tr@ (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: . HRS §261 7) : '

38.1-2 2044



—
sileps

§19-38.1-4

§19-38.1-3 Applicability. This chapter applles to
airports with or without taxi management conce551onalres,
unless indicated otherwise. [Eff @gff 94 ]

l-.

(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §
§19-38.1-4 Airports without a taxi management

" concessionaire. (a) At airports without a taxi

management concessionaire, the following permit or
authorization shall be obtained to provide on~demand taxi
service at airports:

(1) No taxi shall be used to provide taxi service
from a public airport without a taxi vehicle
permit. The taxi vehicle permit shall be in
the form of a vehicle decal, and issued by the
director upon payment of the monthly or per
trip fee and upon gualification of the vehicle
as reguired by this chapter. The permit is
limited only to the airport where issued, and
is renewable on a monthly basis, upon payment.
of the appropriate fee. The permit shall not
be assigned or otherwise transferred, and shall

- be prominently displayed while operating at the
airport in a manner prescribed by the director.

(2) No taxi driver shall be allowed to provide taxi
service from a public airport without having
obtained the authorization of the director.

The taxi driver authorization shall be in the
form of a driver identification badge issued by
the director and shall not be assigned or
otherwise transfexrrxed. The driver identifica-
tion badge shall be valid only at the airport
where issued, and shall be worn while operating
at the alrport in a manner prescribed by the

" director. The driver shall pay a fee of $5 to
the director for the cost of processing the
initial application of the driver. identifi-
cation badge. The taxi driver identification
badge shall be renewed annually.

'(3) No permit shall be issued to an applicant,
‘including existing authorized taxi vehicles and
drivers, who are in arrears of payment of
taxes, rent, or othexr charges to the State or
political division or subdivisiocon, agency,
authority, commission or instrumentality

38,1-3 2044



§19-38.1-4

(1)

thereof. An applicant shall meet the taxi
driver gualification or taxi wvehicle
requirement standards as reguired by this
chapter.

At airports without a taxi management

concessionaire, the following fees shall apply:

(c)

(1) Taxi vehicles authorized to be used for

" providing taxi service at public airports
that do not have a taxi management’
concessionaire hired by the State shall,

as a condition for the issuance of a

permit, be assessed the following fees, ,

payable to the State as applicable:

(A) A monthly fee of $400 per taxi
vehicle at Honolulu International
Airport, or a single trip fee of $4
for each trip originating from

. Honolulu International Airport;

(B) A monthly fee of $400 per taxi

. wvehicle at Kahului Airport, or a
single trip fee of $4 for each trip;

(C) A monthly fee of $250 per taxi
vehicle at Kona International Airport
at Keaholej;

(D) A monthly fee of $150 per taxi
vehicle at Lihue Alrport;

(E} Aan-annual fee of $100 per taxi
vehicle at all other public airports.

(2) The fees shall:

'(A) Be paid in advance of the period the
taxi vehicle is used to provide taxi
service; -

(B) Not be subject to proratlon, and

: {C)' Not be non-refundable.
At airports without a management concession-

naire, the following procedures shall apply for review of
suspension or termination of taxi vehicle permits or taxi
driver authorization.

(1)

A taxi vehicle permit or taxi driver
authorization, issued under this chapter may be
suspended or revoked by the director for
violation of this chapter. The suspension or
revocation may be contested by providing notice
to the director within fourteen days after
receipt of a written notice of suspension or
revocation that provides the reasons for the
suspension or revocatiocn and the length of the
proposed suspension. Upon receipt of the

38.1-4

2044



(2)

§19-38.1-5

notice to contest, the director may appoint a
hearing officer to conduct a contested case
hearing and allow the presentation of evidence
or testimony to contest the facts upon which
the suspension or revocation is based. If the
director upholds the proposed suspension or

revocation based on the hearing officer’s
recommendation, the period of suspension or

revocation shall begin five days following
receipt of the final decision and order of the
director.

The taxil vehicle permit or taxi driver authori-
zation may be terminated with or without cause
by the director-or by the taxi driver
authorized to provide taxi service at a public
airport, upon thirty days prior written notice.
Upon notification of termination,. the taxi
vehicle decal or driver identification badge

.shall be returned within three business days to

the dlrecﬁp §§71 management conce551ona1re
[EEL Z 1 (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261 7)

§19—38.l—5 Alrports with a taxi management
concessionaire. (&) At alrports with a taxi management
concessionaire, the concessionaire  shall develop an
approprlate pernlttlng system" e ok quallfy taxi drivers and

(1)

)"

(3)

" tax1s,'1n accordance with section 19-38.1-6.

No taxi shall be used to provide taxi service
from a public airport without a taxi permit
issued by the taxi management concessionaire.
No taxi driver shall be allowed to provide taxi
service from a public airport without having

-obtained the authorlzatlon Df the taxi manage-

ment concessionaire. .

No permit or authorization shall be issued to
an applicant who is in arrears of payment of
taxes, rent, or other charges to the State or
political division or subdivision, agency,
authority, commission or instrumentality
thereof. An applicant shall meet the taxi
driver qualification or taxi vehicle
requirement standards as required by this
chapter, as appropriate.

38.1-5 2044

T



§19-38.1-5

(b} At airports with a taxi management
concessionaire, the taxi management concessionaire shall
develop a procedure to suspend or revoke taxi vehicle
permits and taxi driver authorizatiens for violation of
this chapter in accordance with procedures established in
the lease between the concessionaire and the director.

(c) Taxi driver participation fees shall be subiject
" Yo prior revlew and approval of the director.

tess OCT 04 1897 '] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §251 7)

§19-38.1~6 . Taxi driver gualification; taxi velicle
requirements. (a) No taxi driver shall Be authorized to
operate at a publlc airport: w1thout the necessary
permlts, llcenses, approvals, quallflcatlons, and certi-
fication. requlred by this chapter or by the laws of the
State. or; any. other - governmental body hav1ng the juris-

i dlCthﬂ to regulate the opézation of a motor vehicle or
_the carrying. of baggage or people for hire on any vehicle
‘in:the State.’

(b} With regard to quallflcatlons, the taxi driver
shall:

(1) - Have a valid motor vehicle driver license
issued by the State and evidence of havrng one
year driving experlence in the county ln which
the appllcatlon is made;

(2).. Be.a citizen or alien who has been admitted for
permanent residence or who has otherwise been
granted employment authorlzatlon by the United
States Immigration. and Naturallzatlon Services;

(3) Be at least 18 years of age;

{(4) . Not have ougstanding arrest warrants or.
criminal. .gonvictions pending for offenses
committed while drlv1ng 1ntox1cated or
recklessly,i

(5) Not be addicted to the use of drugs or alcohol,
and shall sign a form consistent with the Druq—
Free Workplace Act;

(6) Be subject to.background checks or clearances

if required-by Federal Motor Carrier Safety
- Regulatlons and appllcable state statutes;

2044
38.1-6



- 2

,‘--
o

§19-38.1-6

(7) Submit a certificate from a licensed physician
indicating the applicant’s condition as to
visual. acuity and hearing abllity, and shall
be, in the oplnlon of the physician, free of
medical conditions that may render the driver
unfit for the safe operation of a motor
wvehicle; and

(8) Pass a written examination, to be admlnlstered

" by the dlrector or taxi management con-
céssionaire-in the Engllsh language, covering
‘&irport: taxicab operations, vehicle safety
procedures, appllcable department’s ‘Motor
Véhicle Safety Office and Hawaii Administrative
Rules, local traffic laws, passenger courtesy
and assistance: procedures, public relatlcns,
and knowledge of major destinations in the
‘ceunty in"which the’ appllcatlon 1s made.

(c) A taxi driver shall comply. with instructions
issued by the director regarding the taxi staging
seguence to implement an open-access taxi _system per-
taining to:

(1) Location of designated passenger pickup areas,

taxicab stands, taxicab hold areas;

(2) Queuing procedure to wait their turn to plckup
passengers; and

(3) Circulation path while on the airport.

(d) Any vehicle being issued'a permit under this
chapter shall be licensed by the appropriate governmental
regulatory agency, operating in conformance with .the
requirements and procedures prescribed by such agency,
and at all times display a current safety sticker and
current evidence of licensing and registration by the
applicable Legulatory agency of the government.

(e) Taxi vehicles shall:: =

(1) Be edquipped with'a tax1cab meter in accordance
with the terms and conditions as set forth by
the state Office of Weights and Measures (the
taxicab meter must be mounted in a permanent
manner in a position that 1s visible te all

) passengers),

(2) . Display in the interior of ‘the taxicab the
: typlcal authorized fares to major destinations
in the county;

(3)  Provide a seating cana01uy for at least five

*passengers, ‘including the driver, and shall be
in safe mechanical condition, clean and

acceptable in appearance, and in damage-free
condition;

261447 2044



§19-38.1-6

(4) Have an illuminated taxicab domelight mounted
on the roof of the vehicle, in accordance with
the county rules and regulations as applicable;

{(5) Comply with the xules and regulations set forth
by the department’s Motor Vehicle Safety
Office; and .

(6) Where required by the director, have a two-way
radio with the capablllty to operate on the
approprlate airport frequency to meet taxi
service dispatch requlrements :

(£} The dlrector may in the interest of public
safety or in the interest of improving airport
opérations, establish additional alirport procedures and
requirements covering taxi driver gualifications,
1dentlflcatlon and conduct, and vehicle standards.

_ {g) Failure to meet the established standards for
‘taxi driver qualification, taki driver conduct, and
vehicle reguirement shall be grounds for non- 1ssuance or
revocatlon ‘'of theé taxi vehicle permit or taxi driver
authorization. The taxi vehicle permit or driver identi-
fication badge shall be returned to the issuing agency

within three business da f%@g thea notlce of revocation
is received. [Eff 1Y Z ?

(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp "HRS §261- 7)

§15-38.1-7 Taxi management concession. The
director nay lease a concession area to a taxi management

concessionaire to prov1%ﬁ3 o eﬁj cess taxl system at a
public airport. [Eff é]n 0 E gx?:
(Auth: HRS §261_12) {Inp: HRS 5261 7)

§19~-38.1-8 Insurance. “{a} As a condition for the
issuance of a taxi vehicle permit, each taxi vehicle
shall have liability and other insurance cf the type and
amount required for taxi license as reguired by the
county in which the vehlcle Wlll be used for taxi
service.

(b) In addition to motor vehicle liability
insurance, the taxi drivers issued a taxi driver
authorization to participate in providing on-demand taxi
services at public airports shall maintain and keep in
force adequate comprehensive general liability insurance
as determined by the director to provide coverage against

2044 ;7

38.1-8



§19-38.1-10

claims arising out of the taxi driver‘’s operations on
airport premises for injury to persons or damage to
property. This reguirement may be satisfied by taxi
drivers being party to a taxi concessionaire’s or
company’s comprehensive general liability insurance
policy. '
(¢} An applicant for a taxi vehicle permit or taxi
" driver authorization, shall provide the director or taxi
management concessionaire with a certificate of insurance
naming the applicant as the insured and the department
and the taxi management concessicnaire, when applicable,
as additional insured under each insurance policy for
coverage to individuals providing taxi service under this
chapter. Certificates of insurance for each such policy
shall be provided to the ‘director or taxi management
concessionaire within thirty days prior to commencing
taxi service. The insurer shall provide certificates of
insurance to the director or taxi management’
concessionaire within thirty days of any material changes
to any policy including coverage and shall provide
notification within thirty days of cancellatiocn.

- e QCT 0 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
k (Imp: HRS §261~7)

§19-38.1-9 Signs. No taxi vehicle used as a taxi
at a public airport shall display any sign that extends
more than six inches above the roof. Flashing lights and
audible devices, other than that regquired by safety
ordinances and regqulations, are prchibited. The external
display of any rates or fees oa a taxi is also

prohibited. (Eff QCT 04 1997 )

(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-38.1-10 Taxi driver conduct. A taxi driver who
is issued a taxi-driver authorization to provide on
demand taxi’ servicés at public airports shall:

(L) Be authorized to provide taxi service only in
the area designated by the director who may
change any designated area when such change is
deened necessary and is in the best interest of
safety to persons and property;

(2) WMaintain the designated taxi service area in a
safe, clean and sanitary condition;

38.1"9 : 2044 ;T‘i;



§19-38.1-10

(3) Xeep all taxis operated at any public airport
in good mechanical cendltlon, clean and
suitable for providing taxi service (the
department may prohibit the operation of any
taxi unsuitable for provldlng taxi service);

(4) Furnish service on a fair, equal and non-
discriminatory basis to the public;

(5) €Gonduct business in an orderly, courteous and
businesslike manner,=

(6) Present a clean and neat appearance at all

tlmes,

) Be suitably uniformed or clothed;

8) Refrain from use of profanity, offenelve or

rough and disturbing behavior;

(9) Not solicit at public airports any gratuities
‘or any other business not directly related to
providing taxi service at a public alrport‘

(10) Upon. finding lost or forgotten article in the

taxi, report. and turn the-article .over to the
dirport lost and found;

(11) At all times comply w1th all applicable laws,
;ordlnances, terms or agreements, and rules and

regulations; and

(12) Comply with instructions and procedures issued

by the director or taxi management concession-

aire regarding driver and vehicle identifi-

cation requirements, fee payment process, and

taxi operation pertainihg to:

(A) Location of designated passenger pickup
areas, taxi stands, taxi hold areas;

(B) Queuing procedures; and :

{C) 0perat1ng'rout

tere - OGT 04 1887

(Imp: HRS §261 7)

T
]

] Y(Buth: HRS §261-12)

§19-38.1-11 Indemnlflcatlon and hold harmless.
Applicants for a taxi vehicle permit or taxi driver
authorization to provide on-demand taxi services at
public airports shall indemnify and hold harmless the
dlrector, department and the State from any action or
claim arising out of their use of the airport and
operation of a taxi service pursuant to this chapter.
Failure to comply with the requirement of this section
shall be grounds for non-issuance of the taxi vehicle
permit or_ taxi er authorlzatlon ‘

[EBEE é. ﬂij? (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

48, 1410 2044



§19-38,1-16

§19-38.1-12 Severability. The provisions of this
chapter are declared to be severable and if any portion
or the application thereof is held to be invalid for any
reaseon, the validity of the remainder of this chapter

shall not be affected. [Eff
JERERT RS gESE-a2] | [TmpE @‘EGQ_%J%? | :

§19~38.1-13 Enforcement. . This chapter may be
enforced by police.officers or any person deputized
pursuant to sect?ff 261 —-17, Hawaii Revised Statutes,

[ELE (Auth HRS §261-12}
(Imp: HRS §261—17)

§19-38.1-14 Cumulative penaltvy. In addition to the
penalties provided in this chapter, penalties for
violations of this chapter shall be as set forth in

(% R d Statut
R e i
(Imp: HRS §261-21) -

§19-38.1-15 Subordination to sponsor’s assurance
agreement. A taxi vehicle permit or taxi driver

authorization to provide on-demand taxi sexrvice at a
public airport shall be subordinate and subject to the
terms and conditions of any sponsor’s assurance agreement
executed between the State and the United States of
America, which is in force during the term of the taxi

vehicle it .o §?x1 driver authorization.
[Eff Ejﬁ? 419 ( Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-38.1-16 Repeal. Chapter 19-38 is repealed.

E?ﬁé: Qg's §Qé11g§? ] (Auth: HRS 5261—;2)

38:1-—-171 2044



i
R 2

LIEUTEHANT GOVYERHI

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The repeal of Chapter 19-38, and Chapter 19-38.1, Hawaii
Administrative Rules, on the Summary Page dated September 10,
1997 were adopted on September 10, 1997 following public
hearings held on March 24 and 25, and April 15, 1997 after
public notice was given in the Honolulu Advertiser, Honolulu
Star-Bulletin, Maul News, and West Hawaii Today on February
13, 1997 and in the Hawaii Herald-Tribune on March 11, 1997.

The repeal of Chapter 19-38 and adoption of Chapter

19-38.1, Hawali Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten
days after filing with the Office of the Liszutenant Governor.

. it

KAZU HAYASHIDA

= Director of Transportation
O
et

it APPROVED:

g =

= 03
2 .
~ é: 0 Lo Fon
o . |

BEN@%&IN J. cAYETANO

Govhk¥nor
State of Hawaii

Date: ?/)?/f'?

SEP 24 1997

Filed

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C:}é&;;ﬁngd

Deputy ?ttornay General

2044






e

HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

TITLE 19 T

DEPARTNENT OF TRANSPORTATION iy S

) R ——
¥ !-__'_v‘:_c{.,.{:‘{_"’ ﬁﬂ-’?!"‘

SUBTITLE 2

e,

AIRPORTS DIVISION

' CHAPTER 20.1

COMMERCIAL SERVICES AT PUBLIC AIRPCRT

subchapter 1  General Provisions

§19-20.1-8

§19-20.1-9
§19-20.1-10

§19-20.1-11
§19-20.1-12
§15-20.1-13

§15-20.1-14

Applicability

Definitions

Permit or authorxization required

Payment of fees

Recorde; audit of records; reports

Insurance

Entxy to air cperations area

Birpert activity

Revocation of permit; termination

Subordination to gponsor’'s assurance
agreement '

Indémnification and hold harmless

Severability

Enforcement

Penalty

Subchapter 2 Aircraft Ground Eandling

§19-20.1-15
§19-20.1-16
§19-20.1-17
§12-20.1-18
§19-20.1-182

Scope

Definitions

Fee

Exemption

Statement of contracted sexvices

i "H"”!‘)FLE%{:E B-[:"ﬁ:-:f"' .



Subchapter 3

§19-20.1-20
§19-20.1-21
§19-20.1-22
§19-20.1-23

Subchapter 4

§19-20.1-24
§15-20.1~25
§19-20.1-26
§519-20.1~-27
§15-20.1-28

Subchapter 5

§19-20.1-29
§15-290.1-30
§19-20.1-31
§19-20.1-32

Sukchapter 6

§19-20.1-33
§19-20.1-34
§19-20.1-35

Subchapter 7

§19-20.1-36
§19-20.1-37
§19-20,1-38
§19-20.1-38
§19-20.1-40

§19-20.1-41

§15-20.1~-42
§19-20.1-43
§19-20.1-44

Baggage Pickup and Delivery

Scope
Definitions
Fees
Restrictions

Commexrcial Photography

Scope

Definition

Fees .
Soliciting prohibited
News media exempt

Greeting Services for Hire

Scope

Definition

Fees

Soliciting prohibited

In~£flight Catering

Scope
Definition
Fees

Mexchandise Delivery

Scope

Definitions

Fees

Monthly delivery report
Controls

Designated areas
Identification of merchandise
Safety and security
Unauthorized storage

20.1-2



Subchapter 8

§19-20.1-45
§19-20.1-46
§19-20.1-47
§19-20.1-48
§19-20.1-49%
§19-20.1-50
§19-20.1-51
§19-20.1-52
§19-2€.1-53

Subchapter 2

§19-20.1-54
§19-20.1-55
§19-20.1-56
§19-20.1-57
§19-20.1-58
§19-20.1-59
§19-20.1-60
§19-20.1-61

§19-20.1-1 Applicability.

Porter Sexvices

Scope

Definitions

Requirements to obtain permit
Fees

Unauthorized storage

Motorized passenger carts
Soliciting prohibited

Statement of contracted sexrvices
Alrline lessees

Prearranged Ground Transportation

Scope

Definitions

Fees

Exemptions

Taxi services

Signs

Restrxictions

Records of off-airport rent-a-car
permittees

SUBCHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

This chapter shall

apply to the following types of commercial services
permitted at or in public airports:

{1) Aircraft ground handling;

{2) Baggage pickup and delivery;

(3) Commercial photography;

(4) Greeting services for hire;

(5) In-flight catering;

(6) Merchandise delivery;

{(7) Porter services; and

(8) Prearranged ground transportatiom.

[ELE MAY -4 2002 ]

{auth: HRS §261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-7)

20&1"'3

na
g
i3
L



§19-20.1-2 Definitions. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:

saircraft” means airplanes, airships, dirigibles,
helicopters, gliders, amphibians, seaplanes and any
other contrivance now or hereafter used for the
navigation of or flight in air space.

w»airline lessee” means any aircraft operator that
has entered into a lease with the department for the
use of land or facilities at a public airport.

“Air operations area” means any portion of a
public airport, from which access by the public is
prohibited by fences or appropriate signs, and which
is not leased ox demised to anyone for exclusive use
and includes runways, taxiways, all ramps, cargc ramps
and apron areas, aircraft parking and storage areas,
fuel storage areas; maintenance areas, and any otherx
area of a public airport used or intended to be used
for landing, takeoff, or surface maneuvering of
aircraft or used for embarkation or debarkation of
passenders.

‘Department” means the department. of
transportation of the State.

"mirector” means the director of the department of
transportation or his duly authorized representative.
“"Gross receipts” includes all moneys paid or
payable to the person providing one of the commercial
services, specified in section 19-20.1-1, at a publie
alrport, regardless of whether the order, resexrvation
or payment for the commercial service is made within

or without the public airport. The term “gross
receipts” excludes any general excise taxes upon a
consumer collected by the person providing the
commercial sexvice at a public airport. (For
prearranged ground transportation services, the term
“gross receipts” also excludes public service company
taxes, commissione to travel agents, revenues from
arrival sightseeing enroute to the hotel in excess of
two heours or its eguivalent, and receipts reportable
under other commercial service permits, provided all
such exclusions are segregated and identified in the
accounting process of the person providing prearranged
ground transportation sexvices at a public airxport.)

20.1-4



“Pagsenger” means any person who arrives or
departs from a public airport aboard an aircraft
except for persons comprising the flight crew of the
aircraft.

"permittee” means any person authorlzed to provide
any of the commercial services, specified in section
19-20.1-1, in or at a public airport under a permit or
other written authorization from the director.

"person” means any individual, firm, partnership,
corporation, trust, association, company, joint
venture, or any other legal entity {including any
assignee, receiver, trustee, employee, or similar
representative}.

“Public airport” means that area of land and water
under governmental jurisdiction which is used for
landing and taking-off of aircraft, any appurtenant
areas which are used for airport buildings or other
airport facilities or rights-of-way, together with all
airport buildings and facilities located thereon.

“gplicit” means to ask, implore, plead fox; to
endeavor to obtain by asking; to importune; to seek
actively though silently; or to try to obtain.

"State” means the State of Hawaii.

[BEfE  way -4 2012 1 (Buth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-3 Permit or authorization required.
Any person providing any of the commerc1a1 services
specified in section 19-20.1-1 in or 3t a public
airport shall do so only upon receipt of a permit or
othér written authorization from the directox whlch
shall be issued upon payment of the applicable fees.
A permlt shall not be assigned or othérwise
transferred. A permlt shall not be issued to
appllcants ‘who are in arrears in the payment of taxes,
fees or othér charges to state agencies.
[Eff MAY -4 2802 j (auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.2-4 Payment of fees. (a) The required
fees for each type of commercial services are
specified in the applicable subchapter.

(b} Time of payment.

20.1-5

[ ]
e

(g



(1) Annual fees shall be paid annually in
advance of providing commercial
services at or in public airports; and

(2) Monthly fees (including percentage
feesg) shall be paid on or before the
twentieth day of the succeeding month.

{c) Any amount payable which is not paid when
due shall bear interest at the rate of one pexrcent per
month or the maximum rate of intexrest allowable by
law. . ' :

(d) Payments due undexr this chapter shall be
made at or gent to the airports division, department
of transportatiom, Honolulu International Airport,
Honolulu, Hawaii 96819; or any of its offices located
at Hilo International Airport, Hilo, Hawaii 96720;
Rona International Airport at Keahole, Kailua-Komna,
Hawaii 96740; Kahulul Airport, Kahului, Hawail 96732;
or Lihue Airport, Lihue, Hawaill 96766.

[Ef£ MAY - 4 2002 1 (Buth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

' §19-20,1-5 Records; audit of records; reports.
(a) This section shall apply to permittees who are
required to pay percentage fees.

(b} - The permittee shall maintain up-to-date
records and books in accordance with a recognized
system of bookkeeping and such records and books shall"
reflect a segregation of airport revenue in the
general ledger, reconciled and supported by original
source documents. Such records including original
source documents shall be kept for three years in the
state following the end of the permit year.

{(c) The State shall be granted access, at all
reasonable times, to all books, accounts, records and
reporte including gross income tax reports, showing
daily receipts; and at any reasonable time on twenty-
four houre notice the permittee will permit a complete
audit to be made by the State's accountant orx by a
certified public accountant of the permittee’s entire
business affairs and records relating to the business
conducted at, from or in connection with the airport
for the term of the permit. The permittee will

20.1-6



cooperate fully in the making of any inspection,
examination or audit. Should such audit by the State's
accountant or by a certified public accountant
disclose that fees have been underpaild by two pexcent
or more for any period under examination, the State
shall, in addition to the remedies provided in
subsection {e) of this section, be entitled to
reimbursement of the reasonable cost of any such audit
in addition to the deficiency. If such audit by the
State's accountant or by a certified public accountant
shall disclose that fees have been underpaid by five
percent or more for the period under examination, the
state shall, in addition to the foregoing rights, have
the right, upon ten days’ notice, to revoke the
authorization to conduct the applicable commercial
service at public airpoxts. o

(d} The permittee shall, on or before the
twentieth day of the succeeding wmonth, file with the
director, on forms prescribed by the director, a
report of its gross receipts for the previous month
certified to by a qualified representative of the
permittee; the certifier shall state that it has :
examined the books, records, and other evidence of the
gross receipts of the permittee for the period
reported and that to its knowledge the statement is
true and correct. The statement shall be in such form
and contain such details and breakdowns as the State
may reguire. Payment of requisite fees shall be
submitted with the report. Any amount payable which
shall not have been paid when due shall bear interest
at the rate of ore percent per month.

(e) Without prejudice and in addition to any
other remedies the State may have for such default,
if the permittee shall fall to promptly furnish any
monthly report, the State may have such report
prepaxed by an accountant to be selected by the State,
_ at the expense and on behalf of the permittee. The
permittee shall furnish to such accountant all records
requested for the purpose of preparing such reports,
and the permittee shall pay ta the State all expenses
incurred by the State in securing such reports. -
Furthermore, the State may select procedures which
would produce a reasonable gross receipts expectation,
and assess percentage fees based upon gross receipts
so computed. 1In the event that records have not been

20,1-7

™o

e

ey

L



prepared and,kept in accordance with this chaptexr, the
state shall, in addition to all other payments
required herein, be entitled to demand and receive an
additional payment of ten percent of the gross receipt
fee for the periods involved. [E£f HAY -4 2002 1
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-6 Insurance. {a) The permittee shall
maintain and keep in force adequate insurance as
determined by the director to protect both the
department and the permittee against claims for publie
liability and propexty damage. The following types of
insurance are required:

{1) Automobile liability insurance. To provide
coverage against all losses arising out of
the person's operation of the registered
vehicles, including motorized passenger
carts, on airport premises and resulting in
injury to persons or damage to property.
(Commercial photography and greeting
services for hire permittees are exempt from
this requirement.)

(2) Comprehensive general liability pollcy,
owners, landlords and tenants or
manufacturers and contractors liability
policy. To provide coverage against claims
arising out of the person’s operation on
ajrport premises resulting im injury to
persons or damage to property.

{b) The permittee shall provide the department
with a certificate of insurance naming the permittee
as the insured and the department as additional
insured to the extent of liability arising out of the
named insured's operations at the public airport with
a thirty day advance notice of material changes in
coverage or cancellation. [EEf MAY -4 2R ]
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: ERS §261-7)

§19-20.1-7 Entry to air operations area. Except
as may be authorized by the director, no person
providing commercial services at any public airpoxrt
shall be permitted entry into the air operations area.
[REE  MAY ~ 4 70602 ] (Aauth: HRS §261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-12) ‘

20.1-8



§19-20.1-8 Airport activity. (a) Bach
permittee’s activity shall be limited to the axea
designated by the director. The director may change
the designated areas when such action is deemed
necessary and in the best 1interest of safety to
persons or property.

{b)
(1)

(2)

(2)

(4)
{5)

(6)

{c)

The permittee shall:

Maintain its designated activity-area in a
safe and clean condition in compliance with
all applicable statutes, laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations;

Be liable for the fair value of any
janitorial or maintenance service for
cleaning or repairing airport premises
necessitated by the permittee's failure to
properly.and adequately maintain its
designated area;

Conduct business in an orderly, courteocus and

businesslike manner; _

Be suitably dressed or uniformed;

Furnish serxvice on a fair, equal and not
unjustly discriminatory basis to all users
thereof, and will charge £fair, reasonable and
not unijustly discriminatory prices for each
unit of service; provided that the permittee
may be allowed to make reasonable and
nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other
similar types of price reductions to volume
purchasers; and

Wear the identification badge (1ssued undex
this chapter) in plain sight while at the
airport. )

The following provisions shall apply to

permittees who operate vehicles under a pexmit
authorized by this chapter:

(1)

The permittee shall keep all vehicles and
equipment used at any public airport in good
mechanical condition, clean and suited for
their designated use. The department may
disappove the use by the permittee of any
vehicle or equipment -which the department
deems unsafe or unsuitable for its designated
use.

20.1-9

2 45

FS



(2} All vehicles operating under a permit
authorized by this chapter shall be licensed
by the state public utilities commission or
appropriate governmental regulatory agency,.

if so required, and at all times display a
current safety 1nspection sticker and current
‘evidence of licensing by the applicable
regulatory agency of the government.

(3) The department shall issue decals whigh shall
be placed by the permittee on those Vehlcles
utilized at a public airport that meet the
requixements of the. department. " No vehicle
ghall be used to provide’ commerc1a1 gervices
authorized by this chaptex at any public
airport without a decal issued by the
departrient. Vehicles shall be parked only at
locations designated by the director for the
permitted activity. Vehicles issued decals
shall not be used at any public airport for
any purpose other than the activity
authorized by the permit. [Eff MAY -4 0
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20,1-9 Revocation of permit; termination. A
permit issued under thie chapter may be revoked by the
department for violation of this chapter, upon ten
days prior written notice. The permit may be
terminated without cause by the department oxr by the
permittee upon thirty days prior written notice.

[BEE MAY -4 2002 1 {puth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-10 Subordination to sponsor's assurance
agreement. A permit shall be subordinate and subject
to the terms and conditions of any sponsor's assurance
agreement executed between the State and the United
States of America, which is in force durlng the term
of the permit. [Eff MAY -4 2002 ]

{(auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7}

§19-20.1-11 Indemnification and hold harmless.
The permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the department and the State from any action

20.1-10




or claim for compensation arising out of the use of
the permit or the airport. [BEf may -4 100 ]
{Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-12 Severability. The provisions of this
chapter are declared to be severable and if any
portion or the application thereof is held to be
inpvalid for any reason, the validity of the remainder
" of this chapter shall not be affected.

[EEE ~ HAY -4 200 ] ({(Ruth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7) )

§19-20.1-13 Enforcement. This chapter may be
enforced by police officers or any person deputized
pursuant to section 261-17, Hawaii Revised Statutes.
{BEE ] (Ruth: HRS §261-12)

{Imp: HRS §261-17)

§19-20.1-14 Penalty. Penalties for violations of
this chapter shall be as set forth in secgiion 261-21,
Hawaii Revised Statutes. [Eff MAY -4 1

(auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-21)

SUBCHRPTER 2
AIRCRAFT GROUND HANDLING

§19-20,1-15 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to aircraft
ground handling services at public airports.

[EEf  way - 4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7) .

§19-20.1-16 Definitions. Unless the context

clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:

“aircraft ground handling services” shall include

the following sexvices performed for arriving or
departing aircraft: ’ _

(1) Ramp services, including but not limited to,
providing passenger or crew stairs, ground
power units, baggage, mail and cargo loading

20.1-11

o

s



and unloading, air start units, aircraft
pushback and towing, air conditioning or
heating equipment, and fueling;

{2) BAircraft cabin cleaning, including, but not

. limited to, interior cleaning sexvice,
lavatory service, and drinking water service;

{3) Passenger services, including, but not
limited to, reservations, ticketing, seat
selection, passenger check-in, doccument
processing, passenger boarding, and VIP
lounge services;

(4) Caxgo handling, iIncluding, but not 1im1ted
to, warehousing, document processing, carge
buildup or breakdown, loading or unloading,
and transportation;

(5) Aircraft maintenance, including, but not
limited to, maintenance, and preventive
maintenance; and

{6 Aircraft £light planning and flight dlspatch
sexvice.

vaAircraft ground services operators” means all

persons authorized to perform aircraft ground handling
services at public airports and includes permittees,
airline lessees, and airport lessees.

*Airport lessee” means any person other than an
airline lessee that has entered into a lease with the
department for the use of land or facilities at a
public airpoxt. [BEf pMay -4 2002 ]

(Ruth: HRS §261-12) {(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-17 Fee. BAny person authorized to
provide aircraft ground handling sexrvices shall, in
consideration of using state facilities for conducting
vusiness, pay the department an annual administrative
expense fee of $100. [BEf  way - 4 2000 ]

{Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-18 Exemption. Airport or airline lessees
authorized by their lease to provide aircraft ground
handling services for othexs at a public airport are
exempt from the permit and fee requirements under this
chapter. [BEE MAY - 4 2002 ] (A'{Ith HRS §261-12}
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

20,1-12



§19-20.1-19 Statement of contracted services.
The permittee shall provide to the department upon
request a statement certified by the serviced airline
that a contract for aircraft ground handling services
presently exists. This chapter shall become a part of
all such contracts to which it applies, and shall be
attached to the contracts so that contracting parties
are aware of the rights, duties, and responsibilities
of the permittee. [Bff MAY -4 2002 1
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

SUBCHAPTER 3
BAGGAGE PICKUP AND DELIVERY

§15-20.1-20 Scope. The special- provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to baggage pickup
and delivery services at public airports.

“ [BEf  MAY - 4 2082 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-21 Definitions. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in thls chapter:

*Baggage pickup and delivery services" means
(1) the prearranged pickup of unaccompanied baggage at
a public airport and delivery to a destination outside
the airport for the benefit of amn arriving passenger,
or another on behalf of the passenger or (2} the
prearranged delivery of unaccompanied baggage from a
location outside a public aixrport to a certain
location at or in a public airport which is designated
for that purpose by the airport manager for a
departing passenger, or for another on behalf of a
departing passenger, oxr (3) the ‘prearranged transfer
of unaccompanied baggage from public airport baggage
claim areas to curbside or other areas within the
public airport, or {(4) the prearranged transfer of
unaccompanled baggage from curbside or other areas
within the public airport to check-in countexs or
other areas within the public airport where transfer
services were arranged for in advance by the passenger
or another on behalf of the passenger.

20.1-13

[

=
1y



“Unaccompanied baggage" means that baggage which
is unclaimed by the passenger at a public alrport but
for which prior arrangements have been made (1} by or
on behalf of am arriving passenger for the pickup of
such baggage £rom the public airport and delivery to
a destination outside the public ailrport, (2) by or on
behalf of a departing passenger for the delivery of
such baggage from a location outside the public
airport to a certain location at or in the public
~airport which is designated for that purpose by the
airpoxt wanager, (3} to transfer such baggage from
public airport baggage claim areas to curbgide or
other areas -within the public airpoxt, or (4) to
transfer such baggage from curbside or other areas
within the public airport to check-in counters or
other areas within the public airport.
igeg MAY - 4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)

{(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-22 Fees. Any person providing baggage
pickup and delivery services im or at a public ai¥rport-
shall, in consideration of using state aixport
facilities for conducting business, pay to the.
department the following fees:

{1} For each public airport at which baggage

pickup and delivery services are provided,
an annual administrative expense fee of
$100.

{2) A percentage fee egual to three and one-half
percent of the monthly gross receipts
derived by the permittee, from or in
connection with providing baggage pickup and
delivery services in or at amy public
airport. The permittee’s gross receipts
shall include all consideration or
compensation, of any kind or nature
whatsoever, paid by passengers, customers
and clients to the permittee or to any
person who is employed by or has a working
arrangement with the permittee for providing
baggage pickup and delivery services. ’

(3) 3n annual identification badge fee of $5 per
badge.

20.1-14



(4) An annual registration fee of 550 for each
vehicle in excess of five vehicles
registered by a permittee at a public
airport for baggage pickup and delivery
services, [Bff MAY - 4 2002 ]

(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS: §261-7)

. §19-20.1-23 Restrictione: (a) The permittee
shall: .
(1} Refrain from the use of profanity, boisterous

or rough and disturbing behavior or actione,
unsafe use of baggage carts ox other.
equipment, and the playing of radios, pre-
recorded tapes or discs, or other musical
instruments or devices in public areas ox
areas in which the sounds from such
activities may intrude upon public areas;

(2) Not provide any of the sexvices authorized by
the permit, including the placement and use
of any vehicle or eguipment, in such a mannexr
as to disturb other airport tenants or users;
and

(2] ©Not solicit gratuities or business in the
conduct of baggage pickup and delilvery
services at public airports.

(b} All business activities conducted by the
permittee at any public airport, unless otherwige
authorized by the department, shall be limited to
those passengers and clients who have made priox .
arrangements for baggage pickup and delivery service
with the permittee. The permittee shall have evidence
of such prior arrangements in the form of schedules,
passenger manifests, or other similar documentation
which identifies the passengers and clients, available.
for inspection by the director at all times during the
period the permittee is engaged in business activities
at the public airport, including at the time of all
pickups, deliveries and tramsfers. [BEL MAY -4 mz g
(Auth: ¥RS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

20.1-15



SUBCHAPTER 4

COMMERCIAL PHOTOGRAPHY

§19-20.1-24 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to commercial
photography services at public airports.

[EEE MAY -

4 2002 ] ({(Auth: HRS §261-12}

{(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-25 Definition. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:
sCommercial photography” means the taking of
still or motion pictures of persons and things by
a person for (1) sale for a monetary or any other

valuable consideratien, or (2) for any other
commercial purpose. [EEE MAY -4 2002 ]
{auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: BRS §261~7)

§19-20.1-26 Fees. Any person providing
commercial photography services in or at a public
- airport shall, in consideration of using state airport
* facilities for comnducting business, pay to the
department the following fees (as applicable):

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

For each public alrport at which commercial
photography services is provided an annual
administrative expense fee of §100;

An annual identification badge fee of 5 per
badge;

A percentage fee egual to ten percent of the
person's monthly gross receipts derived from
providing commercial photography services at
public airports; and

A daily fee of $100 in advance for persons
providing commexcial photography services on
a short-term basis. [Rff MAY - 4 2002 ]
(auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-27 Soliciting prohibited. To solicit,
offer and provide commercial photography to any person
other than to any person for whom commercial

20.1-16



photography has been arranged in advaﬁﬁ% as provlded
above, is prohibited. [EBff - HAY 4
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-28 News media exempt. Commercial
photography as defined herein shall not apply to
representatives of newspapers, magazines, television
stations, or other news media. I[Eff pMay -4 2002 ]
{Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

SUBCHAPTER 5
GREETING SERVICES FOR HIRE

§19-20.1-29 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to greeting
services for mixe at public airports.

(eeg MAY -4 1 (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-30 Definition. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter.

“Greeting services for hire” means the service of
providing, on behalf of or at the reguest of another
person, meeting, welcoming, receiving, salutation,
meetlng with salutation, farewell or departure

services, with or without the bestowal of leis, floral

arrangements or other gifts, to airline passengers.
[EEEf wAY -4 2002 ] (Buth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-31 Fees. Any person providing greeting
gservices for hire in or at a public airport shall, in
consideration of using state airport facilities for
conducting business, pay to the department the
following fees:

{1} For each public airport at which greeting

sexvices for hire are provided am annual
administrative expense fee of $1i00;

20.1-17

Iy



(2} an annual identification badge fee of $5 per
badge; and

(3} A percentage fee equal to three percent of
the person‘'s monthly gross receipts derived
from providing greeting services for hire at
a public airport. [Eff MAY ~ 4 2002 ]
{Auth: HRS §281-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20,1-32 Soliciting prohibited. To solicit,
offer and provide greeting services for hire to any
person other than to any person for whom greeting
sexrvices had been arranged ép advance, as provided, is
prohibited. [EEE WAY -4 10 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

SUBCHAPTER 6
IN-FLIGHT CATERING

' §19-20.1-33 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter ghall apply to in-flight
catering sexrvices at public airports.

IBEE MAY - 4 2002 1 {(Auth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: BRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-34 Definition. Unléss the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:
wIn-flight catering services” means the delivery
of prepared and packaged food beverages at any public
airport for consumption aboard an aircraft while in
£flight. [EEE  MAY - 4 200 ] {Ruth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: HRS §261-7) '

§19-20.1-35 Fees. Except for the
concessionaires and alrline lessees authorized to
provide in-flight catering services at public
airports, any person providing in-flight catering
services in or at public airports shall, in
consideration of using state airport facilities for
conducting business, pay to the department the
following fees: '

20.1-18



{1} An annual administrative expense fee of $100
in advance of providing in-£flight catering
services at a public airport; and

(2) A-percentage fee equal to three and one-half
per cent of its monthly gross receipts
derived from providing in-£flight catering
services at publiec airports.

[EEf  yay - 4 2002 } Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

SUBCHAPTER 7
MERCHANDISE DELIVERY

§19-20.1-36 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to merchandise
delivery services at public airports.

[EEE  MAY - 4 202 ] (Ruth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-37 Definitions. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:

sMerchandise” means items, such as fresh fruits,
flowers, candies, meat products and ice cream, which
are:

(1) Sold to an alrline passenger or -the
passenger's agent at-a location other than a
public airport; and

(2) Delivered to that passengexr oxr that
passenger’s agent at the airport by the
seller or the seller’'s agent.

Duty free or in-bond goods are specifically excluded
from this definition. :

npiece” means the unit in which the merchandise

is packaged for an individual airline passenger.

“Time of delivery” means the time the merchandise

is delivered into one of the areas designated by the
director. [EEf pay -4 2W ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-38 Feeg. Any person providing
mexrchandise delivery services in or at & public
airport, in consideration of using state airport

20.,1-19

-

LA



facilities for conducting business, shall pay the
following fees:

(1) 2An annual administrative expense fee of $100
for each public airport at which merchandise
is delivered.

(2) Except for the first vehicle, an annual fee
of $200 for each vehicle thereafter upon
registration of the vehicle with the
department and issuance of decal pursuant to
this subchapter.

(3) A fonthly fee based on the use of public
airport facilities during the month‘ The
monthly fee shall be:

(A) Equal to the total number of pieces of
mexchandise delivered during the month
times 25 cents; in othex woxds,

25 cents for each piece of merchandlse
delivered during the month.

(B) Paid on or before the twentieth day of
the succeeding month.

{4} An annual identification badge fee of $5 pex
badge. [Eff  MAY -4 2002 ]

{auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§15-20.1-39 Monthly delivery report. (a) The
permittee shall submit, along with the payment of the
monthly fee required under this subchapter, a delivexy
report for each calendar month, on or before the
twentieth day of the succeeding month.

(k) The monthly delivery report shall include:

(1) A listing of every delivery made during the

month in chronological oxder; this listing
shall provide the following informatiom for .
each delivery: T

(A) Date of delivery;

{(B) Time of delivery; and

{(¢) Number of pieces of merchandise.

(2) The total number of pieces of mexchandise

delivered during the month,.

(¢) The permittee shall be subject to penaltles,
including revocation of permit, if amy false
information is provided on the monthly delivery
report. [EEEf HAY -4 202 1 (Buth: HRS §261-12}
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

20.1-20



§19-20.1-40 Controls. {a} The department shall
conduct regular inspections of permittee activities to
help ensure:

{1} Accurate reporting of the number of pieces of

merchandise delivered; and

{2) Compliance with the provisione of this

chapter.

{(b) The department shall, upon reasocnable
notice, be given access to any of the permittee’s
‘records, books or documents to veriiy repoﬁis
gubmitted by the permittee. [BEf
(auth: HRS §261-12} (Imp: HRS §261- ?}

§19-20.1-41 Designated areas. (a) The
permittee shall deliver mexchandise only to areas
.designated by the director.

(b} The permittee shalil be allowed to keep the
mercehandise in the designated areas for a maximum of
four hours starting from the time the merchandise is
placed in the designated area. [EEE May -4 2m2 ]
{puth; HRS §261-12] (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20,1-42 Identification of merchandise. (a)
The merchnandise for each delivery made at a public
airport shall be clearly and conspicuously marked with
the:

(1) Permittee’s name; and

(2) -Time of delivery.

{b} The merchandise may be marked individually
or as a group as long as it is readily identifiable at
all times while it is at the airport.

(c) ‘The permittee shall have an authorized
representative, wearing the identification badge
issued under this chapter, present at all times next
to the merchandise, overseeing the merchandise as long
‘as the merchandise is at the airport.

[BEE MAY - 4 2002 1 (AButh: HRS §261-12)}
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

20.1-21

N

d



§19-20.1-43 Safety and security. (a) In order
to help ensure the public health, safety and aixpoxt
security, any merchandise shall be removed to a
storage area by authorized department personnel if:

(1) The mexchandise is unclaimed after four hours

from the time of delivery; oxr

(2) The mexchandise is left unattended for any

amount of time in viclation of section
19-20.1-42.

(b) Any.merchandise not claimed after two days
in storage may be summarily disposed of by the
department without notice to the permittee.

{c) The cost of removal, storage or disposal of
merchandise shall be assessed to the permittee. The
proceeds, if any, from the sale or disposal of any
unclaimed merchandise shall be used to offset the cost
of removal, storage and disposgal and the balance
remaining shall be payable to the permittee oxr
passenger upon proof of entitliement thereto.

[BEE AY - 4. 2002 ] {(Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-44 Unauthoxized storage. Permittees
shall not keep, place, oxr store hand trucks, vehicles,
carts, or any other egquipment or supply item in any

area of a public airport except in those locations or
spaces spec1f1ca11y prescribed for such use ox
act1v1ty Any improper placement or storage shall
result in an assessment of a $10 fine for each item or
article which is improperly placed or stored, or in
the seizure of the item or article at the ownexr’s rxisk
and expense, plus applicable storage and service fees
resulting therefrom, or in both a fine and seizure.
Upon seizure of any item or article, the department
shall send a written notice by registered ox certified
mail, with return receipt, to the owner of the item or
article at the address on record with the department
if the owner is known. The notice shall contain a
brief description of the item or artiecle, the location
of seizure, and intended dispesition of the property
if not claimed within ten days after the mailing’ of
the notice. If the owner is not known or cannot be
located, the item or article shall be held for forty-

20.1-22



five days from date of seizure after which time it
shall be disposed of as unclaimed lost property.
C[BFE  WAY -4 R ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-7) '

SUBCHAPTER 8
PORTER SERVICES

§19-20.1-45 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to porter
services at public aixports.

[EEE WAY -4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261- 12)
{Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-46 Definitions. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter.

spccompanied baggage” means baggage which is
claimed by a passenger at a public -airport.

“porter” means one who performs porter services.

“porter services” means the carrying of baggage

for passengers at public airports and other services
incidental to porterage generally rendered by poxters
in and about air transportation terminals, including
but not iimited to:

(1} The carxying of baggage f£rom baggage claim
areas to curbside or to other areas within
the airport as requested by the passenger;

(2) The loading of baggage aboard conveyance used
by the passenger in departing the airport;

(3) The carrying of baggage from-curbside to the
check-in counters or to other areas within
the airport as requested by the passenger,
and

(4) The transporting of handicapped passengers by
motorized carts to and from gate axeas.

“pPorterage” with respect to porter services shall

generally mean the handling of accompanied baggage
whereas “porterage" with respect to baggage pickup and
delivery services shall generally mean the handling of
unaccompanied baggage.

20.1-23

™D

Lo



“Unaccompanied baggage” means baggage which is
not claimed by a passenger at a publiec airport but for
which prior arrangements have been made:

(1) For pickup at a public airport and delivery
to a destination off the airport for arriving
passengers; oxr ' :

(2) For delivery to a point at a public airport .
designated by the director for departing
passengers. [BEEf way -4 W0 1
{auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-47 Requirements to obtain permit. To
cbtain the permit under this chapter, a person must:.

{1} Pay the fees prescribed by this subchapter;
and

(2) Have an existing written contract with an
airline to perform porter services.
[EEE  MAY -4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: HRES §261-7)

§19-20.1-48 Fees. Except for airline lessees
authorized to provide porter services in their leases
with the department, no person shall provide porter
services in or at a public airport without paying the
department the following fees: '

(1) For each public airport at which porter

service is provided, an annual administrative
expense fee of 5100; and

{2) An annual identification badge fee of §5 per

badge. I[Eff paY -4 2002 | '
(Auth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-49 Unauthorized storage. The permittee
shall not keep, place, park, or store hand trucks,
baggage carts, motorized passengexr carts, or any other
equipment or supply item in any area of a public '
airport except in those locations or spaces
specifically prescribed for that use or activity.
any improper placement or storage shall result in an
assessment of a $10 penalty for each item or article
which is improperly placed or stored, or in the

20;1"24



seizure of the item or article at the owner’s risk and
expense, plus applicable storage and service fees
resulting therefrom, or in both a penalty and seizure.
Upon seizurxre of any item or article, the department
shall send a written notice by registered or certified
mail, with return receipt, to the owner of the
property at the address on record with the department.
The notice shall contain a brief description of the
item or article, the location of seizure, and intended
disposition of the property if not claimed within ten
days after mailing of the notice. If following
reagsonable attempts by the department, the ownerxr
cannot be located, the item oxr article shall be held
for forty-five days from date of seizure after which
time it shall be disposed of as unclaimed lost
property. [Eff MAY - 4 2002 ]

(Auth: HRS 8261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-~20.1-50 Motorized passenger carts. (a) The
department shall issue decals which shall be placed on
motorized passenger carts approved for use at a
public airport. ©No carts shall be used to provide
porter services at any public airport without a decal
issued by the department. Carts shall be operated
cnly on routes and locations designated by the
director. Carts issued decals shall not be used on
the airport for any purpose other than the transport
of handicapped passengers and their escorts to and
from gate areas.

{b) No motorized passenger cart shall be

operated:

(1) In a careless or negligent manner or in
disregard of the rights and safety of others;

(2) Without due caution or circumspection, or at
a speed or in a manner which endangexs oxr is
likely to endanger persons or property;

(32) While the operator thereof is undexr the
influence of intoxicating liguor, narcotic,
or habit forming drug; and

{4) If the vehicle is so comnstructed, eguipped,
loaded or in such other condition as to
endanger or be likely to endanger persons or
propexrty.

20.1-25



{c) The permittee shall be liable for any injury
or damage to persons or property resulting from or
attributed to the use of the carts at public airports.
[EEE  MAY -4 2602 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-7) ' - '

§19-20.1-51 Solicditing prohibited. No porter
ghall solicit tips from passengers.
[BEE  pay -4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20,.1-52 Statement of contracted services.
The permittee shall provide to the department upon
request & statement certified by the serviced airline
that a contract for porter services presently exists.
This chapter shall become a part of all such contracts
so that contracting parties are aware of the rights,
duties, and responegibilities of the permittee.
[EEf  MAY - 4 2082 1 {Auth: HRS §261-12)
{Imp: HRS §261-7) :

§19-20.1-53 Airline lessees. {a) With the
exception of sections 19-20.1-3 and 15-20.1-48, this
chapter shall apply to airline lessees who provide
their own porter services.

{b} Airline lessees who provide porter Bervices
to other airlines shall be subject to this chapter.
[EfE way -4 B0 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-7)

20.1-26



SUBCHAFPTER 5
PREARRANGED GROUND TRANSPCORTATION

§19-20.1-54 Scope. The special provisions set
forth in this subchapter shall apply to preaxranged
ground transportation services at public airports.
[Eff  MAY -4 200 1 (Auth: HRS §5261-12)

(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-55 pDefinitions. Unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, as used in this chapter:

nHotel" includes motel.

~ v"operator® includes any person who is properly
and physically qualified to operate and control any
motor ¢or other vehicle in comnection with any ground
transportation service provided at a public airport by
a permittee under this chapter. The cperator may be a
permittee itself or a gualified employee of the
permittee.

»prearranged ground transportation services"
includes the providing for hire of a motor vehicle,
including off-airport rent-a-car vehicles, at any
public -airport for the purpose of tramsporting the
hirer of, or passenger in, such motor vehicle and
personal property where such hire or tramsportation
was contracted or arranged for by the hirer,
passenger, or another on behalf of the hirer or
passenger, in advance of the hirer or passenger's
arrival at the public airport or, upom or after his
arrival at the public airport, by communicating with
an pperator whose place of business is situated
outside the public airport, for ground transportation
services to be performed, at least in part, at the
public airport.

Prearranged ground transportatiomn services also
include passenger transportation services, tours, and
courtesy car services for customers and guests upon
vehicles owned or leased by the operators even if the
services are provided gratuitously or may be an
incidental part of another sexvice.

20.1-27



Prearranged ground transportation services do not
include the right to solicit, offer, and provide
ground transportation services for hire to any person
other than to persons for which ground traunsportatiom
sexrvices had been arranged in advance.

"Taxi ox taxicab service® includes the service of
providing a motor vehicle for hire by the public at,
on, or upon a public airport, which motoxr vehicle
shall have a driver other thanm the hirer and be used
for the purpose of transporting the hirer and
incidental pexsonal property to a destination and over
a route contruilable by a hirer.

(BEE MAY -4 7 (Auth: HRS §261-12)
(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-56 Fees. Persons authorized to provide
prearranged ground transportation services at public
airports shall, in consideration of using state
airport facilities for conducting business, pay the
following fees as applicable:

(1) Off-airport rent-a-car service.

{a) An annual administrative expense fee of
$100 in advance.

- {B) An annual fee of $20 for each off- -
airport remt-a-car vehicle in the
permittee's fleet as of October 1
of each year.

(C) An annual registration fee of $250 for
each courtesy vehicle used for
transportation of customers to and from
any public airport.

(2) Courtesy vehicle service other than off-

airport rent-a-car or hotel firms.

(A} An annual administrative expense fee of
$250 in. advance. ' '

(8) An annual registration fee of 5250
for each courtesy vehicle used for-
transportation of customers to and from
any public airport.

{3) Taxi, bus, limousine and stretchout.

{a) An annual administrative expense fee of
$100, in advance, per permittee

20.1-28



providing these prearranged ground
transportation services at any public
ailrport.

(B) An amount equal to the following
percentages of the monthly gross
receipts which the operator derives
from providing these prearranged ground
transportation pickup services at the
public airports listed below.

(i} Seven percent at Honolulu
International Airpoxt.
(ii) Three percent at
public airports
other tharm Honolulu International
Ajirport.
{4} Hotel courtesy vehicles.

Prearranged ground transportation services

between a public airport and a hotel,

provided by the hotel for its guests upon
vehicles owned or leased by the hotel shall
be chaxged:

{A) An annual administrative expense fee of
$250 in advance.

(B} An annual registration fee of $250 for
each courtesy vehicle used for
transpoxrtation of customers to and f£rom
any public airport.

(c) 2n annual fee of $2 per sleeping room
for rental by the hotel.

[EEf  MAY - 4 2000 1
{Auth: HRS §261-12} (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-57 Exemptions. The director may, in the
public interest, exempt all persons providing ground
transportation services at cextain public airports
from the payment. of the fees required under this
subchapter. [Eff  MAY -4 2007 1
{auth: HRE §261-12) .{Imp: HRS §261-7}

§19-20.1-58 Taxji services. The director reserves
the right to reveke any non-exclusive privilege of
providing taxi service at any public airport, except
prearranged taxi service, and grant am exclusive taxi

20.1-29

M

Fr

g

Ly



P A A

service concession to any person in the manner
prescribed by section 102-2, Bawaii Revised Statutes.
[BEE  uay -4 2002 ] (Auth: HRS §261-12}

(Imp: BRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-39 Signs. No pexson shall display any
sign that extends more than six inches above the roof,
hood, or truck of any motor vehicle used to provide
ground transportation at public airports. Flashing
lights and audible devices, other than that required
by safety oxdinances and regulations are prohibited.
The display of any xates or fees on motor vehicles is
also prohibited. [EEE  MAY =4 200 ]

(ARuth: HRS §261-12) (Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-60 Restrictions. {a) Permittees and
operators shall not solicit passengers or fares on
airport premises. Pickup shall be limited to those
passengers and clients who have made prior arrangement
for the ground transportation service provided by the
permittee. The permittee, and its employees, agents
and operators shall have evidence of such prior
arrangements in the form of schedules, passenger
manifests or other similar documentation which
jdentifies the passengers and clients, available for
inspection by the director at all times during the
period the permittee is engaged in business activities:
at the public airport, including at the time of all
pickups.

(b) Permittees shall not use dispatchers,
agents, customer service assigtants, operators,
employees or any other persons who have a working
arrangement with the permittee to engage in any effort
to solicit or obtain ground transportation business on
any public airport premises. [Eff MAY - 4 0 1
{auth: HRS §261-12) {(Imp: HRS §261-7)

§19-20.1-61 Recoxrds of off-airport remt-a-cax -
permittees. Permittees who provide off-airport rent-
a-car ground transportation services im or at public
airports shall be obligated to maintain a record and
original source documents which shall account for all

20.1-30



of the vehicles in the permittee’s fleet as of October
1 each yvear, segregated by airport districts. The
record, including origimal source documents, shall be
kept for three years in the State following the end of
the permit year. The State shall be granted access at
all reasonable times to all such records and documents
and may make or cause to be made a complete audit to
verlfy'the reasonableness of the reported number of
vehicles in the permittee’s fleet as of October 1 each
year. In the event that records and original source
documents have not been kept in accordance with this
provision, the State, shall in addition to othexr
payments required by this chapter, be entitled to
demand and receive an additional payment of ten _
percent of the total amount payable hy the off-airpoxt
rent-a-car ground transportation service permmttee to
the State under this subchapterx.

[EEf  way -4 200 ] (auth: HRS §261-12)

{(Imp: HRS 8§261-7)

20.1-31

o

=



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The repeal of Chapters 19-20, 19-21, 19-22,
19-23.2, 19-24, 19-25, 19-29 and 19-32, and the
adoption of Chapter 19-20.1, Hawaili Administrative
Rules, noted on the Summary Page dated March 26, 2002,
were approved on March 26, 2002, following public
hearings held on February 26 and 27, 2002, after public
notice was given in the Honolulu Star-Bulletin, Maui
News, MidWeek, Hawaii Tribune-Herald, West Hawaii Today
and Garden Island on January 21, 2002,

The repeal of Chapters 19-20, 19-21, 15-22,
19-23.2, 19-24, 19-25, 19-29% and 19-32, and the
adoption of Chapter 19-20.1, Hawaii Administrative

Rules, shall take effect ten days after f£iling with the
Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

B S Wi -

BRIAW K. MINAATI
Director of Transportatien

i

APPROVED;

lyd B2

Jg. CAY
Goverioxr

ES%AN 0 é :
State of Hawaii

Date: ?:/,Zﬁf D 2

APPROVED AS TC FORM:

Yousfiftic——

Deputy Atgbrney General

rilea: AR 24 M




ot

-s107181A SUTIINIAL JO a8wuaoiad
U utsgaloul pue ‘sIONSIA S1ES-JO-IN0 10] eoustiedxa UeleMEL] U Furacadiut
£qeIatp ‘90TAISS TXE] SOUEB(US O soAnuaoul AIESS909U AN} SIIALP IXE 2A18 pInoA
meld 101SBUL aasusy1duod ‘punos ® 1ell spui] IallIng amjesi8a) SUL
*aIming 91 Ul W91 0] UOISTIAP S JONSIA € OF [EONIa ST NEMBH Ul BUIALLIE
1511y vodn PaAT=09X 901AISS JO odf oy, ‘1S BUOTY 9Ui SUNBNSUOWSP pUE ‘f1sno
2700 SI01STA SunEsn (SAIYA MAU TEID Guisn Aq S0TAISS Anenb-doy spraoid
SIOALIP TEU) [BHIUDSSS ST 31 'STU) JO 35TMEDY -pasodya are SI0NSA SUWI-ISTY YITM
o) remeyy ur sydoad 1811} 991 Juoue 318 SIDALIP QEJIXe] pue SIXBJ, U Fuoj aip ul
UMOp $1509 uoTELodsIED daey| o3 Sutdiey Aqeraui ‘e 1SIA 0) UIWal [[Lw Ko
‘stxe) paseq-ilodire Jo suotssardunl 9]qRIOAE] SAEY SIOJSIA JT "SediAlas qeolxEl
107 ugpd punos B s9pniaul 1em wasAs uorelodsusn puniold poond-A1qeuoseal
‘pafeusui-[am e st uonerado 1odire uaronge Awme jo 1oadse jueptodwr Uy
*SIOJISTA O}
§1955® 8, TIEME]] JO uoTssardurr Fuons e Kaauo09 01 Ayunaoddo 1s1if 2yl jussoxd pue
‘pasodye 218 SIONSIA YoM O) saoe(d sIi] 21 oI sppodne $.01e1§ 2U3 ‘eMEH 0
£nus jo urod uTEUL OY] S "SPUE[ST U9MI3q PUE ajE1g Suyi WOoIf ple o} srafuassed
§0 TuRlISAOW 911 FUNENTIOE] £q Amiouooe paseq-ioNsiA 8 Melg o4l Ul 9]0X Teono
e shed weysks uodie s lremel Jemd SpUl ame[si89] a4l "1 NOLLDIS

nompp fo 21015 31 fo auninjs) 8977 ayi £q paiovus i 24
-go1Alag 1xe], HodIy ol Sune(ey 19V Ue 10} me v

76Z€ "ON '€'S €91 LIV

‘¢'g1-0gz§ suH o wrensnd pAIPH T
AJON
("v66T ‘6 auny parcaddy)
66T 1 AIn[ U0 193%§2 93[E) TIEYS ¥ PUe i¢ vz ' suon
-g05 jey; popiaosd t[eaoxdde uodn 100550 e TEUS 1oy STL "L NOLLDES

: . ,PAI0OSIapUN ST TBHIRTEW
ioﬁ:ﬁmBuz.ﬁEuvﬁmEﬂumﬁumﬂomoﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁt Aromnreig 9 NOLLOHS

C6oT ['4661) ‘1 Af 1O pefesdal
aq [reys pue ‘8861 ‘I Anp o 100§F2 A[E [[BYS 1OV syl L NOLLDIS.
. *SMO[[0] 5B Bl 01 £ Uonaas Supuslly ‘¢

IO SIU 3O 9jep asufis 943
Aq ISy ST fepun SUONENOSSU 3FES] JO Tona[dwos o 2padxs 01 SSPIOT st

e R T LR ©

~ETS T[ELS $90In05s) eI pue pue| JO TaSTEdsp 9L VL NOLLOHS»
:SMOTJOF 5B PEal 0] UONIDS MU E Juippy 7

JSTeSA oY paada 01 1o [reseal
21y JO SIvak umy ISIT) 1) IO IURI aspa] [ENUUR A JO mmed 2q j[Eys
wnwaid e rad aay-Auam ot 'grgak smomunuod uoy 1oj yruued
2[QEI0A31 JApUn Pue| i parduooo pey 20553 € J1 sapdurexe SUMO]
o o1 Aq pavensayyr se ‘Jiuried J[qEOOASI I3pUN puey sy pa1dnoso

€91 LDV

HONVad

JOWYLSISSY SSANISNY

e st e b 7




Joowasord
-1y i3 Jo uona[dwoo Jo oyep o) Ioye sreak U9) UL SJOUI jou jusAs Aue ul ng
‘PRTLDSE BBY UONOR JO 2SNED 9y) 18)Je sIeak o] URYI 9I0UL PIOUILULIOD 3 [[eys
AKuodoxd a1 o3 Jusumaacrduy ue o) SurjefeX UOTONNSUOD JO HONBAINSGO pUE ‘UOI)
-OnNsuod Jo Supalsiuups pue uosialodns ‘uononysuoo [‘sererewt Jo Juididdns
pue Summoenuewr ‘digsAlams] ‘uisop ‘Summmed ot W jos[dou Jo fousmoyep
Aue Jo no Fuisie TIeap ToIA 10 AS(aT Afipoq 30F 10 ‘Teuosisd 1o Tear *A1se
-doxd oy £mfur Lue o3 sefeurep 1240091 01 uonae oN () *Apradord [eaa asordmg
0] UOIIIJSUOI WO PIseq SIEPWEp J0J WOMPE Jo UopeInury §-759%.

) ‘ 1SMOT]O] B
PEal 0] PAPUSWE S| ‘SoyNIel§ pesiaey MEMBH ‘3-L$9 UONOSS ‘T NOILDHS

rupmvgr fo apis ayg Jo E:.uuw&m,mu. ayp g pajopusy Jf 2g
"SUOLOY JO uolewI] O} BURey 10V Ue 10 [ ¥

626 "ON €' ¥o1 LOV

('$66T *6 dunf pasoiddy)
‘Teacxdde uodn 100530 23} [[RUS 1PV SILL " NOLLDAS

"puny anuaAal odie
aip oyur 9sdey [[RYS S66] ‘0F SUN[ Lo SSSUISNG JO 250[0 9Y) JO Se 10Y SHp Aq apeiu
voneudoxdde Lue Jo souereq parequimoustm Jo papuedysun Aoy ‘uonepodsuen jo
juaunredop 2y £q pepuadys oq [reys pejendordde wms 911, ‘¢ NOLLDHS

'¢561 JO uoissas remndel oy

Jo Fuyuoawos ol 01 Jourd sfep Ljusm] Ueyy 191B] OU eIMjR[SIFe] SO
03 ued roysew pasodord e wo yxeder v ywgns [[eys 1mounmedap oyl (1)

pue ‘uerd o jo juoudoressp o Surmp suod cfejens

SMOUEA 18 POl oyl Ul siadye [eommoe) Se [[aM Se ANSNDUI Ixel
[E20] 24 JO SISqLUAUI SAJOAUL PUE LM J[NSU0D [[eys jusuniedap oy, (£)

£§1800 2S01[] P290X2 10U [[BYS PUe UIAISAS TXE]

1odire oy 19istuppe pue ojelado 0) §1800 9U) JO SISAJRUE [EUONEBI
® vodn paseq pajemofes oq [jEys ‘Aue Ji ‘sesy jrumad Txey wodiy  (7)

. . 10y s

UT Y110 13 SNSST o1 sessaippe jem uepd jueweSsuew v 218 MULIO)

pue spodife JO UISISAS OpIMolels oI ]1 J0J 207Ares Txe) jrodim
Jo marasl yInoloty v jonpuod [peys uoneucdsuel) yo jueaniedsp oy, (1)

:sa0[[0] se uoneiiodsuen Jo juaumnredop a1 £q
padorasp aq reys vepd ST, "e0IATos qearxe] Jodire Jo LSRRI JUSIDIe puR
[eotwonoos sy J0f uepd Isjsews v Jo juewrdoroasp oyl 101 ‘Ca61-FA6T oA [eosLy
Ioy ATessesou oq A 8¢ JOIIAN [ONUI 08 10 ‘000°GL$ JO WMS 21} emeH JO S1elS
2y Jo pung entoadl wodire o1 Jo mo parendoxdde st a¥ayy, 'z NOLLDHS

- AIIOU009 POSL-TOIISIA § [IBMEBL] PUE ‘S10}
-wrado 1¥e] ‘Srowolsno txel Joi syeusq Suninsel YIm welsds xel wodne jualoiyye
pue [eorwoucos ue ogero dey [ jeyp uepd rosemr v dofeasp o) uonenod
-suex Jo 1oeunredap a1 01 spuny sepdordde o1 s119v sty Jo ssodind sy,

POL LOV




Exhibit 4



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Adoption of Chapter 18-231
Hawaii Administrative Rules

, 2016

1. Chapter 18-231, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
is amended by adding a new section to read as follows:

"§18-231-3-1.1 Request for Reconsideration of
Assessment. (a) A request for reconsideration of
assessment means the process by which a taxpayer
requests the department to grant a reconsideration of
assessment under section 18-231-3-1.2.

(b) A request for reconsideration of assessment
is a purely administrative matter. A taxpayer's
appeal rights are unaffected by a request for
reconsideration of assessment, and a request for
reconsideration cof assessment does not constitute an
appeal to either the Board of Review or the Tax Appeal
Court.

{c) The department may grant or deny any request
for reconsideration of assessment in its sole
discretion.

(d) A request for reconsideration of assessment
shall be made by the taxpayver in writing to the
auditor or tax return examiner listed on the Notice of
Final Assessment or Denial Letter. The request for
reconsideration of assessment shall be signed by the
taxpayer and shall include:

(1) A detailed summary of facts and
circumstances that the taxpayer believes
would, if taken into consideration, result
in a different assessment;

(2) A list of the new documentation, evidence,
cr other information that supports the
taxpayer's position under paragraph (1);
provided that if the department grants a

-~ request for reconsideration of assessment
| uUnder subsection (g), the taxpayer shall




Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

provide all such listed documentaticn,
evidence, or other informaticn within thirty
days unless otherwise specified by the
department; and

(3} An explanation of why the taxpaver did not
provide the facts, documentation, evidence,
or information under paragraphs (1) and (2)
during the audit or before the department
issued the Notice of Final Assessment or
Denial Letter.

(¢) The department may through publication add
additional requirements for a request for
reccnsideration of assessment or provide guidance as
to the circumstances in which a regquest may be
granted.

(f) The department may require the taxpayer to
pay nc more than thirty per cent of the assessment
prior to granting a request for reconsideration of
assessment. The amount paid under this subsection
shall be applied according to section 231-27, HRS, and
shall not ke considered a payment under protest under
section 40-35, HRS.

{(g) The granting of a request for
reconsideration of assessment is merely an
acknowledgment that the department will consider the
additional documentation, evidence, or other
information listed in the taxpayer's request, and in
no way ensures or indicates that the department will
issue a new, modified, or amended Notice of Final
Assessment or Denial Letter after such
reconsideration.

(h) The department shall notify the taxpayer in
writing of the grant or denial of a regquest for
reconsideration of assessment. If the department
elects to grant a request for reconsideration of
assessment, the department shall notify the taxpayer
in writing that:

(1) The department has granted the taxpayer's
request for reconsideration of assessment;
and

(2) Reccnsideration of assessment does not
affect the taxpayer's appeal rights and the




Proposed Hawail Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

taxpayer should take steps to ensure it
perfects any appeal rights related to the
existing Notice of Final Assessment or
Denial Letter."” [EfE ]
(Auth: HRS §231-3(9)) (Imp: HRS §231-3)

2. Chapter 18-231, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
is amended by adding a new section to read as follows:

"§1l8-231-3-1.2 Reconsideration of Assessment.
{(a) For purposes of this section, "reconsideration of
assessment" means the precess by which the department
reevaluates the results of:

(1) A prior audit where tax was assessed and

remains unpaid; or

(2) A prior denial of a taxpayer's claim of a
refund or tax credit.

(b) Upon granting a request for reconsideration
of assessment under section 18-231-3-1.1, the
department mavy:

(1) Request additional substantiation,
worksheets, spreadsheets, explanaticns and
other documentation; and

(2) Amend or rescind existing assessments, issue
new assessments, or let existing assessments
stand in its sole discretion.

(c) A taxpayer that disputes the result of a
reconsideration of assessment may pay the full amount
in dispute under protest as provided by section 40-35,
HRS, or pay the full amount in dispute and participate
in the expedited appeals and dispute resclution
program as provided by section 231-7.5, HRS." [Eff

] (Auth: HRS $231-3(9)) (Imp: HRS $231-

3)

3. Material to be repealed is bracketed and
stricken. New material is underscored.



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

4. These amendments tco Chapter 18-231, Hawailil
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after
filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.






Proposed Hawaili Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

R
i

IRHQIMEQD AODIOTA
EBUSINESS ASSISTA

§
i
'
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION l

Amendments to Chapter 18-251
Hawaii Administrative Rules

, 2016

1 s Section 18-251-1-04, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended by amending subsection (b) to read
as follows:

"(b} Motor wvehicles or wvehicles provided in
conjunction with public relations and promotional
activities, such as familiarization trips (commonly
known as “fam trips”) and get—away prize packages,
shall be subject to the rental motor wvehicle surcharge
tax.

Example:

ABC Cars participates in a visitor industry
project to encourage travel agents to cultivate
Hawaii as a vacation destination by providing [&]
six cars for a one-week familiarization tour of
the islands. All [&] six of the cars are subject

to the rental motor wvehicle surcharge tax|[—as
£allatzas &9 Aoz £ —rre 6 o 4

=5 r A B R B
LA IV O e o i [==N \-A.Ld.j [ S 7 uu._xu’ S AT L e e - LN W g S S

A G—surcharge fav—dus] .

=
T

T

Example:

In conjunction with a company promotion, DEF
Cars (DEF) gives away coupons to its special
customers for “free rentals’”, no rental rate
charge for cone day. All customers, including
those renting a car for one day or less, who use
their coupons are asked to sign rental agreements
and contract for a collision damage waiver or to
sign an acknowledgment. Cars used by customers
in this promotion are subject to the rental motor



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

vehicle surcharge tax for each day’s rental,
including the day for which no rental rate is
charged.

Example:

GHI Rentals (GHI) has a "frequent GHI
driver" precgram, which gives a free day’s rental
after a customer has rented a car from GHI five
times. After the customer has rented a car from
GHI on five occasions, the customer does not pay
the rental fee on the next (or sixth) rental.
All customers receiving a free rental are asked
to sign rental agreements and contract for a
collision damage walver or to sign an
acknowledgment. Cars used by customers for the
sixth rental peried, which are provided without
charge, in the GHI frequent driver program are
subject to the rental motor vehicle surcharge
tax." [Eff 1/27/92; am ] (Auth: HRS
§§231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS §251-1)

2. Section 18-251-2-02, Hawaili Administrative
Rules, is amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-2-02 Surcharge tax on rental motor
vehicles or vehicles; computation of tax. (a) For
purposes of this chapter, “day” means a twenty-four
hour period of time, which shall be computed from the
time that the motor wvehicle or wvehicle is rented or
leased.

Example:

Ms. Visitor rents a car for a day. She
picks up her car at [9] 9:00 a.m. on Monday and
returns it to the car rental staticn at 8:59 a.m.
on Tuesday. There is a surcharge tax [ef$2] at
the rate set forth in section 251-2, HRS, for the
one—day rental.

b2



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

(k) For purposes of this chapter, “any portion
of a day” means one minute or more of a twenty-four
hour period of time that the motor vehicle or vehicle
is rented cr leased; provided that the computation of
time shall not include any incidental grace periocd
allowed by a lessor. The grace pericd shall be
without any additional rental charge, overtime or
service fee, or any other charge or fee or waiver
relating to a delayed return of a wehicle.

Example:

Mr. Businessman travels from Oahu to Maui
for business and rents a car from ABC Rental on
Mauil from 8:00 a.m. to [F2—=wmeeny] 12:00 p.m. when
Mr. Businessman returns to Cahu. At 1:00 p.m.
ABC Rental rents the same car to Ms. Visitor
until 8:00 p.m. Assuming ABC Rental is not a
car—sharing organization, ABC Rental is subject
to [a—54] the rental motor vehicle surcharge
tax [—S$2—sureharge—tax] for the daily rate for
each portion of a day's rental. In other words,
rental motor wvehicle surcharge tax is due for two
days total rental.

Exanple:

Mr. Tourist travels to Maui and rents a car.
He picks up his car at [+%] 11:00 a.m. on Friday
and returns it to the car rental station at 11:01
a.m. on Monday. The rental car company charges
Mr. Tourist the rental rate for three days and
one hour. Mr. Tourist has rented the car for
three days and a portion of a fourth day;
therefore, [fEere—ds5—a] rental motor wvehicle
surcharge tax [ef-$8+-] is due for four days total
rental.

Example:

Ms. Mover is moving to a new house and rents
a truck for a day. ©She picks up the truck at [£]



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

9:00 a.m. on Wednesday and returns it to the
truck rental location at 2:10 a.m. on Thursday.
The rental company has a grace period of [+5]
fifteen minutes and only charges Ms. Mover for
one day’s rental. Ms. Mover has rented the truck
for one day, and [there—d-s—=] rental motor
vehicle surcharge tax [e£%52<] is due for one day
tctal rental.

(c) The substitution ¢f a motor vehicle or
vehicle with another motor vehicle or vehicle shall
not incur an additional rental motor wvehicle surcharge
tax amount for a day or portion of a day if:

(1) The substitution is made on the same rental
contract or agreement;

(2) The rental or lease period is uninterrupted,
continuous; and

(3) If the rental or lease period is longer than

one day, the rental or lease periocd shall
occur over consecutive days.

When there is a substitution of wvehicle, the
burden is upon the lessor to show that the
substituticn 1is proper and not a surcharge tax
avoidance scheme and subject to the rental motor
vehicle surcharge tax.

Example:

Mr. Sales flies to Cahu for a one-day trip.
He rents a car at the airport and drives cff to
his meeting in Kaaawa. Befcre he gets too far,
Mr. Sales realizes that the car is not in very
good condition. He decides to return to the
airport station and exchange the car for another
one in proper working condition. The second car
is a substitute for the first car, therefore, the
rental motor vehicle surcharge tax is due [i=
$2-] for one day total rental.

Example:



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

To ease traveling to neighbor islands for
its customers, ABC Rentals (ABC) has a “one-stop
7-day islandhopping” special: a customer signs
one rental car contract; pays the rental fee for
seven days; and may pick up a car from any of
ABC's business locations on any island during
that time period. Ms. Visitor decides on the
special rate. She picks up a car at the airport
on OCahu at [€] 8:00 a.m. on Monday; returns the
car to the (COahu station at [&€] 8:00 a.m. on
Tuesday; and flies to Molokai, picking up a car
there at [9] 9:00 a.m. At [&] 5:00 p.m., she
returns the car to the Molokai station and flies
to Maui, pvicking up a car at [&€] 6:00 p.m. Ms.
Visitor spends the rest of the week on Maui,
returning the car to the Maui station at 7:55
a.m. the next Monday. Ms. Visitor actually used
three different cars on Tuesday. The second and
third cars she used are substitutes for the first
car; thus, the rental motor vehicle surcharge tax
is due for one day total rental for that day [+=
enty—52], and the [£e+ta}] rental motor wvehicle
surcharge tax is due for seven total days for the
entire [#] seven days’ special rental [+s—5314].

(d) The rental motor vehicle surcharge tax due
on a motor vehicle or vehicle which is not returned to
the lessor or is abandoned by persons renting or
leasing the motor vehicle or vehicle shall be
calculated on:

(1) The days or portion of days set forth in the

rental contract or agreement; or

(2) The days or porticn of days for which the

person renting or leasing the motor wvehicle
or vehicle is actually charged if that
number of days is greater than set forth in
the rental contract or agreement.

Example:

ABC Cars rents a car to Jane and John Doe,
The rental contract states that the car will be



Proposed Hawaiil Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

rented from Monday [&] 9:00 a.m. and must be
returned by Wednesday [&] 92:00 a.m. Because they
are late for their flight back to the mainland,
instead of returning the car to the car rental
station, the Does leave the car at the airport
terminal. The car is towed away by airport
security. ABRC does not locate the car until the
following Monday at [Z*] 11:00 a.m; thus, the car
is gone from the car rental station for a total
of eight days. The surcharge tax, however, is
only calculated on the two days set forth in the

Does’ contract [—and—the surchaorge—taxr—due—is
47 .

(e) The status of the person renting or leasing
the vehicle shall have no bearing on the imposition of
the rental motor wvehicle surcharge tax. Motor
vehicles or vehicles rented or leased to the following
persons are nevertheless subject to the rental motor
vehicle surcharge tax:

(1) Persons which are nonprofit charitable or
educaticnal corporations, asscociations, or
similar organizations exempt from tax under
the federal Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended; and

(2) Persons who present cards or certificates
stating that the holder is exempted from
state sales taxes.

Example:

VIP Rentals (VIP), rents a car to a customer
who is a staff member of a foreign embassy. The
staff member presents a diplomatic card stating:
“The bearer of this card shall not be subject to
state sales taxes under treaty agreements between
the United States and the staff member’s
country.” The waiver from payment of tax stated
on the card dces not apply here: first, the tax
is not a sales tax but a surcharge tax, and
second, the incidence of tax falls on the rental
agency, not the customer. The rental car agency



Proposed Hawaiil Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

is not prohibited from passing on the ccst of the
rental meotor vehicle surcharge tax to the
customer.

(f) The designation by the lessor of:
(1) The rental or lease period; or
(2) Consideration received from the rental or
lease of a motor vehicle or wvehicle to a
specific time period;
is not ceontreolling and may not necessarily determine
the number of days a motor vehicle or vehicle is
rented or leased.

Example:

DEF Rental Cars (DEF) has a variety of
rental fees, depending upon the number of days a
customer rents a vehicle. There is an hourly
rate, daily rate, weekly rate, and monthly rate.
DEF also has a special business rate. If the
business traveler rents a car for five weekdays,
the business traveler may keep the car over the
weekend without an additional rental charge.
When DEF rents a car to a customer for a week
under the special business rate and the car is
kept feor seven days, the car is subject to the
rental motor wvehicle surcharge tax for all seven
days." [Eff 1/27/92; am 1 (Auth: HRS
§§231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS §251-2)

3. Section 18-251-2-04, Hawaiil Administrative
Rules, 1s amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-2-04 Surcharge tax on rental motor
vehicles or vehicles; adjustments. The rental motor
vehicle surcharge tax is imposed in accordance with
sections 18-251-2-02 and 18-251-2-03; provided that
the lessor shall not be required toc pay the surcharge
tax if the entire rental contract is voided and all
fees, charges, and consideration in any form are



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016.-

returned to the person renting or leasing the motor
vehicle or vehicle.

B

Example:

Cheep Fleet (Cheep) rents a car to Mr. Roe.
Mr. Roe takes the car out on Monday at [£] 9:00
a.m. Dissatisfied with the car's performance, at
[rees+] 12:00 p.m. Mr. Roe exchanges the car for
another one. At [&] 5:00 p.m., he's back. This
time he demands that Cheep return his money.
Cheep voids the rental car contract and returns
all money collected from Mr. Roe: the rental fee,
insurance fee, extra driver fee, and the pass-on
of the rental motor wvehicle surcharge tax. Cheep
does not charge Mr. Roe an administrative service
fee for the return of the car. The rental motor
vehicle surcharge tax will nol be imposed on
Cheep for the use of the cars by Mr. Roe." [Eff
1/27/92; am ] (Auth: HRS §§231-
3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS §251-2)

4, Section 18-251-2-05, Hawaiil Administrative
Rules, is amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-2-05 Surcharge tax on rental motor
vehicles or vehicles; subject to general excise tax.
(a) The rental motor vehicle surcharge tax imposed on
a lessor is included as gross income subject to the
general excise tax, chapter 237, HRS, [and3s5—mnst
deduretible] except as provided in subsection (b).

(b) Rental motor vehicle surcharge taxes which
are:

(1) Separately stated and visibly passed on; and

2) Collected from persocons renting or leasing
vehicles by lessors holding certificates of
registration under chapter 251, HRS, and
this chapter;

shall be excluded from gross income subject to the
general excise tax.



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

Example:

ABC Rentals (ABC) rents cars to residents
and visitors. Every person renting a car is
given a rental car agreement which includes a
breakdown of charges for the customer. The [&2—&
gay] surcharge tax amount is listed separately in
every contract. The surcharge taxes that ABC
collects from its customers are not included as
gross income for general excise tax purposes.

Example:

Cheep Fleet (Cheep) targets the budget
traveler and advertises a flat daily rate, *“$12,
no more, no less” in its flyers. Cheep’s rental
contracts do not [kBreskeunt] break out any costs
and simply lists “Total Due: $12” on the last
line. Although [$2] & portion of the $12
represents the surcharge tax which must be paid
under this chapter, because the surcharge tax is
not visibly broken out and shown on the contract,
the entire $12 is gross income subject to the
general excise tax." [Eff 1/27/92; am

] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 251-
15(b)) (Imp: HRS §251-2)

5. Section 18-251-2-06, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-2-06 Surcharge tax on tour vehicles;
imposition and rates. There is levied on the tour
vehicle operator, and assessed and collected each
month, a tour vehicle surcharge tax for each tour
vehicle used or partially used during the month [as
et lewrss

i B ool = P PO £ an e T e e e P T RS
L= Bk T Il I TITCTT = = =y Y S A T T [ oy
£ 7 = o LT e R P £ A e e
g S e o U G i e A R =y =T v =T Ay
e sl e mmz e —an ]
[y u“l‘\_\ju_l' ¥ [y
£y [ I e N R i N P 4 P In g~ e o
N = ] = [ S 1 1 W e = T T [ e iy s T o g [ o wg
E o I T + 1 N S R ESEIEP N £z
LI &% Ry S s o g W S CAL\j;it_. [ =i J.J.{__x P e




Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January &6, 2016

passenger—seat——coategery—+ at the rates set
forth in section 251-2(b), HRS.

Example:

ABC Bus Tours (ABC) owns [4+8] ten buses that
fall in the over twenty-five seat category and
sells around-the-island tours on Hawaii. ABC
also provides *“as needed” transportation services
to large groups. In January[+] 1992, ABC
conducts tours using [5] five buses; uses [Z] one
bus to transport one group of visitors that
disembarked from a ship in Hilo teo a luau and
back to the ship; and does not use the remaining
[4] four buses, which are serviced that month.
The tour vehicle surcharge tax for the month of

January [v] 19%92[+] is imposed on [€] six buses|[+
P e R O ¥, (O =i A C}'?Oﬁ]

[~ LrLA.L_I.J.J.\j \\J Fey R T o -

Example:

DEF Sightseeing (DEF) owns [18] ten vans and
minibuses with passenger capacities between eight
to twenty-five persons. As part of a model
transportation project, DEF agrees to use all of
its vehicles to transport workers from
neighborhood sites to central locations downtown
in the morning and to return the workers back to
the neighborhood sites in the early evening. The
project lasts for cone month. DEF also uses [4]
four of the vehicles in the evening to regularly
transport tourists to places of interest. DEF
uses the same vehicles each evening. One
evening, however, one of the vehicles breaks down
and DEF uses an alternate minibus for an hour.
Because [&] five of the vehicles only were used
for commuting purposes, these are not subiject to
the surcharge tax for the month of the project.
The surcharge tax is imposed on the other [&]
five vehicles — the [4] four that were usually
used in the evenings and the additional [Z] one
used on the night of the breakdown. The [fetal]

10



Proposed Hawaiil Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

tour vehicle surcharge tax for the month is [£53%
£15+¢75] imposed on five minibuses.” [EfEf
1/27/92; am 1/2/93; am 1 (RAuth: HRS
§8§231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS &§251-2]

6. Section 18-251-2-07, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-2-07 Surcharge tax on tour vehicles;
cost not deductible from public service company tax.
The tour vehicle surcharge tax imposed on a tour
vehicle operator is not deductible from gross income
subject to the public service company tax, chapter
239, HRS.

[Ezxampler

[
o
]
)]
m
)

Hie
§

()]
ui]
B R

ar t o Hh ¢

b

3
-

h
h

H-
Hoar

woop

H-
<%
H
,
u«n

(§18
4

b
]
d
H

g qr

h
u
].J.

o
H
H

Qi

j
Hod- th B
o
b
H

M d
i
21}
o]
ar
R

oot

He HH e

-

f
h @

r
& dr

H- th
I
<
i

H-
jall
He-

f 3 J:E“i’ EEE&EEEE 239: HIES_- ] " [Eff
1/27/%2; am 1/2/93; am 1 (RAuth: HRS
§8§231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS $251-2)

7. Chapter 18-251, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
is amended by adding a new subchapter to read as
follows:

"SUBCHAPTER 5.1
IMPOSITION OF CAR-SHARING VEHICLE SURCHARCE TAX
§18-251-2.5-01 Car-gharing vehicle surcharge

tasx. (a) For purposes of the car-sharing vehicle
surcharge tax:

11



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

"Average paid use period" means the total time a
~lessor's vehicles are rented or leased divided by the
total number of rentals entered inte. Average paid
use period is calculated per taxable period.

"Organization" means any entity that is required
to register and file returns of its own under chapter
237, HRS.

"Paid use period" means the total time a lessor's
vehicle is rented or leased and is computed from the
time the vehicle is rented or leased until the time
the vehicle becomes available for rent or lease to a
different customer or becomes unavailable to any
customer. "Paid use period" shall not include any
complimentary grace period provided by a lessor.

"Taxable period" means the organization's taxable
vear.

(b} For purposes of determining the total number
of rentals entered into by a lessor, a single rental
continues until the wvehicle rented beccmes available
to a different customer or becomes unavailable to any
customer.

(c) The determination of whether a lessor is a
car—sharing organization is made on a per organization
basis.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from Lessor at
10:00 a.m. Customer parks and shops for one
hour. During the time Customer is shopping, the
vehicle remains available only to Customer and is
not available to other customers of Lessor.
Customer then returns to the vehicle, drives home
to deliver her purchases, and relinquishes the
vehicle at 1:00 p.m. the same day, at which time
the vehicle becomes available to other customers
of Lessor. Lessor has entered into one rental
for which the paid use period is three hours.
Even if Customer is not charged for the time she
is shopping, the rental in this example may not
be treated as two separate rentals because the
vehicle did not become availabkle to a different

12



Proposed Hawali Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016 ’

customer of Lessor during that time and remained
available to Customer.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from Lessor at 8:00

a.m. and relinquishes the vehicle at 8:00 a.m.
the following day. The vehicle becomes available
to cother customers of Lessor at that time.
Customer then decides she needs to use a car
again, immediately returns to the same vehicle,
"rents the vehicle from Lessor at 8:02 a.m., and
relinquishes the vehicle at 10:02 a.m. the same
day. Because the vehicle became available to
other customers between periods of rental, Lessor
has entered into two rentals, one with a paid use
period of one day and another with a paid use
pericd of twe hours.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from Lessor at 8:00
a.m. The vehicle is faulty and Customer returns
the wvehicle to Lessor's facility at 8:10 a.m., at
which time it is put into the shop for
maintenance, repaired and re—-enters Lessor's
fleet the fellewing day. The paid use period is
ten minutes because after ten minutes of rental’
the vehicle became unavailable to any custemer.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from Lessor at 8:00
a.m. and returns the vehicle at 10:00 a.m. the
following day. Lessor has entered into one
rental for which the paid use period is twenty-—
six hours. Note that even if Lessor is a car-—
sharing organization, Lessor is liable for tax:
for two days at the rate set forth in section
251-2, HRS, bkecause the paid use pericd is six
hours or more.

13



Proposed Hawail Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

Example:

Lessor rents a vehicle for a two-day period,
beginning at %:00 a.m. Monday and ending 2:00
a.m. Wednesday by which time the wvehicle must be
returned to lessor. The customer returns the
vehicle at 5:00 a.m. Wednesday. The paid use
period is forty—eight hours unless Lessor can
prove that the vehicle became available to other
customers at 5:00 a.m. or became unavailable to
any customer at 5:00 a.m. Note that even if
Lessor is a car-sharing organization, Lessor is
liable for tax for two days at the rate set forth
in section 251-2, HRS, because the paid use
period is six hours or more.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from Lessor at 1:00
p.m. Lessor offers a complimentary grace period
based on traffic conditions. Customer returns
the vehicle at 3:15 p.m. the same day. Per
Lessor's terms, Customer's rental qualifies for a
complimentary grace period of fifteen minutes.
The paid use period for the rental is three
hours.

Example:

For a taxable period, Lessor enters into
seventy-five separate rentals consisting of
twenty—-five thirty-minute rentals, twenty-five
one-hour rentals, and twenty-five twelve-hour
rentals. Lessor has rented vehicles for a total
of 337.5 hours during the taxable period. The
average paid use period is calculated by dividing
337.5 total rental hours by seventy-five total
rentals. The average paid use period for the
taxable pericd is 4.5. Lessor satisfies the
average pald use period requirement to qualify as
a car-sharing organization.

14



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

Example:

FYor a taxable period, Lessor enters into two
hundred separate rentals consisting of seventy-
five thirty-minute rentals, fifty one-hour
rentals, forty two-hour rentals, twenty—-five
twelve-hour rentals, and ten two-day (forty-eight
hours each) rentals. Lessor has rented wvehicles
for a total of 947.5 hours during the taxable
period. The average paid use period is
calculated by dividing 947.5 total rental hours
by two hundred total rentals. The average paid

use period is 4.73. Lessor satisfies the average
paid use period reguirement to gqualify as a car-—
sharing organization. [EEE ]

(Auth: HRS $8231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS
§§251-1, 251-2.5)

§18-251-2.5-02 Car-sharing vehicle surcharge
tax; imposition. (a) The car-sharing vehicle
surcharge tax is levied per half-hour or part of a
half-hour that a vehicle is rented or leased by a car-
sharing organization. The car-sharing vehicle
surcharge tax is levied at the rate and in the manner
set forth in section 251-2, HRS, on all rentals of six
hours or more. For purposes of calculating the tax,
the time length of rentals shall not include any
complimentary grace period provided by a lessor.

Example:

CarShare, a car-sharing organization, rents
a vehicle for two hours. CarShare is liable for
the car-sharing surcharge tax for a total of four
half-hours at the rate set forth in section 251-
2.5, HRS.

Example:

CarShare rents a vehicle for twe hours and
also rents a vehicle for six hours. CarShare is

15



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

liable for car-sharing surcharge tax for four
half-hours at the rate set forth in section 251-
2.5, HRS, for the two hour rental. CarShare is
liable for car-sharing surcharge tax for one day
at the rate set forth in section 251-2, HRS, for
the six hour rental because that rental is six
hours or longer.

Example:

CarShare rents a vehicle for two hours and
rents a vehicle for twenty-six hours. CarShare
is liable for car-sharing surcharge tax for four
half-hours at the rate set forth in section 251-
2.5, HRS, for the two hour rental. CarShare is
liable for car-sharing surcharge tax for two days
at the rate set forth in section 251-2, HRS, for
the twenty-six hour rental because that rental is
six hours or longer and is for all or part of two
days.

Example:

Customer rents a vehicle from CarShare at
1:00 p.m. CarShare offers a complimentary grace
period based on traffic conditicns. Customer
returns the vehicle at 7:10 p.m. the same day.
Customer's rental qualifies for a complimentary
grace period of fifteen minutes and customer is
charged for a rental of five hours and fifty-five
minutes. The car-sharing organization is liable
for car-sharing surcharge tax for twelve half-
hours at the rate set forth in section 251-2.5,
HRS, because the rental peried is not six hours
or longer.

Example:
Customer rents a vehicle from a CarShare at
1:00 p.m. CarShare offers a complimentary grace

period based on traffic conditions. Customer
returns the vehicle at 7:30 p.m. the same day.

16



Proposed Hawaii Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January 6, 2016

Customer's rental qualifies for a complimentary
grace period of fifteen minutes and customer is
charged for a rental of six hours and fifteen
minutes. CarShare is liable for car-sharing
surcharge tax for one day at the rate set forth
in section 251-2, HRS, because the rental is six

hours or longer." [Eff ] (Auth:
HRS §8231-3(9), 251-15(b)) (Imp: HRS §§251-1,
251-2.5)

8. Section 18-251-3-02, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended to read as follows:

"§18-251-3-02 Display of registration
certificate. (a) Fach person at all times shall
conspicuously display the certificate of registration
or a notice as set forth in subsection (b) at each
prlace for which the certificate of registration is
issued.

(b) Where the person providing rental motor
vehicles to the public or engaging in the tour
operator business has more than one place of business,
the director shall issue one certificate of
registration. The person may post a notice at each
place of business notifying the public where the
certificate may be inspected.

[f,-,\ Qoo e b om0 N m ] BN oo i s i B I | )
\ =7 [ = = LSS e ) VA LT V) Lo, S i S I gy U S WS Ry P ) PR LW & [ e
Example:

Hawaii, Inc. provides rental motor wvehicles
to the public at two places of business located
at the Honolulu Airpoert and in Waikiki. To
register, Hawaii, Inc. must list both places of
business and pay a $20 fee. A master certificate
shall be issued. Hawaii, Inc. is not required to
post a copy of the certificate at either place of
business but may post a notice at each place of
business stating that the business of providing
rental motor vehicles to the public has been

17



Proposed Hawail Administrative Rules
Hearing Date: January &, 2016

properly registered and that a true copy of the
certificate may be inspected or examined at a
place designated in the notice." [Eff 1/27/92;

am ] (Auth: HRS §8231-3(9), 251-
15(b)) (Imp: HRS §251-3)

S. Material to be repealed is bracketed and
stricken. New material is underscored.

10. These amendments to Chapter 18-251, Hawaii
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after
filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

18



	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit1
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit2PartA
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit2PartB
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit2PartC
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit3PartA
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit3PartB
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit3PartC
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit4PartA
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Exhibit4PartB
	SBRRBAgendaDec92015Final.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	        David Y. Ige
	           Governor
	      Luis P. Salaveria

	       DBEDT Director
	        Members
	      Anthony Borge

	             Oahu
	            Kauai




